AGENDA

Date: January 24, 2024
Prepared for: 9:30am



CENTRAL FLORIDA TOURISM OVERSIGHT DISTRICT
Board of Supervisors Meeting

Agenda
January 24, 2024
9:30 a.m.
CALL TO ORDER
OPENING INVOCATION
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
SAFETY MINUTE
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD
CONSENT AGENDA

6.1 December 06, 2023 Meeting Minutes
6.2 Second Amendment to Water Service Territorial Agreement
6.3  Proclamation for American Cancer Society

REPORTS

7.1 Management Report

o Excellence Award
. Ella Hickey - Bldg & Safety
. Lance Kochen — Fleet
. Dwight Sweeting — Bldg & Safety
. Sandra Trombly — Construction Project Administrator
7.2 Informational Reports
o Semi-Annual Easement Report

o BuyLocal Now Report

NEW BUSINESS

8.1 Contract # C006464: Three-year contract to Odyssey Manufacturing Co. for
sodium hypochlorite supply in the amount of $3,008,063.64

8.2 Contract # C006430: Three-year contract to Carr. & Colliers Inc. for rapid
infiltration basin renovations in the amount of $825,700.00

8.3 Contract # FGT3631: Ten-year renewal utilizing Florida Gas Transmission
Company’s Service Agreement for Firm Transportation Service with an estimated
annual cost of $343,977.00



8.4 Duplex Lift Station Upgrade, Phase I
8.4(a) Establish and Approve the Project Budget of $3,250,000.00
8.4(b) Design/Support Services with an estimated expenditure of $250,000.00
8.4(c) Additional design services, bidding services, and construction phase services

$174,270.94

9. Public Hearings
9.1 RESOLUTION NO. 658 - A RESOLUTION OF THE CENTRAL FLORIDA
TOURISM OVERSIGHT DISTRICT ADOPTING A PAID PARENTAL LEAVE
POLICY FOR DISTRICT EMPLOYEES.
10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
11. OTHER BUSINESS

12. ADJOURN

APPEALS: All persons are advised that, if they decide to appeal any decision made at a Board of
Supervisors hearing, they will need a verbatim transcript of the record of the proceedings. It is the
responsibility of every party-in-interest to arrange for a transcript of the proceedings, which must
include the verbatim testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is made.

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: The Central Florida Tourism Oversight District is
committed to reasonably accommodating the needs of anyone with disabilities who wishes to
attend or participate in public meetings. Anyone with a disability who requires a reasonable
accommodation should contact the Clerk of the Board, by telephone at (407) 934-7480 or via
email (currently at DistrictClerk@rcid.org), no less than one business day (i.e. Monday through
Friday, excluding legal holidays) in advance of the applicable meeting to ensure that the
District has sufficient time to accommodate the request.




Central Florida Tourism Oversight District

Board of Supervisors

Agenda Item 6.1

Meeting Date
January 24, 2024

Agenda Item Name
December 6, 2023 Meeting Minutes
Requested Action

Transcript of meeting.

Staff Report
Additional Analysis
Fiscal Impact Summary

Exhibits Attached

Pagelof1l




In The Matter Of:
Central Florida Tourism Oversight District

Board of Supervisors Meeting
December 6, 2023

Legal Realtime Reporting
622 E. Washington Street
Quite 200
Orlando, Florida 32801

Original File 12-06-23CFTOD Board of Supervisors Meeting.txt




CENTRAL FLORI DA TOURI SM OVERSI GHT DI STRI CT
BOARD OF SUPERVI SORS MEETI NG

LOCATI ON: Central Florida Tourism Oversi ght
D strict
1900 Hot el Pl aza Boul evard
Lake Buena Vista, Florida 32830

DATE TAKEN: Decenber 6, 2023
TI ME: 9:35am - 1:15 p.m
REPORTED BY: SANDRA D. BROWN, FPR,

Court Reporter and Notary Public
State of Florida at Large

Legal Realtime Reporting




PRESENT:

BOARD MEMBERS: Martin Garcia, Chairman; Charbel
Bar akat, Vice Chairman; Brian Aungst, Jr.; Ron Peri; and
Bri dget Ziegler (Via Videoconference)

SPEAKERS: Pastor Janmie Stewart, Life Church Florida;
Eddi e Fer nandez, CFTOD Operati onal Safety Consultant;

Bri dget Lake, FAVOB; Rose Kenp, Ol ando Regi onal Realtor
Associ ati on; Bishop Kelvin Cobaris, Cobaris Mnistries;
Lisa HIl, Olando Regional Realtor Association; Deidre
Graybill, Olando Realtor Associ ation; Debie MDonal d;
Chris WIlls, D sney Defenders; M na Robinson, Small

Busi ness Advocates of Central Florida; Lorena Torres,
Commmuni cat e 360; Kevin Fernandez, Prem um Constructi on;
Javi er Adanes, JCQ Services; Jon Shirey, Reedy Creek
Prof essional Firefighters; Jackie Espinosa, Enpresas
Espi nosa; Rod Love, Florida Econom c Consortiunt WIIliam
Jennings, Delta Consulting G oup; Professor Donald J.
Kochan, George Mason University Antonin Scalia Law
School ; David H Thonpson, Cooper & Kirk

CFTOD STAFF: denton G| zean, Jr., D strict

Adm ni strator; Paul a Hoi sington, Deputy D strict

Adm ni strator of Adm nistration; Mke Crikis, Deputy
District Adm nistrator of QOperations; Daniel Langl ey,
Acting Counsel for CFTOD; Kurt Ardaman, Acting Counsel
for CFTOD; Eddi e Fernandez, Internal Ri sk Manager; Eric
Ferrari, Fire Chief; Alycia MIIls, Executive Assistant
to M. G| zean; Matthew Cberly, External Affairs
Director; Rocky Haag, External Affairs Coordi nator;
Tanya Nayl or, Director of Security and Energency
Managenent; Ron Zupa, | T Service Delivery Manager;
Samart h Thomas, Systems Adm ni strator; Katherine

Luet zow, Pl anni ng & Engi neeri ng Manager; M chele D cus,
Human Resources Director; Craig Sandt, Principal
Constructi on Manager, Facilities; Kenny Locke, Chief
Techni cal Inspector/InterimManager; Tiffany Kinball,
Contracting O ficer; Erin O Donnell, Town Cerk and
Publ i ¢ Records Adm nistrator; Jessica Kelleher, Public
Records Associ ate, Communi cati ons; Daniel Bollone, S
Adm ni strator; N cole Seipp, HR Generalist; Andrew

Hei t haus; Yenni Hernandez, Chief Infornmation Oficer;
Jason Herrick, Manager Gas Water & Wastewater Resources;
Ant hony Kasper, Manager RCES Engi neering and Prograns;
Andr ea Gsi nski, Senior Procurenent Anal yst

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N o o b~ w Nk

N NN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
o A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

PROCEEDI NGS
* ok ok k%

CHAIR GARCIA: Let's call the neeting to
order. Sorry about the delay. | was waiting on
the public comment cards. Welcone to everybody.
Thank you for being here. Thank you for your
interest in the work of this Board, and thank you
for your interest in the work of the District.
W'll start with the opening invocation.

M. Gl zean.

MR. G LZEAN. Absolutely. Al right. Speak
into the mc. Can everybody hear us? Ckay,
because IT wll kill me if |I don't speak into the
m c.

Good norning, everyone. At this tinme, | would
like to introduce Pastor Jame Stewart, the | ead
pastor of the Life Church Florida in Kissinmee.
Pastor Stewart has served in | eadership for over 25
years and is an adjunct professor at the Trinity
Bible College. He and his wfe, Mchelle, have
been married for 34 years. They have two sons,

Bl ake and Graham three daughters, Erica, Elanna,
and Emma. Their bel oved Enma awaits their arrival
i n heaven.

Pastor, would you lead us in prayer?

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

PASTOR STEWART: Thank you. Thank you for
having me, inviting ne to participate at this
i nportant neeting today. And | would like to just
start with a few words of greeting. |If it wasn't
for the work of this commttee, | wouldn't be here
today. | hail from Toronto, Canada, and we woul d
vacation down here and fell in love with Central
Florida, and we're just thankful for that.

| don't intend on talking for very |ong, but
about six weeks ago | was diagnosed with Bell's
Pal sy, and the left side of ny face was paral yzed.
And so | haven't really been preachi ng nuch, and
when you give a pastor a m crophone that hasn't
been preaching very long, chances are...

So |l said to ny wife, Wien do you think ny
rugged good | ooks will cone back after this Bell's
Pal sy? And she said, Well, the bar was set kind of
low, so it should be back soon. Married 34 years;
interesting, she said it's been the happiest 20
years of her life. But have you ever received a
Christmas gift that you just didn't know what -- if
you' d ever use it, and where you'd put it. Maybe
it would end up -- you thought, | have a good pl ace
for this, a shelf in the garage or sonethi ng.

Aneri can Express did a survey, and they cane

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

up with a list of the worst holiday gifts ever.
And | won't take tine for guesses, but the nunber
one worst gift ever given at Christnas was
fruitcake. And another -- it even finished higher
in the rankings than no gift at all. And the
conclusion is that maybe at the end of the neeting
if you see a refreshnment table, and there's
fruitcake on it, you'll knowthat it's re-gifted
here at the neeting.

Paul said in 1 Corinthians 9, verse 15,
"Thanks be to God for his indescribable gift."
Christmas is a tine, we're all running -- naybe
you' re headi ng out today after the neeting, and
you're going to do sone shopping, have to get the
perfect gift. But Paul described Christnas
t hanking God for the indescribable gift. The best
gift ever given. 1t's not wapped in beautiful
paper or surrounded by a frilly bow or ribbon, but
it was wapped in swaddling clothes and laid in a
manger. He couldn't even conme up with words to
descri be how amazing it was. People have tried to
use poetry, song prose.

| was at Epcot not too |ong ago and heard the
candl el i ght procession that ended in Handel's

Messi ah, and everybody stood to their feet to honor

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

t hat beautiful work of nusic, which was witten to
honor this indescribable gift box oratorial. It's
the tinme of year carols are played everywhere: Joy
to the Wrld, Silent Night, OLittle Town of
Bet hl ehem It's just awesone to hear God's
i ndescri bable gift. There's a guy naned Steve
Mays, who was a teacher of preachers, and he
descri bed the narrative, and here's the words he
wote, and then I'mgoing to pray quickly, "A young
unmarried girl about to give birth to a child who
is destined to |l ead his people. A nman so in |ove
wth us betrothed and so confident in God's
faithful ness that he defies social custons and
marries her anyway. A band of spends years
following a star they believe will lead themto a
new king. A greedy, insecure ruler commts
nmur derous atrocities in a village in order to
protect his thrown. A gang of teenage boys working
the night shift watching sheep wtness an
extraterrestrial worship service, and a little baby
born in a stable who would change the course of
hi story. "

You know, those kind of thoughts take the
sizzle out of the Mracle on 34th Street. It makes

you wonder how a show about Rudol ph or Frosty the

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

Snowran could hold their interest when the real
story is so conpelling. Thanks be to God for his
i ndescri bable gift.

Let nme pray, why don't we pray together.
Heavenly Father, we begin this neeting by
acknow edgi ng you, your presence, and your
goodness. Thank for your indescribable gift. |
t hank you for everyone gathered here this norning.
It's incredible to realize that you know each and
every one of us by nane. And, beyond that, you
have an amazi ng pl an and purpose for each of our
l'ives, and we acknow edge that we are dependent on
you, and we trust in you conpletely.

W ask that you would cone and inspire our
hearts today in the decisions that have to be nade.
Cone and fill our lives with your love, fill our
conversations with your grace, and fill this
meeting with your presence. W ask for your
gui dance, your w sdom and support as we begin this
meeting today. | pray specifically for the nenbers
of the Central Florida Tourism Oversight District.
| pray that you would help them and gi ve them
insight in order to engage in neani ngful discussion
that wll inpact people in our conmunity.

Al l ow the decisions nade today to fill people

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

wth peace, with love, with joy and encour agenent
because with all that's happening in this world
t hese days, Father, we are desperately in need of
those things. And we ask all of this in your
strong and m ghty nane, Amen.

ATTENDEES: Anen.

CHAI R GARCI A: Thank you, Pastor, for your
bl essings. And now let's honor this great nation
by saying the pledge of allegiance. Please stand.

ATTENDEES: | pledge allegiance to the flag of
the United States of America, and to the Republic,
for which it stands, one nation, under God,
indivisible, with liberty and justice for all.

CHAIR GARCI A: And could we pl ease revi ew our
safety procedures? Thank you.

MR. FERNANDEZ: Absolutely. Thank you,
M. Chairman, nenbers of the board, and wel cone to
all of our guests and visitors. Thank you for
joining us this norning. W have a few safety
announcenents to go over before we start today's
nmeeting. 1In the event that we need to evacuate
this room you can use one of two exits. You can
use the front door exit where you entered this
nmorning, but if you follow these two doors to ny

left, and the |left of the front of the room

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

there's also an exit on the other side.

We ask that when you exit, please nmake your
way to the ends of the parking lot. W have
enpl oyees that wll al so evacuate the buil ding, and
put on sonme safety vests. Make your way towards
themuntil first responders arrive and tell us that
it's clear to enter the room again.

W have a first-aid kit and an AED, a
defibrillator, at the security desk if they become
necessary, and we thank you for joining us this
nor ni ng.

CHAI R GARCI A: Thank you very nuch. Ckay.
Next, public coments. Let ne just advise
everybody that this a special neeting. Qur rules
call for public comments only at regul ar neeti ngs,
but in the spirit of transparency, we are always
goi ng to have public comments. And | think we have
a record nunber today, and we're going to hear
everybody. So let's start, first, wth Bridget
Lake. Please, for the record, state your nane, and
if you're here in a representative capacity, please
tell us you who represent.

MS. LAKE: Good norni ng, everyone, and thank
you for having ne cone today and speak on this. |

am Bridget Lake. | amthe Ol ando Board Chair for

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

10

the Fl orida Association of Veteran-Owmed

Busi nesses. | accepted this role as a voluntary
posi tion because | have over ten years' experience
hel pi ng small busi nesses, and | knew as a veteran
nyself | needed to be a part of this organization.

Now, there are a | ot of nessages, obviously,
that you are going to be hearing today, but | cane
to share about who I am because of the service |
gave to ny country. Failure is not an option. You
make it happen or you die trying. That is not a
concept in the mlitary. That's reality for nmany
of us.

How many peopl e do you know today that w ||
lay down their life for mllions of people they
don't know. W served for all of you, all of you
in this room W all have given potentially the
ultimate sacrifice. W set aside religious
beliefs, we set aside politics, we set aside
ethnicities. In the mlitary, we are conrades. W
are brothers, we are sisters. So what | would |ike
to say today is that when you hire a business with
t hat kind of |eadership, you can't fail.

Bring in veterans who understand how to serve,
and you are bringing the best of the best to this

district. Thank you very nmuch.

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

CHAIR GARCI A: M. Lake, thank you very nuch
for your comments, thank you for your service, and
you certainly sound |li ke someone | want in ny
f oxhol e.

MS. LAKE: Thank you.

CHAI R GARCI A: And, of course, you know from
your experience that M. G| zean has i npl enented a
policy here for veterans particularly to have
opportunities to serve and to work with our
district. | presune that's the reason you're here.

MS. LAKE: W greatly appreciate that.

CHAIR GARCI A: Yes. Wll, thank you for your
comments, as well.

Next, Rose Kenp. Please state your nane for
the record, and if you're here in a representative
capacity, please tell us who you represent.

M5. KEMP: Hello, can you hear ne? Hi, good

11

nmorning, ny nane is Rose Kenp. |I'ma Realtor of 23

years here in Central Florida, including this
district, and I'm al so president elect for the
Orl ando Regi onal Realtor Association for 2023.

So I'"'mhere to tal k about obtai nabl e housi ng.
There's sone key factors that inpact obtainable
housing, so I want to kind of try to go through a

couple of the bullet points because there is a |ot,

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

12

actual ly.

Only one in four homes during the second
quarter of 2022 were consi dered obtainable. Prices
are up 200 percent, and they've increased
200 percent between January of 2012 to January of
2023. The conplex interactions within the
community tied to housing al so pose a nyriad of
threats to regional conpetitiveness and quality of
life.

An exanple is cost of living increases, so a
| ot of your district nmenbers here, or community
menbers, cannot enjoy a | ower cost of |iving index.
There's al so rising house costs. There's surging
hone prices happening. W have a |limted housing
supply. W have a lot of investor activity that's
buying up a ot of these properties, and it's
making it very hard to conpete with them because of
t he demand and the conpetitiveness in pricing.

You al so have a |l ot of short-termrentals in
the area, so a lot of platforns |ike Airbnb are
taking up a portion of the housing stock, inflating
rental costs, and limting | ong-term options.

St agnant wages, a couple of exanples, incone growth
falling to nmatch housi ng cost increases. There's a

m ni mrum wage i nsufficiency.

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

13

The economc trend is inflation. W have
rising interest rates, so obtai nabl e housing, the
nunber of avail abl e obt ai nabl e housi ng units has
remai ned stagnant in recent nonths, and it's not
keeping up with the pace of the rising demand. So
this is particularly concerning with first-tine
honebuyers whose options are already |limted.

I'mgoing to give you an exanple. A custoner
may come to me to cone buy in this district because
they live here -- I"msorry, because they work
here, and, unfortunately, they can't find
sonething. There's just no housing for them So |
have to sell thema hone in another area or they
need to rent, which then they have to comute.
They have | ong commutes. There's no childcare
avail able for themin the area, nmaking their
quality of life very difficult for their famli es.

So, in closing, this is not just an issue for
hospitality workers, it's an issue for the entire
district. W need collective action from
busi nesses, policymakers, and residents to support
local initiatives and advocate for policies
i ncenti vi zi ng obt ai nabl e housi ng devel opnent s.

Remenber that obtainability, it's not just

about price. |It's about obtainabl e access,

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

14

opportunity, and building a sustainable future for
this district's residents. Thank you.

CHAIR GARCIA: M. Kenp, thank you very nuch
for your comments and for that data. | assunme you
know that our district is 39 square mles, 25,000
acres, and we have virtually no housing in the
district for enployees. | assune you know t hat.
And you tal k about the inflation and the pricing of
houses, and you're famliar with supply, the demand
dynam cs, and so one of the things that this Board
wll evaluate is the need and the ability to bring
housing to the district. And, of course, with that
you i ncrease supply, and when you i ncrease supply,
the prices are likely to decline.

And so | want you to know that we're very
sensitive to your -- your coments and this is
somet hi ng that the Board is going to work
diligently on and hopefully nake sone changes for
the district. Thank you very much.

M5. KEMP: | appreciate that on behal f of
Real tors but also on behalf of our residents in our
community. Thank you.

CHAIR GARCI A: Yes, ma'am Thank you.

Next, Bi shop Kelvin Cobaris. Bishop, please

state your nane for the record and tell us if

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

15

you're here in a representative capacity.

Bl SHOP COBARI S: Good norning. | am Kel vin
Cobaris, and | amrepresenting Cobaris Mnistries,
along with our community health clergy that make up
here our African-American student clergies here in
Central Florida.

| want to first say, before | speak, |I'mglad
to be before this commttee and this Board agai n.
| cane on the first neeting as a person who offered
the invocation, and now |I'mback to speak to this
robust commttee to address you today. | want to
thank you for all the work that you're doing to
make a difference. And | want to give a speci al
recognition to denn Glzean for his work and his
i nvestnent that he is making through his | eadership
that we see the inpacts of around this community,
so thank you all.

This morning | rise as a native of Orange
County, Florida. There's many in this roomthat
cannot wtness that, but |I'ma person who was born
and reared here in Ol ando, Florida and wat ched
this particular city -- or town at once turn into
the city of the place that it is today. Even
| ooking at the growt h of our econony and our city,

as a native |I've had an opportunity, and as a

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

16

pastor, to work hand-in-hand and stand

shoul der -t o-shoul der specifically wth the inpact
and i npressi on nmade upon our young peopl e, which
are not just our future but that are even inportant
t oday.

And with that being said, what | rose to speak
about is inpact fees. |Inpact fees are a powerf ul
tool for shaping a brighter future for our
communi ties, and by investing these funds in
yout h-ori ented services, we're not just supporting
t he next generation, we're |laying the groundworKk
for sustai nabl e workforce and safer nei ghbor hoods.

These services provide our youth with
i nval uabl e skills and opportunities enpowering them
to becone active contributing nenbers of society.
This investnent in human capital pays dividends. A
skill ed, engaged workforce is the backbone of a
thriving econony. Moreover, by creating safe,
nurturing environnents for our young people, we're
fostering a sense of security and conmmunity
cohesi veness, cohesi on.

This is nore than investnent in services. It
is an investnent in our collective future. Every
doll ar we channel toward these initiatives returns

to us manifold in the formof a robust, skilled

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

wor kf orce and a vibrant, secure conmunity. Let's
enbrace i npact fees as a steppingstone toward a
sust ai nabl e and prosperous future for all.

| was telling ny teamjust the other day in
our team neeting that the sign of mature
community -- sign of a mature organi zation is
cooperation. Thank you.

CHAI R GARCI A: Bi shop, thank you for your
coments. And when | saw your nane on the card,
renmenbering the invocati on you gave earlier, | was
hopi ng you'd gi ve us anot her beautiful invocation.
And in terms of your coments about youth services,
| assune that you're aware of the prograns that
M. Gl zean has inplenented at the district that
are brand new for the youth.

And let ne just alert you, in terns of your

comrent s about inpact fees, that you' re going to

17

hear nore from sone of the experts that have put an

audit together about that. GCkay. But thank you
for your comments, Bishop.

And, next, Lisa HIl. Again, Ms. Hll, state
your nanme for the record, and if you're here in a
representative capacity, please tell us who you
represent.

M5. HILL: Good norning. | amlLisa HII. |

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

18

am t he 2023 president of the Ol ando Regi onal

Real tor Association, and |I'm al so a busi ness owner
and Realtor in the Olando area for 37 years.

was born and raised in Olando, so |I'"'malso a

nati ve.

' mhere to speak today about our
transportation crisis. Wile Olando is globally
renowned for its thenme parks, entertai nnent, and
hospitality, there exists a growing crisis wthits
transportation infrastructure. The struggle for
reliable and effective transportation is
particularly acute to the | owwage workers who form
t he backbone in the tourismindustry in Ol ando.

Today we delve into the transportation
chal | enges faced by these essential workers
exploring the far-reaching inplications of
under - funded and i nadequate public transportation.
For exanple, the comute tines in key areas where
these workers nust live, Pine Hlls, Poinciana,

W nter Garden, Kissinmee, can range anywhere by bus
from one-and-a-half to three hours.

If you | ook at the Lynx transportation system
we have 700 -- or 310 buses to cover 2,500 square
mles; whereas, a city the size of Pittsburgh,

which is very simlar to our -- our area, they have

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

19

700 buses for 745 square mles. SunRail, it was
supposed to be a great option; however, the
l[imtations that SunRail, with their tines of
service in trains, doesn't work for these workers.

Let us recogni ze the urgency of creating
transportation infrastructure that aligns with the
needs of our grow ng conmmunity. Through shared
responsibility, innovative solutions, and
community-driven initiatives, we can pave the way
for nore inclusive, efficient, and sustai nable
transportation systemthat benefits all of our
residents and our workers.

The transportation chall enges faced by those
living and working in the district corridor are
nmul ti-faceted and denand urgent attention. As we
delve into the details, let us collectively
consi der innovative sol utions, increased funding,
and community support to create a transportation
infrastructure that serves the needs of all.

| want to thank you for your time today. As a
nati ve of the Ol ando area, transportation has
al ways been a problem Thank you.

CHAIR GARCIA: M. Hill, thank you so nuch for
your comments, and your conments are very tinely.

You'll hear from sone experts that have provided

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

20

sone reports relative to the district and its

hi storical operations. And one of the things that
you will see addressed is the traffic problens that
you identified, and so your comments are tinely,
and we very nuch appreciate them Thank you.

M. HILL: Thank you.

CHAIR GARCI A: Next, Deidre Graybill. Pl ease
state your nane for the record, and if you're here
in a representative capacity, please tell us who
you represent, m' am

MS. GRAYBILL: Good norning, everyone, and

t hank you for this opportunity. M nane is Deidre

Gaybill. I1'"ma real estate broker and property
manager. |'m standi ng here today representing ny
smal|l business that | own. |'malso a spouse of a

di sabl ed veteran in the Arny, and | sit as the
incomng first VP for the Ol ando Real tor
Associ ati on.

So being a licensed real estate broker and
property nanager, | have served many residents in
this district, in this area, and that conmmute and
work in this particular district, so |I'mvery
abreast to the needs of those residents. M
experience has been a lot with renters and the cost

burden that they are experiencing with the | ack of

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

21

incone as it relates to the cost of renting. |
happen to work for investors that are true

i nvestors and allow ne to do ny job to best serve
the residents, so ny goal is to keep the rent as
low as | can so that | can have a | ong-termtenant.

Unfortunately, it's -- that's not the case
today. The ever-present need for obtainable
housing initiatives is highly underserved in the
touri smoversight district. The surge in eviction
filings in Orange County exposes nore famlies to
honel essness. And the honel essness situation in
the area surrounding Walt Disney -- the Walt D sney
Wrld, is a nulti-faceted chall enge that demands a
coordi nated and conpassi onate response.

Addr essi ng the honel essness crisis goes beyond
statistical analysis. It requires a commtnment to
a systemati c change, affordabl e and obtai nabl e
housi ng solutions. As ny col |l eague spoke
previ ously, obtainable housing plus transportation
decr eases honel essness. As the Board stated -- you
said it earlier, sir, that the Board is exploring
i deas for obtainable housing. These concerning
facts that | think collectively reflect the urgency
of addressi ng honel essness in this vibrant

community. Seeking sustainable solutions to ensure

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

22

that the magic within Central Florida extends to
every resident providing themwth the security of
a place to call hone. The workers conme from near
and far, and they're conmng to this area to work.
Thank you again for the opportunity.

CHAI R GARCI A: Thank you for your comments,
Ms. Graybill. First of all, thank your husband for
his service to our country, and your conmments, too,
are very tinely. You will hear in -- from sone
experts today in ternms of the quality of life
i ssues that have been created because the district
does not have housing within the 39-square-ml e
area. And that is an area that this Board is going
to work very hard to resolve. So thank you again
for your comments. They're very tinely.

MS. GRAYBI LL: Thank you very much.

MR. BARAKAT: Yeah. M. Chair, if I mght
just add, one, | appreciate the presence of the
Real tor community. You know, this is -- this is --
you-all are a key cog in sort of the econony of
really the State of Florida, Central Florida, and
provide a vital service. So thank you for -- and
your eyes and ears to informfolks in their
obt ai ni ng of housing, which is really a fundanent al

pi ece of 1iving.

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

23

So | personally and professionally appreciate
what you do, and | appreci ate your comments here.
And | just -- you have ny personal reassurance,
this -- the crisis of affordable housing is
sonmething that we -- | personally take very
seriously. | know everyone el se on this Board
does, and there -- there is only so nuch that this
Board can do, but there is sonething that this
Board can do, and | think it's sonething that has
not been paid enough attention to historically by

our predecessors, but it's certainly top of m nd

going forward. | think you'll hear nore about that
as we get intoit. So we thank you for those
comrent s.

CHAI R GARCI A: Thank you very nuch for those
coment s.

And t hen, next, Debie MDonal d. Wl cone back,
Debie. The floor is yours, ma' am

M5. MCDONALD: Thank you. Good norning, ny
nanme i s Debie McDonald, and I1'd |like to wish the
origi nal enpl oyees of Reedy Creek, including the
over 50 who have left, a very Merry Christmas.

To the Board, and especially to Ms. Ziegler,
who i s not present today, | hope 2024 will be a

much better year for you.

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

24

Free speech is inportant. Congress wll make
no | aw respecting an establishnent of religion or
prohi biting the free exercise thereof or bridging
t he freedom of speech or the press or the right of
t he peopl e peacefully to assenble and to petition
t he governnment for a -- address of grievances.

The thing about free speech is we don't get to
choose what we want to accept or what we want to
hear. |If we chip away at it, it starts to erode
and our denocracy is at risk. There's many things
that we don't want to hear, but it's inportant, and
we need to respect that we live in a country where
we have the right for those things to be said.

Today a nenber of our Board, who is attending
virtually, perhaps, is a great exanple of free
speech. It is not ny place to judge her behavi or
or that of her husband. They deserve their day in
court. The governor has called on her husband,
Christian Ziegler, to resign his position wth the
Florida GOP in the wake of serious crimnal
al l egations. Bridget should follow. The governor
has good reason. No natter what, the details
surrounding this famly's legal trouble, it is a
distraction. |In her case, it is a distraction from

t he governance of this Board.

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

25

Ms. Ziegler has not nmade Florida a better
place. She is the face of the Don't Say Gay
revol ution, which brought this Board to where it is
to this place today, and has caused untold harmin
our classroons and in our conmmunities. Many
famlies have left ny community of Celebration in
fear because they believe that the State -- that
the State is persecuting themand their children.

Teachers have | ost their jobs over these
policies. Her roles in denonizing nenbers of the
LGBTQ community is hurting the state, while she has
apparently been a part of the letter B in that
group. This hypocrisy -- this is hypocrisy at its
finest.

Bridget, you need to do what is best for the
greater good. W live in a free Florida, not a
autocratic pseudo-Christian dictatorship. Wat
Ms. Ziegler does privately with ot her consenting
adults is no nore our business than it is the
behavi or of the other consenting adults she
pretends to find abhorrent. It is the rank -- it
is rank hypocrisy of attacking others for what she
personally practices that should disqualify her for
a position of public trust. Thank you.

CHAI R GARCI A: Yeah. Debie, thank you very

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

26

much for your comments, particularly, with respect
to free speech. As you know this Board has

i mpl enented several new policies, and one of the
new policies is we now have a public coment
section as part of our agenda for the neetings,
which is new And so we are big proponents of free
speech, which has given you an opportunity to speak
at al nost every one of our neetings.

MS. MCDONALD: And I'mglad to hear also for
the housing. | net with denn tw ce about that
issue. In Cctober, he said we woul d have a
followup for our comunity and our County of
GCsceola County with Mary Downing. That was in
Cct ober, but when you get a chance, we're | ooking
forward to following up on that. Thank you.

CHAI R GARCI A: Thank you for those comments,

t 0o.

Next, Chris WIlls. And, M. WIls, if you're
here in a representative capacity, please tell us,
sir, who you represent.

MR WLLS: Good norning, M. Chairnan. I
want to thank you for giving ne deference. | know
| was a little bit |ate past the begi nning of the
meeti ng, but thank you for giving nme the

opportunity to speak.

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

27

Last neeting | provided you-all wth a few
docunents. | have just one to provide you- al
today. | don't know if you-all want to pass that
out or give it to themat sone point later. So ny
nane is Chris WIlls, and, again, |I'mhere on behalf
of Disney Defenders. W are a political action
conmmttee that is working to anend Florida's
constitution, to restore Reedy Creek, and to
prohibit political retaliation in our state.

At last neeting, we provided you-all pink
slips, and the purpose of that was to put you-all
on notice that once we collect the signatures
needed, and this passes on the ballot, your
services will no | onger be needed. The purpose |I'm
here today is to provide enpl oynent applications.
Last neeting was pink slips, today we're providing
enpl oynent applications. They're not for you,

t hough.

As Board nenbers, | would i magi ne you-all are
as concerned as all of us are, as sone of the
ot hers that have nade public coments have already
spoken about, about those who have served this
district loyally, have been public servants to nake
sure that everybody who visits this area have the

best possi bl e experience, and nany of them have had

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

28

to flee their jobs or have been fired. And not
bei ng enpl oyed over the holidays is particularly
difficult, so this enploynent application is for
those fornmer Reedy Creek enpl oyees.

D sney Defenders is working with community
partners to help hire those who have had to fl ee
because of the chaos and corruption that have been
brought to this district. So we encourage you, if
you are, in fact, concerned about the welfare of
t hese fol ks who have been good public servants, to
hel p us get those enpl oynent applications to those
fol ks, and anybody who is a former Reedy Creek
enpl oyee can enail us at the
di sneydefenders@nuail.com if they want to send us
their resune. And we encourage everybody that is
wat chi ng, and everybody who is concerned, about the
dangers that are being posed to the Anmerican dream
and make Di sney's dream possible to join us in this
effort, to sign our petitions at
di sneydef enders. com And, again, M. Chairnman, I
really appreciate the opportunity to address
you-al |l again today.

CHAI R GARCI A: So, M. WIlls --

MR, WLLS: Yes.

CHAIR GARCIA: -- | wanted to |let you know

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

29

that we've got a rule here that if you're going to
make public coments that you need to sign your
public comrent card before the neeting. And I
think you know that this card -- your card was j ust
delivered to nme. You know, you just got here ten
m nutes ago. So it was, you know, 40 m nutes | ate,
but | recogni zed you because at the | ast neeting
you nade it very clear that you're pronoting pink
slips to renove this Board. But | want everybody
to know that everybody is welcone to speak here.
Ckay.

MR WLLS: | appreciate it.

CHAIR GARCIA: And | knew you were here on
behal f of an organi zation related to D sney. And I
knew t hat your coments woul d not be favorable to
this Board, and I want you and everybody to
recogni ze that I noved you to the top of the |ist
so you coul d speak i nmmedi ately when you got here.

MR WLLS: | truly appreciate that. And,
again, just to be clear, | did | ook over the rules,
and there's nothing that stipulates that you have
to sign up before the neeting begins, but we
appreci ate the opportunity to speak. And we want
to make sure that the public is aware that we

should not just sit back and all ow authoritariani sm

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

30

to take root in our state, and that's why we're
wor ki ng together to undo the danage that's been
done.

CHAIR GARCIA: Ckay. And thank you for your
comrents and for your civility, sir.

MR. WLLS: Thank you very nuch. W
appreciate it.

MR. LANGLEY: M. Chair, | just wanted to
confirmthat you' re correct, we do have a rul e that
says exactly what you said. Rule 4.3.2, it says,
"Prior to the start of the public comments segment
of a neeting, anyone w shing to address the Board
shall submt a request for public input to the
Clerk of the Board identifying several itens of
information," so, anyway, just wanted to correct
the record, that you're correct on that.

CHAIR GARCIA: The only thing | would ask,

M. WIIls, is next tinme just try to be on tine
because if you get here late, and we're already out
of the public coments section --

MR WLLS: That | understand. That is in the
rul es.

CHAI R GARCI A: -- then, at that point, | don't
think we'd |l et you speak, but so, you know, nake --

we're always -- you're always wel cone and you're

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

31

al ways wel cone to speak your peace.

MR WLLS: | do appreciate that. Thank you
very much.

CHAI R GARCI A: Thank you. Next, M na
Robi nson. And state your nane for the record,
ma'am and if you're here in a representative
capacity, please tell us who you represent.

M5. ROBI NSON:  Good norning, everyone. |
won't take up too nmuch of your tinme. M nane is
M na Robinson. |1'mthe president of Small Business
Advocates of Central Florida. Wat we do as an
organi zation is advocate for small businesses to
have an opportunity to participate in contracting
opportunities in the private and public sector;
nore so in the private sector because we don't see
a large array of advocacy for our snall businesses
in that area.

What you-all are discussing in regards to the
policy to all ow veteran-owned and smal |l busi nesses
to contract with D sney would be crucial for our
smal |l businesses in this area. This will give them
hope of the possibility of having an opportunity to
do business with Disney, along with out-of-state
bi g corporations and | arge conpani es that are

currently doing all of the work.

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

32

Thank you, board nenbers, and especially
M. G| zean, for considering such a trenendously
val ued opportunity to our veteran-owned and snal
busi ness community. Thank you.

CHAI R GARCI A: M. Robinson, thank you for
your comments. And we're going to address this
later in the neeting, but | thought it would be
appropriate. M. GIlzean, could you just nention
because of your new policy, procurenent policy, the
amount of new awards that have gone to small
busi nesses and vet er an- owned busi nesses that never
had an opportunity before to bid and get work from
the district.

MR. G LZEAN. Absolutely. As of
Novenber 30th, we had over $51 million worth of
contracts that were deployed. Fifteen mllion of
that went to brand new vendors, 9 mllion went to
our Buy Local efforts, where these are conpani es
t hat were headquartered in Orange, Gsceol a, Lake,
Pol k, and Sem nol e Counties. And we're excited
that -- to say that we just got started. 1In |less
than three nonths, we've achieved that type of
goal. So as we get ready -- | don't want to junp
ahead against ny report, but we have sone good

stuff as we forecast going forward.

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

33

So before you | eave here today, |let's nake
sure | get your contact information, not only for
yoursel f, but for your menmbership, and I wll ask
you that if it's okay for ne to cone and speak to
your nenbership, so that way we can continue to get
t hem engaged with our work that we're dong.

M5. ROBI NSON:  Yes, that woul d be perfect.
Thank you so nuch.

CHAIR GARCI A: And, Ms. Robinson, please tell
your constituents that, thanks to M. G| zean, the
district is open for the small businesses that you
represent.

M5. ROBINSON: That's wonderful. Thank you,
M. Gl zean.

CHAI R GARCI A: Next, Lorena Torres. Please
state your nanme for the record, and if you're here
in a representative capacity, please tell us who
you represent, nma'am

M5. TORRES: Good norning. Thank you for
having me here. M nane is Lorena Torres. |'m
w th Communi cate 360. Communi cate 360 is a
mar keti ng service. W put -- we nmake your brand
| ook great but also representing snall busi nesses.
We cane from Col onbia in 2001, and since then we

acquire a business, and we're growing it. W're

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

34

certified mnorities. W're wonen-owned --
certified wonen- owned busi ness, and the inportance
to support a small business is huge.

So | guess the small business, we are
passi onat e about what we do. W want to offer a
great service and nore personalized. So we have
worked with all kind of business, but in terns
of -- we've worked with sheriff departnents and
wth cities and different entities. And just
havi ng consi derati on that when you are supporting
smal | busi ness, the community is growi ng. W give
back a ot to the community in different ways. Not
necessarily nonetary, but we, as small business, we
give a |lot back to the comunity because we
believe -- we work with our heart. So |I think the
opportunity that you are giving to snmall business
is going to nmake grow not only Central Fl orida,
whoever support small business is nmaking a better
community. Thank you.

CHAI R GARCI A: Thanks, Ms. Torres. And as you
know, there's a direct relationship between first
imm grants and the origination of small busi nesses,
and so thank you for comng to this country. And
if M. GIlzean doesn't have your card, nake sure he

has your card, too, because we're now open to those

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

35

smal | busi nesses you represent. Thank you.

M5. TORRES: Thank you very nuch.

CHAI R GARCI A: Kevin Fernandez. Sir, please
state your full nanme for the record and tell us if
you represent sonebody.

MR. FERNANDEZ: How are you guys doi ng? Good
norni ng. Kevin Fernandez. Thank you guys for
having me today. |'mhere representing Prem um
Construction on behalf of you guys putting out the
new order for you guys to do work with snal
contractors like us with D sney. And, you know,
speaking in terns of our experience, we've worked
wth AdventHealth since 2011, and we've worked, you
know, in high traffic volune areas. W' ve dealt
w th containnment, 24/7 calls, energency calls, and
working with a conpany |i ke D sney would benefit us
a | ot because we have the guys who have the
experience to work in those type of places, but
also to contribute into an area where kids |ove to
experience and kids have a great tine. |It's
sonet hing that our guys would love to do. So the
opportunity for us would be -- would be essenti al,
and, again, thank you for pushing for sonething
li ke this. Thank you.

CHAI R GARCI A: Thank you, M. Fernandez. So

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

36

we can't help you in terns of any work with D sney.
But, as you know, M. G| zean has opened the door
for work with the district, and so that door is
open, and if M. G lzean doesn't have your card,
make sure he gets it, and thank you for your
comrent s.

MR. FERNANDEZ: Thank you.

CHAI R GARCI A: Next, Javier Adanes. D d |
pronounce that right, sir?

MR ADAMES:. Yes.

CHAIR GARCIA: And with a nane |li ke Garcia, |
shoul d pronounce that right. So please state your
nane for the record and if you represent anyone.

MR. ADAMES:. Hi, good norning, ny nanme is
Javi er Adanes, and |I'm president of JCQ Services.
We are a general contractor, certified mnority,
based in Olando. Qur conpany has remarkabl e
hi story of being wlling, able, and ready, and we
have conplete set of projects wthin the district.

One cruci al aspect that we wish to highlight
today is the inportance of |ocal businesses |like us
havi ng the opportunity to contract with the
district. When snmall businesses |ike us secure
contracts, it's not just about our growh, it's

about the strengthening the fabric of our

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

37

community. These contracts allow us to invest in
| ocal talent, create job opportunities for our
fell ow residents, and boost the |ocal econony.

Mor eover, snmall businesses are known for their
commtnent to the community. W take great pride
in giving back to the conmmunity. W actively
participate in local initiatives, to sponsor
community events, and support |ocal charities
t hrough our graduate fund. Wen small businesses
thrive, the community flourish, as well. W invite
to support small and veteran-owned busi nesses in
the district by making it a requirenent rather than
a goal, our participation as a prine contract or
suppliers.

Let's work together to foster a thriving
i nterconnected and prosperous comunity. Thank you
for your tine and attention. W |look forward for
the discussions that will follow and just
renenber, JCQis always able, wlling to do
business in the district.

CHAI R GARCI A: Thank you very nmuch for your
comments. And it's really awesone to see so nany
smal | busi nesses know that the door is open and
attend these neetings. You' re welcone at any of

t hese neetings, and thank you for speaking, sir.

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

38

Jon Shirey. Jon, we know who you are.

Wel cone back. Just for those who may not know who
you are, tell them who you are.

MR, SHI REY: Good norning, everybody. M/ nane
is Jon Shirey. |I'mthe president for the Reedy
Creek Professional Firefighters. And, yes, | have
been here nmany tines, so it's a pleasure, and thank
you for having ne back and allowng ne a few
m nutes to speak.

|"ve had the pleasure of working with
M. Gl zean over the past year, and we've been able
to coll aboratively work through so many i ssues
that, you know, happens whenever there's | eadership
change. And, honestly, | think we've worked
t hrough them you know, in a very positive manner.
And in a manner that has been beneficial to the
enpl oyees as a whol e.

One of the things I've cone to find about
denn is that when he nmakes a commtnent to do
sonet hi ng, you can guarantee that it actually gets
done. That's sonething I'mnot used to from
previ ous | eadership, so, certainly, I want to give
credit to you for that.

And with that in mnd, there have been a

coupl e of announcenents that have been nade, you

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

39

know, by denn that | assune would be on the
Board' s behal f about additional holidays and bonus
things for all the district enployees. And so |
just wanted to kind of highlight that achievenent.
| nean, that's sonething that -- you're giving your
enpl oyees nore tine to spend with their famlies
over the holidays and to really take that tine to
focus on what matters at hone so that they can cone
back, you know, January 1, ready to go and take on
all the challenges of the district.

| know you've got big plans, so you need that
out of your enployees. And so, you know, on
Novenber 3rd, there was an announcenment you guys
were extending Veterans Day to all district
enpl oyees. On Novenber 14th, you announced t hat
you were addi ng the day before Thanksgiving for all
di strict enployees, and then on the 29th you
announce four nore holidays, as well as a $5, 000
bonus for all of your enployees. And it couldn't
cone at a better time for nost people.

Gbvi ously, the holidays, they're spending
noney on their famlies and friends, |oved ones.
So on behalf of all the enpl oyees, we just
appreci ate you guys doing that for them It wasn't

sonet hing that you had to do, but | think you did

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

40

out of recognition of the service that all of the
enpl oyees of the district have made to keep this
thing running despite all of the changes, so
definitely wanted to say thank you for that.

Wth that in mnd, G enn, | have an
opportunity. | would appreciate it if you would be
my guest at the I AFF, which is the International
Associ ation of Firefighters. W have our affiliate
| eadership training summt that will be in January
fromthe 25th to the 28th. There will be | eaders
of organizations |like nyself fromall over the U S
and Canada. On average, we see in attendance
bet ween 2,500 to 3,000 | eaders, and very often --
you know, we've hosted the last three tines in a
row. |'mgiven an opportunity to speak and also to
invite a guest to speak, and if you woul d consi der
that, I'd like for you to be our guest speaker for
this event. So appreciate that.

And then if you'll bear with ne for just one
| ast second. | have sone recognition for
Ms. Paula. |In all of ny dealings -- | know she's
your right-hand woman, and she does a fantastic
job. She has been not hi ng but the utnost
professional. Like denn, when she says sonething

Is going to get done, it gets done, and, honestly,

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

41

wth an efficiency that |'ve probably never seen
out of a workplace ever. So definitely appreciate
t hat .

And then to Acting Chief Ferrari. This man
has taken the reins of a departnent that was kind
of left adrift by a previous fire chief and has
really taking it and run with it as if he is the
fire chief. And | think when you | ook at who you
want as a | eader, | nean, sonebody that's willing
to step up and take on the chall enges w thout the
official title or pay or anything el se that goes
wth it, I think you ve got a real |eader there.
So thank you guys. Have a Merry Chri st nmas.

CHAI R GARCI A: Thank you, Jon, and Merry
Christmas to you, and thank you for your comments
about recognition of the new | eadershi p and what
it's bringing to the district.

Next, Jacki e Espi nosa. Please state your full
nane, and if you're here in a representative
capacity, please tell us who you represent, nma' am

MS. ESPI NCSA: M nane is Jacki e Espinosa, and
today | represent Enpresas Espinosa, which is a
busi ness we established 32 years ago when we noved
to Central Florida. W own several businesses in

the historic district of downtown Kissinmee, nostly

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

42

now in the restaurant industry, hospitality. So we
own Mat ador, Kissinmee D ner, and by virtue of
under st andi ng how to obtai n procurenent, we were
able to get the Kissimee Marina, Big Toho -- Big
Lake Toho Mari na.

So we understand the inportance of procurenent
for snmall businesses. 1It's hel ped us over the hunp
after COVID, specifically, which, of course,
everyone knows how COVI D went through the
restaurant industry.

Additionally, | represent the Latin Amrerican
Chanber of Commerce as their vice chair. And wth
that | say that | understand the inportance for
smal | businesses to thrive, and that will happen
w th what you've put in place with the procurenent
opportunities for small businesses. And |I'm here
today just to thank you for that because if you
keep that noney | ocal, we, as snmall businesses,
based on the SBA statistics, support two-thirds of
enpl oyment within our country. And | am honored to
be a part of, not just that chanber but of that
smal |l part of downtown Kissinmmee that hel ps and
gui des ot her busi nesses, mnority businesses,
additionally, woman-owned and veteran-owned, to

obtain the correct tools to be able to obtain these

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

43

procur ement opportunities.

So thank you for opening up the door for us.
Regardl ess of the anount of years we've been in
busi ness, the nature of all these businesses is
sonmetines at risk with the current econony. So
thank you, all. | just want to commend everyone
for the opportunity to speak today.

CHAIR GARCIA: Wl |, you' re welcone, and you
can thank M. Gl zean for that. And it's wonderful
to see a Latina entrepreneur. That's awesone. So
t hank you for your comrents, na' am

M5. ESPI NOSA: Thank you, sir.

MR. BARAKAT: Yeah, M. Chair, | just have to
add. | know we tend not to comment on the public
comrent, but |I'mjust overwhelnmed, frankly, by the
turnout fromthe small business community. | nean,
I'mfortunate to be the son of an i mm grant snal
busi ness owner, the husband of an i nm grant snall
busi ness owner. Snmall businesses are the -- truly
t he backbone of the econony. This district for a
long time was nmanaged for the benefit of one very
| arge corporation, and with the help of other |arge
corporations. And | think the page that we've
turned on that front, thanks to M. Gl zean's

| eadership, is truly making -- not just in terns of

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

44

our transparency and accountability, but truly
nmoving the needle in the -- in Central Florida's
econony. It's one of the things I'm nost proudest
of , of what we've done, and |I'mreally | ooking
forward to the inpact it's goi ng have goi ng
forward. And this feedback is profoundly

meani ngful, and | would just say, particularly, to
the nmenbers of the Latin comunity (Speaking

Spani sh) .

So thank you, all, and that goes for all the
other inmm grant comunities, as well. W're really
| ooking forward to working with you and ot her snal
busi nesses.

CHAI R GARCI A: Thank you for those conments.
Ckay. Last but not last, M. Love. He needs no
i ntroduction, but for the record, just tell us your
full name, and if you're here in a representative
capacity, sir.

MR. LOVE: Good norning, good norning. M

nane is Rod Love. |I'mthe president of the Florida
Econom ¢ Consortium Man, | tell you, I'm
overwhel ned by what |1've heard today. | want to

start out by saying to the Board, |eadership is not
easy, and I'msitting in this roomand I'm

listening to what's taking place. I'mlistening to

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

45

t he exchange. And, boy, | tell you, the | eadership
that you're exenplifying is the type of | eadership
t hat nore people need to know about.

M. G Ilzean and Ms. Hoi sington, Jon nentioned
sonething earlier, and |I've never met Jon before,
and I want say to Jon, man, | |ove your spirit of
cooperation. | hate speaking after pastors, and
there was a pastor that spoke earlier, and | said,

man, he's taking all of ny tal king points here.

But then | listened to other speakers, and
what | hear is | hear the spirit of cooperation.
What | hear is | hear that we want to get things

done, that we're tired of listening to people talk
the talk, we're ready to walk the walk. | hear
about affordable housing. [|'mlisteni ng about
services to youth, and |I'm excited about what we're
tal ki ng about here today, but | want to tie it in
to sone of the other things that are in existence.
Wien we tal k about the Live Local Act and how
it ties into privatization, howit ties into
contracting, how it builds upon communities.
Bi shop Cobari s spoke about chil dren services, and
that's what | was going to speak about. Everything
that he's tal king about, I'msitting back sayi ng,

cone on, nman, cut that, that's ny part.

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

But when we tal k about engaging in
communities, we're tal king about not | eadi ng by
popul arity, we're tal king about maki ng the hard,
tough decisions. And I'mlistening to
vet er an- owned busi nesses stand up here and neke a
plea to this Board that they want to be engaged.
They want to be involved, but there's a rippling
effect toit. There's a rippling effect that
i mpacts communities. There's a rippling effect
t hat i npacts econoni es, sustai nable work forces.
And so when we have these conversations -- and |
was going to tal k about dedi cated fundi ng sources.

| was the deputy secretary of the State
Departnent of Juvenile Justice, $740 mllion budget
operation. | was the forner O ange County
comm ssioner. W had to neke deci sions about a
$7 billion budget. W had to nake hard, tough
decisions, and | see that's no different than what
you guys are sitting up here doi ng today.

| just want to say to everybody sitting here,
and al so just address it to the Board, and your
| eadership. |I'mexcited. |'ma Florida native.
Thirty-three years living in Central Florida, and
|*ve sat in board roons such as this over ny

career. | sit on boards. |I'msitting here taking

46

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

47

notes, and |'ve never been nore excited than | am
t oday because | see new opportunity. | see the
ability for everybody to cone to the table. And
when | say everybody, | nean everybody. | just
want to say to this Board, thank you for your

| eadership, leading is not easy, and it doesn't
appear that you're | eading by popularity, you're
maki ng t he tough decisions. Thank you.

CHAIR GARCIA: M. Love, let ne just ask you a
question. Did you play baseball?

MR LOVE: | played football.

CHAIR GARCIA: Ckay. Wll, fromlistening to
your presentation, if you played baseball, you
woul d have been a great clean-up batter, sir.

MR. LOVE: Thank you. Appreciate it, thank
you.

CHAIR GARCI A: Next, that does it for the
public comments. And now t he consent agenda. The
only thing on the consent agenda is our m nutes
fromthe last neeting. |s there a notion?

MR. AUNGST: Move approval

CHAIR GARCIA: |Is there a second?

MR. BARAKAT: Second.

CHAI R GARCI A: Any di scussi on?

All in favor, please indicate by saying aye.

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

THE BOARD. Aye.

CHAIR GARCIA: Ckay. Let the record refl ect
that the notion passes unani nously.

Next, M. G| zean, nmanagenent report.

MR G LZEAN: Al right. You know, our
awesomnme uni on president stole sonme of ny thunder,
and then the Chair stole sone of ny thunder, so

this is going to be a relativity quick report.

All right. So our district has several
posi tive devel opnents that |'m proud to report.
First, | have a status update on the operations of

the fire departnent's inpressive staffing nunbers.
I will also provide a brief fiscal overview report
to the Board regarding the district's significant
cost - savi ng program

We have positive devel opnments as we work
towards a resolution regarding our tax liability
for our enployees and retirees. And, lastly, I

have some personnel consideration for the Board,

48

i ncl udi ng our suppl enental performance award policy

for staff nenbers.

| would like to begin with the fire
depart nent. Qur acting chief, Eric Ferrari, has
been conpletely dedicated to the mssion. His

determnation to fully staff our fire departnent

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

49

wth the very best has led to safety and wel | - bei ng
for all who work and play wiwthin the district.
Earlier this year the district include -- increased
the starting pay of firefighters/paranedics by
$10,000 to the current salary of $65,000. This

pl aces our fire departnent as one of the region's
top five paid fire departnents.

In ess than a week our fire departnent w ||

be fully staffed. Let ne say that again. 1In |less
than a week we will be fully staffed. It is
estimated that the district will be one of only a

few regi onal departnents to achieve this status.
There are several factors that contributes to this
operation excellence. To nane a couple, the
district will prioritize conpensating our
firefighters fairly, but it also has a reputation,
as you heard earlier, that this is the greatest
pl ace to work.

Additionally, our district is unique about --
regardi ng the nunber of tourists who visit
t hroughout the world, and their safety is our top
priority. | would like to take a few seconds to
bring up nmy good acting fire chief, Eric Ferrari,
to say a coupl e words.

MR. FERRARI : Thank you, M. Gl zean. Good

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

50

nmor ni ng, Chairman Garcia, and nenbers of the Board.
|"mEric Ferrari. |I'mthe acting fire chief of the
Reedy Creek Fire Departnent. Thank you for those
comrents. Just a little nore detail about that.

So it was just over three nonths ago | was
appointed to the position of acting chief, and, as
such, | immediately created a list of priorities
for the departnent know ng exactly where our needs
were. You can only have one absolute priority in
order to have a priority list, and | nade that
priority staffing. This departnent, for pushing
al nost ten years, has not been fully staffed with
all frontline positions.

So |l met with ny | eadership team and set the
direction, set the goals. A tough acconpli shnent
because | set the benchmark that | wanted it done
by the end of the year. An incredible nunber of
resources, hours, tinme spent in nultiple
i nterviews, physical assessnents, practical
assessnments, multiple levels of | eadership team
several hundred applicants across every position in
t he departnent. A grueling, grueling task.

Sone of the staff even cane back and asked
could we push the deadline out to January or

February. W stayed the course. | told themwe'l|

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

51

reap the reward in the end. And on Decenber 11th,
wth the onboarding of the 20-plus new hires in the
fire departnent, including 911 dispatch, paranedic,
and firefighter/paranmedic, we will be conpletely
and fully staffed across all positions. And we

w || experience the change to our staffing in about
si X weeks when sone of those people will be

rel eased fromtheir orientation

W have a plan to orient themthrough the
hol i days. Even that took some creativity on behal f
of the | eadership team | nust take a nmonent to
comend them and all of the rank and file that
contributed to the assessnent process because it
was a |l engthy five-to-six-week process where they
were in interview roons and out on training grounds
assessi ng dozens and dozens and dozens of
candi dat es.

And, ultimately, this will inpact our work
force because we are experiencing a high vol une of
forced overtine. People that are expecting to go
home at 8:00 in the norning, and then get call ed
and say you can't go hone, you have to stay,
because we do continue to deliver great service to
our community. That was never affected. This

ultimately wll bring sone relief to our workforce,

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

52

nmuch needed wor kf orce.

As their fire chief, | heard them | knew
exactly what they wanted and what we wanted as a
departnent to continue to deliver great service,
and, nost of all, take care of the great people,
the nen and wonen, that nake up our fire
departnment. Thank you.

CHAI R GARCI A: Thank you.

MR AUNGST: M. Chair. Chief Ferrari, thank
you for your | eadership and your service. And,

M. G| zean, thank you for your | eadership. And
M. Shirey, thank you for your coll aborative

| eadership. When |I first got involved about, |
guess, ten nonths ago now, one of the biggest
concerns | had in speaking to our nen and wonen in
our fire departnent was that the staffing | evel had
not been increased since the 1980s, which, al ong
wth a lot of frontline vehicles that were over 15
years old, really had nme concerned. And in a very
short period of time, with your | eadership and

d enn's | eadershi p and Jon's | eadershi p, we've been
able to really accelerate bringing this departnent
where it needs to be as the best departnent in the
State of Florida. So | want to thank you-all, al

three of you, and I want to |let the nmen and wonen

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

53

of the fire departnent and all of our team nenbers
know how nuch we appreciate you. And we're not
going to stop until this is the absolute best place
to work. So | appreciate it. Thank you.

MR. FERRARI: Thank you very nuch.

CHAI R GARCI A: Thank you for your comments,
Supervi sor Aungst, and thank you, Chief, for your
comrent s.

MR. FERRARI : Thank you.

MR G LZEAN: Al right. Next item so one of
our other top priorities of the district has been
pronoti ng good financial stewardship of taxpayer
dollars. To that end, we restructured our
pur chasi ng process. The Board adopted a new
procurenment policy. W opened every contract up
for bidding while prioritizing |ocal and
vet er an- owned busi ness.

Contai ned wthin the econom c i npact report,
as of Novenber 30th, three nonths in, we have saved
all taxpayers $4.2 mllion. Let ne say that again,
$4.2 million. And | couldn't have done this
w t hout the help of Tiffany Kinball and her
procuremnment team because they worked diligently to
ensure that taxpayer dollars are being spent in the

nost efficient, and ensuring that al so we have the

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

54

hi ghest quality of service, as well.

So in addition to that, as you heard from sone
of the public speakers, we have over $15 mllion
worth of new vendors to the district. W know that
when you bring conpetition in, prices go down. And
of that 15 mllion, 9 mllion went to conpanies
t hat were headquartered right here in our backyard.

|"mproud to say, we're just getting started.
And to that end, |I'mgoing to put us sone breaking
news, breaking news. | have a goal that |'m going
to go on the record and say that we're going to
save this district, we're going to save all
t axpayers, roughly $8 mllion, just through our
procurenment policy. Take that to the bank. | want
you to hold ne accountable to make sure that we
achi eve that before the end of this fiscal year.

So in addition to fairly bidding these
contracts, with the hel p of our procurenment team
we' ve | aunched a new bi ddi ng website in partnership
of PlanetBids. This website -- and al so our
awesone | T team who has gone up and beyond to nake
this happen prior to the deadline, so kudos to
Yenni and her anmazi ng team

This website includes a cutting edge

transparency that, that way, anyone fromthe public

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

55

may access all biddi ng docunents, all contracts
that the bid -- the district solicits. [If that's
not transparency, | don't know what it is. Wth
this platform our Buy Local now, veteran-owned,
opportunity vendors can al so be shared with ot her
| ocal governnents to strengthen our ties within the
community. So kudos to everyone involved wth
that. For the record, you have -- oh, there it is,
$4.2 mllion saved. Voila.

All right. Mving on. The next iteml'd like
to di scuss, our proposed resolution to
outstanding -- outstanding tax liabilities. And
t hrough the review of our previous operations at
the district, it was discovered that the previous
| eadershi p decided not to collect the legally taxes
obligated from enpl oyees for receiving the seasonal
pass benefits. Even though this is owned by
enpl oyees, it didn't seemfair that our great
enpl oyees should be hit with several thousand
doll ars due to poor decisions by the previous
| eader shi p.

Si nce di scovering the issues, we've worked
wth our | egal counsel, our financial team and a
tax expert to find a resolution that didn't punish

our enployees and retirees. | would |ike to thank

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

56

Susan and our finance departnent. | ampleased to
present to the Board that we found a resolution to
this matter that will take care of this issue. W
have submtted a proposal -- proposed resolution to
the IRS and awaiting their response. As soon as we
have word fromthe IRS, we will alert our enpl oyees
and retirees that this matter is fully resol ved.

| want to be clear when | say this. The
concerns about the prior Board and district
adm nistration is not a representative view of ny
view of all of CFTOD enpl oyees. | deeply
appreci ate the hard work and dedi cati on of al nost
all 400 of our enpl oyees who have -- who are here
and who are show ng up each and every day and
dedi cated to the work and the mssion, and | -- to
that, | thank you.

The next order of business to tal k about is
t he end-of -year holidays off. Qur good friend, Jon
Shirey, has already beat ne to the punch. So thank
you, sir. But the district admnistration --
want to thank al so Governor Ron DeSantis for
prioritizing the well-being of State enployees. 1In
line with the Governor's granted -- inline with
what the Governor granted to State enpl oyees, CFTCOD

staff will be granted the sane holidays, as well.

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

57

These days are off in addition to the regul ar
office closures at the end-of-the-year break. |

al so want to thank the Board and district

adm ni stration team for assuring the safety,
wel | bei ng and work-1ife balance for all enpl oyees
and keeping that as top of mnd as we transition to
an i ndependent gover nnent.

This brings ne to our new suppl enental policy
for your review, nenbers of the board. Over the
past several nonths, staff has risen to the
occasion ensuring that the transition of this new
| eadership is seanl ess, despite what the nedi a

tries to sensationalize, and our operations are

stronger than ever. And that is because the -- our
nost val uabl e resource are staff. Every enpl oyee
in the district shows up to work, putting all into

maki ng sure that this government functions
efficiently, precisely, and excellently, in the
interest of our taxpayers and the mllions of
visitors.

| want to |l eave you with this, M. Chairnman,
and nenbers of the board: W have the brightest,
the nost talented people in the world conmi ng
together to formwhat is going to be -- | wll

argue and say now -- the best governnent in Florida

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

58

here at CFTOD. | am proud of our enpl oyees and
everything that they've acconplished through their
coll ective and i ndividual service.

Those who want a copy of the itens presented
today, they may retrieve them on
oversightdi strict-newsroomafter 2:00 p.m today.

Now | want to fornmally deliver you the
suppl enental performance award policy to the Board,
and | ask that you vote in favor of this award.
The floor is yours, M. Chairman.

CHAIR GARCI A: | see that Supervisor Aungst
has sonething to say. The floor is yours.

MR. AUNGST: M. Chair, as usual. 1'll try
and keep it concise, but, again, M. G| zean, the
product of your |eadership is evident, and that is
that we are creating, in nmy view, the exanple for
| ocal involvenent in the State of Florida, and
that's our goal, and we're getting there. W're
getting there a | ot quicker than a | ot of people
think we are or fromwhat you read.

The best exanple -- one of the best exanples
is the website. That procurenent website is fully
transparent. Wen | first walked in this room one
of the things | asked the old | eadershi p was why

isn't anything on the website, why can't | find the

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

59

docunents, why can't | find the Board packet, why
can't | find the mnutes? And the answer was,
Wll, we get a lot of public records requests, and
we don't really want people to know what Disney is
doi ng.

And so | think when you see the accessibility
of this Board, the accessibility of M. G zean,
the fact that we're building rel ationshi ps, not
just with our enployees, not just with our
t axpayers, but also with the community and the
communi ties that surround us, getting involved with
chanbers of commerce, engagi ng busi ness | eaders,
engagi ng people, that can help us take this
district to the next |evel.

All that brings ne to say, | have the
privilege of dealing with |ocal government
enpl oyees t hroughout the state every day in what |
do for work, and I can tell you that we have the
best enployees in the state. And this suppl enent al
performance award that M. G | zean has come up
wth, this is his idea, is sonething that is well
deserved and is earned. You-all are valued, and
t hat you-all have a significant inpact on the
quality of this very, very special place. And we

appreci ate each and every one of you, and | am very

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

60

excited to be able to provide this to you-all, and
| appreciate M. Gl zean bringing it to us for a
vot e.

CHAIR GARCIA: Wl |, does that concl ude your
managenent report?

MR. G LZEAN: Yes, sir.

CHAIR GARCIA: Wl |, thank you for the report,
and, nore inportantly, thank you for your
| eader ship, sir.

That takes us to new business. First itemis
8.1, which is the suppl enental perfornmance award
policy that Supervisor Aungst and M. G| zean j ust
spoke to. So let nme just conmment briefly on this.

M. Gl zean has asked the Board to approve a
one-tinme suppl enental performance award for the
staff. I'min favor of it. Let nme explain why.
Wien the Board was appointed ten nonths ago, no one
coul d have predicted that we would inherit a public
policy mess, let alone a colossal one. W quickly
di scovered that the district had conflicting
general counsel, no Board policies, and even | acked
a chief financial officer. Straight anway we went
to work to right the ship.

First, we hired a leading |law firmthat

specializes in representing nunicipalities to serve

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

61

as our general counsel. Next, we hired a

regi stered financial and nunici pal advisor that
specializes in representing state and | ocal
governnents. After additional discoveries

i nvol ving the deficiencies in internal operations,
we hired a new district admnistrator, M. G zean.

He, together with our general counsel, hel ped
us design and i nplenent an array of policies that
wll finally, after 55 years, pronote the public
good by governing the district as an i ndependent
gover nnent agency. These policies immedi ately
succeeded produci ng greater transparency over
district operations, a systemfor nore accurate and
honest financial reporting, and a channel for
enpl oyees to report any grievances.

They al so established this procurenent process
that we're so proud of, and you just heard the
nunbers, $4.2 mllion in savings. Over $15 mllion
for new contracts to people that never had an
opportunity to bid on district work and are now
receiving it. You' ve seen the snmall businesses
t hat have cone out to express their gratitude, and
all that is due to M. G| zean's | eadership and of
the work of our staff here at the district. He

didn't do it by hinself. And it's his idea, this

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

62

performance award is M. Gl zean's idea.

So to despite -- despite efforts, both within
and outside of the district to underm ne sone of
this essential progress, many -- many nenbers of
our staff proudly and eagerly wel coned t hese
changes. To recognize their efforts during this
initial period of significant change, the Board is
going to consider M. G| zean's proposal for a
one-tine suppl enental performance award. Do you
have anything further to say other than what you've
al ready said in your managenent report?

MR. G LZEAN. No, sir.

CHAIR GARCIA: Are there any other comments
before | ask for a notion on the performnce award?

Hearing none, is there a notion that we
approve it?

MR PERI: So noved.

MR. BARAKAT: |'Il second.

CHAIR GARCI A:  Any further discussion?

Heari ng none, all in favor, indicate by saying aye.

THE BOARD:. Aye.

CHAIR GARCI A: Let the record reflect that the
noti on passes unani nously. Thank you agai n,

M. Gl zean.
MR. G LZEAN. Thank you.

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

63

CHAIR GARCIA: Ckay. Now we turn to Item 8. 2,
and this relates to the audit report that was
posted on our website Monday night. So let ne give
you just a little bit of perspective about this
i ndependent audit report. Legislation passed
earlier this year obligating to the board of
supervisors to submt to the Governor and Fl orida
| egi sl ature an audit report by February 24th that,
"Areport that includes a review of all remaining

powers and authorities,”" vested in the district.
The board prepared to conply with this
statutory obligation. First, we sought the advice
of our general counsel. He outlined the substance
and form of the appropriate i ndependent audit to be
submitted to the elected officials in Tall ahassee.
Next, we worked with the district's |l egal team
to conduct a nationw de search to eval uate,
interview, and ultimately sel ect | eading experts in
pertinent fields to contribute to the audit. Those
experts included the foll owi ng: one, a renowned
| egal scholar with expertise in property | aw,
| and- use pl anni ng, and econom cs.
Two, a national |and-use firmw th extensive

pl anni ng experience here in Central Florida.

Three, a forensic accountant with prolific

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

experience conducting investigations for the U S
Securities and Exchange Comm ssion, the U S
Departnent of Justice, and the U.S. Marshal
Ser vi ce.

Four, a prom nent nunici pal adviser to both
t he muni ci pal securities, rul e-naking board, and
the U S. Securities and Exchange Conm ssi on.

And then, finally, several immnent law firns
with collective experience in investigations,
Fl ori da general |aw, nmunicipal |aw, governance,
conflicts of interest, and civil and crim nal
mal f easance.

The Board successfully net its obligations.
These experts prepared an i ndependent audit, which
was posted on our website Monday evening, and wll

be delivered to the appropriate Florida el ected

officials this week if the Board approves it today.

This audit, this independent audit, is 80
pages containing history, forensic results,

anal ysis, policy recommendati ons, several

i ndependent expert reports, as well as 77 exhibits.

So this conprehensive report, here it is

64

(indicating). |It's posted on the website, and
you're -- you're welcone to visit it.
In addition to our general counsel, |'ve asked

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

65

three of the experts who contributed to the audit
to make reconmmendati on at our neeting today. And I
wll nowturn it over to our general counsel, who
spear headed this effort to generate this

i ndependent audit for the district. M. Ardanman.

MR. ARDAMAN:  Thank you, M. Chairman, board

menbers. |'ve been asked to identify the
qualifications of the experts. 1'd like to kick
that off -- the way I'mgoing to do it with your

perm ssion is to talk about the qualifications of
the three experts in the order that they wll
appear before you.

The experts and the attorneys and the | egal
schol ars that researched and i nvesti gated and
prepared their reports. Their insights and their
assistance in conpiling this report or audit are
some of the nost highly qualified and renowned
individuals and firns in the country, as alluded to
by our chairman

The first expert that you will hear fromthis
nmorning is WIlliamJennings. The district hired
W liam Jennings, senior director at Delta
Consulting Goup, to review accounting information
and rel ated financial policies and practices, and

to conduct an i ndependent review and forensic

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

66

accounting investigation of the district's past and
present financial and related natters.

M. Jennings has nore than 40 years of
i n-depth experience in forensic accounting, fraud
i nvestigation, and asset recovery services. He has
provi ded expert testinony in nunerous donestic and
international courts. Bill has conducted
i nvestigations for the United States Securities and
Exchange Commi ssion, the SEC. He's done the sanme
for the Unites States Departnent of Justice and the
United States Marshal s Service.

Excuse ne. M. Jennings has a bachel or of
science in accounting, and he has an MBA. He is a
certified public accountant, accredited in business
val uation, ABV. He's certified in financial
forensics as a CFF. All designations issued by the
Anerican Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The CFF credential signifies the existence of
speci alized forensic accounting skills and
experience that include forensic accounting
i nvesti gati on.

He is a certified fraud exam ner, CFE, through
the Association of Certified Fraud Exam ners, which
signifies a requisite expertise in the prevention

and detection of fraud. Also, he is a private

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

67

detective licensed in the State of Illinois.

M. Jenni ngs has provided expert testinony before
federal courts throughout the country: The U. S.
Bankruptcy Courts and Securities and Exchange

Conmmi ssion, and nultiple other regul atory agencies.
Bill Jennings has witten the textbook, Fraud

| nvestigati on and Forensic Accounting in the Real
World, for the | argest textbook publishing house in
the United Kingdom That's the first one you'll
hear from

The second one is Professor Donald J. Kochan,
K-OCHA-N Sounds |ike ocean, when | first net
Pr of essor Kochan. The district hired Donald J.
Kochan, a professor of |aw, and executive director
of the |l aw and econoni cs center at George Mason
Uni versity Antonin Scalia Law School to produce a
report to identify whether there were any
constitutional and structural strengths or
infirmties existed in the former RC D.

Pr of essor Kochan previously was the associ ate
dean for research and faculty devel opnent and the
Par ker S. Kennedy professor in |aw at Chapnman
Uni versity's Dale E. Fowl er School of Law. And an
din, OL-1-N, fellow at the universal --

Uni versity of Virginia School of Law, and visiting

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

68

assi stant professor of |aw at George Mason's Scalia
Law School .

Pr of essor Kochan is an el ected nenber of the
hi ghly sel ective American Law Institute, ALI, and
serves as an adviser to ALI's Restatenent of the
Law Fourth Property project, by appointnent by the
executive director of the ALI. He is also an
elected life fellow of the Anmerican Bar Foundati on.
Pr of essor Kochan has an extensive set of
presi dential appointnents to | eadership positions
and comm ttees and councils at the Anmerican Bar
Associ ati on.

Pr of essor Kochan's schol arshi p focuses on
areas of property law, constitutional |aw,
adm ni strative |l aw, |ocal governnent |aw, natura
resources and environnental law, and law in
econom cs. He has published several books,
including the treatise on property and | aw use
titled, The Law of Nei ghbors, and nore than 50
scholarly articles and essays. Professor Kochan's
wor k has been cited and/or quoted in nore than 800
scholarly articles witten by his academ c peers.
Pr of essor Kochan has been cited and quoted
favorably in dozens of books, including in | eading

t ext books and treati ses on | and use | aw, | ocal

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

government |aw, property law, adm nistrative | aw,
constitutional law, |law in econom cs, agency | aw,
busi ness associ ations, civil procedure, and

envi ronnental and natural resources | aw.

Pr of essor Kochan's schol arshi p and research
has been cited and/or quoted in nore than a dozen
state and federal court opinions, and in nore than
75 briefs filed in state and federal courts,
including nore than 25 filed in the United States
Suprene Court.

| have to nake this one last point, it's
pretty inpressive, of recognition of Professor
Kochan. In an amcus brief fromDr. Janes
Buchanan -- he was the econom st who won the Nobel
Prize for econom c studies for his devel opnent of
public choice theory, otherw se known as the
interest group theory of governance -- points

critical to the analysis in Professor Kochan's

69

report presented here today. |In Dr. Buchanan's own

brief to the United States Suprene Court in the
fanous Kel o versus City of New London case, many of
you here, even if you're not |awers, know about
this case. |It's been covered by the nedia for

years. Dr. Buchanan endorsed, quoted, and cited

Pr of essor Kochan's experti se and i nnovative work in

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

70

this field of |law and econom cs. Dr. Buchanan
relied upon Professor Kochan's work in that brief
because Professor Kochan was the first scholar to
apply public choice theory, the theory Dr. Buchanan
fathered and for which he won the Nobel Prize, to
reveal the real world dynam cs behind private
interest capture of em nent donmai n power.

The third individual expert you'll hear today
is an attorney, but not just any attorney. His
nane is David H Thonpson. He is the managi ng
partner of Cooper and Kirk. M. Thonpson j oi ned
that firmas its founding -- at its founding.

M. Thonpson has extensive trial and appell ate
experience in a wde range of matters, has secured
victories worth billions of dollars. He has
litigated cases in over 30 Federal District Courts,
argued in each of the 13 Federal Circuit Courts of
Appeal in the country, and argued before the United
States Suprene Court, as well as many state courts.

M. Thonpson was awarded an A. B. degree, nagna
cum | aude, from Harvard University in 1991 where he
was el ected to Phi Beta Kappa. |In 1994,

M. Thonpson received a J.D. degree, cum | aude,
from Harvard Law School

Those are the three that you'll hear from

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

71

today, M. Chairman, vice chairman, and board
menbers, and nenbers of the public and team but |
woul d i ke to touch on three other experts briefly
that were integral in to this report and the
district's work.

The district hired Kinmley-Horn to devel op an
urban planning report on the RCIDin cities of Bay
Lake and Lake Buena Vista to prepare the
Ki Ml ey-Horn report for this overall report.

Ki Ml ey-Horn is one of the prem ere planning,

engi neering and design consulting firns in the
United States with over 7,000 enpl oyees. In 2022,
the firmranked nunber one anong buil di ng, design,
and construction's top 80 engineering firns in
their 2022 Gant's 400 report. Every year since
2008, Kinl ey-Horn has been recogni zed by

Engi neering News Record as one of the nation's top
green design firnmse with nore than 100 of the firms
prof essionals earning LEED, L-E-E-D, all caps,
accredi tations.

Ki Ml ey- Horn assenbl ed a team of experts,

i ncl udi ng urban planners, civil and environnent al
engi neers, and transportation planners to
contribute to their report. Kinmey-Horn also has

wor ked with Professor Kochan on providi ng Professor

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

72

Kochan with information for Professor Kochan's
report.

The district also hired Public Resources
Advi sory Group, PRAG P-R-A-G to serve as an
i ndependent financial adviser to the district.
PRAG is a nationally recogni zed i ndependent
financi al adviser that serves state and | ocal
governments. It is registered as a nuni ci pal
advi ser with the securities rul e-nmaki ng board and
wth the U S. Securities and Exchange Conmi ssion as
a registered investnent adviser. Menoranda
relating to their work are contained in the report.

The district also hired Raftelis to serve as a
utility rate setting expert in relation to the
district's | abor services agreenent with Reedy
Creek Energy Services, RCES, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Walt Di sney Conpany. Raftelis
provi des nanagenent consulting expertise to | ocal
governments and utilities, including in the areas
of finance assessnent, technol ogy, and strategic
pl anni ng.

These are the principals, M. Chairman, vice
chai rman, and board nmenbers, but there were others.
These are the ones | wanted you to hear about, and

the public to hear about, as well.

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

73

CHAIR GARCIA: And, M. Ardaman, from your
comments, | understand M. Jennings wll present
first.

MR. ARDANAN: Yes, M. Chairman. The t hought
is Bill Jennings will present to the Board first,
t hen Professor Donald J. Kochan, and then Attorney
David Thompson fromthe Cooper Kirk firm

CHAIR GARCI A: Ckay. M. Jennings.

MR. JENNI NGS: Good norning. Good norning,
M. Chairman, and thank you, M. Ardaman, for your
kind remarks. M nane is Bill Jennings. | am as
M. Artaman said, a senior director at Delta
Consulting G oup. | do have nore than 40 years'
experience in conducting forensic accounting
i nvestigations, and was contacted by attorneys
representing the Board to conduct a forensic
accounting investigation of the district.

The only instructions | was given were that |
was not to speak to the other experts who had been
retai ned by the Board, and that | was to conduct ny
i nvestigation in a conplete and i ndependent manner
W t hout any interference fromthe attorneys or
others, and so | was given pretty w de reign.

| originally cane out in August of this year

and net wwth M. G| zean and ot her enpl oyees of the

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

74

district, and the prinmary purpose of that first
encounter was to identify issues that nyself and ny
team woul d then investigate.

W sat down with a nunber of the enpl oyees of
the district in that initial neeting. W gathered
docunents. W did a |lot of independent research
and then devel oped a plan. W identified certain
i ssues that we thought required further
i nvestigation, and we devel oped procedures to
i nvestigate those issues. Those procedures
i ncl uded a nmassive collection of both hard copy and
el ectronic data and evi dence.

Al so, we did a |ot of independent research
consulting not only publicly avail able information
but other public records that were al so accessed or
avail able to us. W had -- we also then --
followi ng those steps, we interviewed many
enpl oyees of the district, and we worked on that
second phase from Septenber through the end of
Novenber, and spent a fair anount of tine here at
the district office, and also touring the entirety
of the district to actually nmake physi cal
observati ons and phot ograph the vari ous
mani festations of the district's responsibilities,

i ncl udi ng roads, water-controlled projects,

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

75

utilities, and the |ike.

We have a nunber of findings. They're
included in a witten report that we submtted to
the attorneys on Novenber 24th. |It's quite
extensive. It runs well past 80 pages in terms of
its narrative, and then, of course, there are
nunerous attached exhibits. So |I'mnot going to be
able to go page-by-page, but | did want to
hi ghl i ght sone of the nore significant findings.

One of the things we | ooked at were the use of
Anerican Express cards, district American Express
cards, by district enployees. W selected
M. Classe and several other enpl oyees and got the
records related to their American Express
expendi tures going back to 2021. W didn't find
very nmuch except with respect to expenditures by
M. C asse.

During the period from 2021 t hrough 2023,

M. Cl asse spent approxinmately a hundred thousand
doll ars on what were described as public
relations -- or, sorry, not public relations,
personnel relations activities. These would be a
variety of parties in remenbrance of staff that
were past staff, current staff, nenbers who are

bei ng recogni zed for a variety of reasons. And

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

76

then also in a separate category, spent about
$80, 000 on events. These included town hall
nmeetings, parties for residents of the cities of
Bay Lake and Lake Buena Vista and other rel ated
events. And then approxinmately 20 -- |I'm sorry,
$27,000 on entertai nnent. This included various
golfing activities, as well as |ocal sporting
events.

We noted that the existing witten policies
and procedures related to Anerican Express,
district Anerican Express expenditures, were
foll owed except in one instance, but that,
essentially, M. Casse had the ability to override
any of the procedures.

We then identified another, nore significant
matter, which was this thing that M. G| zean
tal ked about related to Di sney park passes and
di scounts at Di sney venues given to district
enployees. | think it's inportant to understand,
and we didn't realize this at the begi nning of our
wor k, but, actually, originally, all the district
enpl oyees were Disney enpl oyees. There wasn't a
separate district payroll until 1998, and so these
enpl oyees had received, as Di sney enpl oyees, | ust

as other Di sney enpl oyees all received, park passes

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

77

and di scounts at D sney venues. Wen the separate
payrol|l was created, a process was initiated, and
we were unable to find an agreenent that required
this or supported this practice, but what D sney
would do is it would calculate all of the amounts
that were given to district enployees in park
passes and di scounts and then bill those back to
the district, several mllion dollars a year.

This is very inportant, and, you know, again,
all -- we have no opinions about things. Qur --
our job was sinply to report the facts. But the
fact is that in many of the situations that |'ve
i nvesti gated, you know, people tend to function in
terms of their own best interest. And so one of
the problens that we noted with the park passes and
t he di scounts was that that would give the district
enpl oyees a sense of being behol dened to D sney,
you know, that they were receiving these things
from D sney and woul d, therefore, owe sone |loyalty
to Disney.

The ot her problem though, was a nore
i medi ate problem and | raised it to M. Gl zean's
attention when | first discovered it, and that is
this notion that these benefits actually

represented taxable incone for the enpl oyees which

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

78

was not reported to the IRS. Now, this wouldn't
have been so bad except there were two district
enpl oyees, the forner CFO and the former human
resources manager, who raised this issue back in
2018 with M. C asse and were told that they shoul d
put aside their concerns and not raise the issue
agai n because the passes and the di scounts were
given to -- as a training device for district

enpl oyees. O course, that | eaves out the fact
that they also included other househol d nenbers.
And we did raise this issue, and M. G| zean dealt
wth it very promptly in his own way.

Anot her thing that we found related to the way
that the district procured products and services,
so this is the procurenment process M. G| zean
referred to earlier. Wat we found was that there
were very few witten policies around procurenent,
and the ones that we di scovered had sone odd
elenents to them For instance, with respect to
items that would be, in total, |ess than $200, 000,

t he departnents, essentially, could nmake their
procuremnment decisions. They did not have to foll ow
any process that included the district's
procurenment department.

The other thing was that certain types of

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

79

products and services, and, of course, this was
really at the discretion of the departnents, could
be classified as a type-A contract. And, in that
situation, the contract could be given to anyone
t hat, anong other things, the district -- or the
departnment | eader or departnment nenbers felt good
about. That's a very strange concept in
procurenment. And the problemw th that type of
process is that it -- you know, and, again, ny
ot her work over the past 40 years, creates the
opportunity for corruption. So, in other words,
this creates an opportunity for people to receive
gifts fromvendors in exchange for their agreenent
to feel good about them

But there's a bigger problemhere, and one of
the things we also found was that even in the cases
where the contract amounts exceeded $200, 000, when
they were put out to bid, they were put out to bid
to a closed vendor list that had not been expanded
in nany, nany years. And so it was essentially a
closed loop. This creates that sane problem In
ot her words, if you want to stay in the closed
| oop, you do what's necessary to nake sure the
department heads and the ot her departnent enpl oyees

feel good. And that, again, raises the -- the

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

80

opportunity for corruption, bribery, that sort of
thing, but also it creates a bigger problem which
is, it suppresses conpetition.

And that has two effects. One is fromthe
district standpoint, as the victimof this, the
products and services that you' re receiving from
this closed | oop of vendors may not be the highest
qual ity products and services that you could
obtain. The other problemis that you may not be
obtai ning them at the best price, that you're
paying a price that's higher than you would pay if
you were able to obtain these things in an arm s
| engt h fashion.

Further, a closed loop like that, especially
in a |large, geographic area, suppresses
conpetition. So you have no ability for other
busi nesses to be able to participate in that -- in
that econom c opportunity. And so they don't --
they sinply don't cone to the district because
they're not welcone. They're not in the closed
| oop, and so by definition they're out. They're
out si de looking in, and so we -- we thought that
was a pretty significant problem

Anot her thing that we identified related to

the -- there's a project that's called the Wrld

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

81

Drive North Extension project, and the World Drive
Nort h Extensi on project, essentially, is designed

to address sone of these traffic problens that

you' re tal ki ng about, but part of it -- part of
this -- the third phase of it, in any case,
requires there to be a -- a crossing of three hol es

on a D sney-owned golf course. And so in a
situation like that, you know, there are two ways
that you can go. You can either negotiate with the
| and owner to obtain the right to, you know, use
that |land for the roadway, or you can go through
what | would think of as a condemnati on proceedi ng.
In other words, for a governnental -- sovereign
governmental unit goes to court, basically, to be
able to -- to be able to access land that is owned
by a private citizen.

We tal ked to a nunber of enpl oyees, and we
| ooked at all the records that were avail able. As
it turns out, this was a negoti ated agreenent
between RCID and Di sney in which RCID agreed to pay
$7.7 mllion for the cost of noving those three
hol es on the golf course. And, in fairness, we
were told by the enpl oyees that this was a great
econom c deal, but the one thing we didn't find

anywhere was any sort of i ndependent econom c

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

82

eval uati on that had been perforned by anyone to
determ ne whether the 7.7 mllion would be the best
way to proceed, or if it would have been better to
go through a condemmati on proceedi ng.

In that regard, another thing that we found
associated with roadways is that there were over
$21 mllion of budgeted road inprovenents that were
never made between 2020, | believe, and 2023. And
we asked about that, and we were told that there
were environnental conditions and
over - aggr essi veness by the head of the departnent
t hat woul d have been responsi bl e for making the
I nprovenents. But what we ultimately di scovered is
t hat noney actually becanme an $18 mllion surplus
for the general fund, which is obviously a nore
easily accessed fund for other purposes that m ght
be carried out under the auspices of the Board, the
RCI D Board.

The ot her thing we found out, and this was
al so by direct observation, was that of the noney
spent, the noney that was spent for road
i nprovenments was spent to inprove roads that would
be used by Disney custoners. The roads that were
not the roads that would be used by D sney

custoners were | eft unattended. And, in fact,

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

83

i ndependent eval uations of their -- their current
condition revealed a decline in performance -- or a
decline in condition, rather, following in 2017.

Now, there's a further problemw th this
because the district adopted an accounti ng
met hodol ogy that essentially, w thout boring you
wth the details, requires that if you adopt this
met hodol ogy, you are agreeing to maintain the
assets that you are accounting for in this way in
their best condition. And so if you fail to do
that, you would likely be required to change the
accounting nethod. And if that happened, that
woul d have an inpact on -- potentially,
potentially, on bond ratings and interest rates
paid by the district. And so we thought that was a
fairly significant thing.

The other thing that we identified was that
there was -- sothisis alittle bit of a nerdy
accounting thing, but the way things work in
accounting, is when you're constructing an asset --
in other words, before it's conpleted -- you
account for it as sonmething called construction in
progress, meaning that you don't depreciate it.

And it's not viewed as an asset that is expected to

produce anything until you conplete it.

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

84

We found a nunber of assets -- so this would
have been sonething -- tens of mllions of dollars
in construction in progress that had not noved out
of construction in process (sic) since 2021. A lot
of the records we were given were 2021 forward.
Anong these things was a very expensive, a
multi-mllion dollar piece of equipnment that was
purchased for sonething called a typhoon
substation, but the building that it was supposed
to be housed in, in which it was supposed to be
function, had never been built, and so the
equi pnment is sitting in a warehouse.

W weren't -- a lot of the other equipnent
related to utilities, and I'll explain why in a
m nute that we weren't able to do nuch with that,
but a lot of the utility equipnent also is in
construction process -- or progress and has not
nmoved to conpl eted st at us.

The problemw th that -- and, of course, |'ve
done a lot of work all over the world, especially
wth utilities, electric utilities, is -- there's a
huge, incidentally, a nuclear power plant on the
i sland of Taiwan that has an enornnpus anpunt of
equi pnment, you know, billions of dollars of

equi pnment, that is sitting there beconm ng obsol ete

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

85

and rusting. Water is punped through it, but it
hasn't generated one bolt of electricity. And so
that's the problemis that it's not like this
equi pnent is, you know, pernmanent, that it can

al wvays be placed into service, and so that's a
concern with that, as well.

One of the things that we were asked about
t hat produced an interesting answer, but was not a
problem for the district, related to who was payi ng
for policing in the district. And as it turns out
that when we first identified this issue in August,
we t hought the district was paying for the
policing. O course, that woul d be forbidden by
the district, the RCID s charter. And we did learn
that, in fact, that charter had not been viol at ed;
that the policing was being paid for by Bay Lake
and Lake Buena Vi st a.

The problemis, is that the reason we thought
it was a problemto begin with is all of that
information, all of that accounting information,
for the cities and for the district, is actually in
t he sane general |edger, so the sane accounting
records at the district. So the district does all
the accounting for the cities. Now, for the

policing paynents, those were all made from bank

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

86

accounts that were owned by Bay Lake and Lake Buena
Vi sta, and so everything was fine fromthe, "Wo
paid for the policing part."

But what we then discovered was that actually
the district provides all of the services for the
cities, for Bay Lake and Lake Buena Vi sta, under an
interl ocal agreenent that was entered into in 2022,
it's a 40-year agreenent, and literally pays for
everything that the cities require in ternms of
servi ces except policing by the district. Now, the
problemwith that is not everybody in the district
lives in Bay Lake or Lake Buena Vista. 1In fact,
the people live in Bay Lake -- residents of Bay
Lake and Lake Buena Vista are either current or
fornmer Di sney enpl oyees who were enpl oyed by D sney
for nmore than ten years and their famly nenbers.
And so the people who aren't those people are
payi ng taxes but not receiving the benefits because
those are actually going to the residents of the
cities.

The other thing that we di scovered was that
the district actually has eight utilities that, to
a greater or |esser extent, provide critical
services to the district. So, naturally, we wanted

to investigate the utilities to see, you know, how

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

87

they were set up, how they were operating, and
performthe sanme sorts of procedures that we did
with the other manifestations of the district.

Unfortunately, | created quite the firestorm
when | asked the human resources manager to set up
an interviewwith the first utility enpl oyee. As
it turns out, the utility enployees are all
enpl oyees of Disney. They are not district
enpl oyees. And | discovered that actually there's
not an easy way for M. Gl zean or other enployees
of the district to interact with the enpl oyees of
the utilities. And we, in fact, were not permtted
to speak to any of them nor were we permtted to
enter any of the physical manifestations of the
utilities.

One of the things | wanted to | ook at was the
el ectric generation plant. The thing that | did
di scover indirectly was that actually the district
generates no electricity fromthat plant. It's a
co-generation plant. The district generates no
electricity fromit. Al the electricity in the
district is purchased fromthird parties and
delivered to the grid. And | was asking, well, why
are they maintaining this plant? And | was told by

one of the district enployees that the reason for

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

88

the plant was that it would be there in case of
emer gency.

Well, again, | didn't get to speak to anybody.
| certainly did not -- was not allowed to enter the
pl ant, but one thing I can tell you is unless it's
generating electricity using gas turbines, the tine
to bring online any steam generated el ectric plant
iIs -- is significant. And so the extent to which
it would be available in an energency, in ny
opi ni on, is highly questionable.

The one thing | will say, though, is that all
of the district enpl oyees were highly cooperative

wth us and took great pains to get us the

informati on that we were requesting as part of our

i nvestigation. And, you know, | found it to be an
entirely -- an entirely cooperative and
effective -- effective environment to work in.

Thank you very nuch, M. Chairman.

CHAIR GARCI A: M. Jennings, thank you for
your comments. And | think what nakes the nost
sense is let's hear fromour other two experts, and
then we'll ask questions at the end. The only
thing I want to nmake clear, M. Jennings, is that
the utilities that you refer to are owned by the

district, correct?

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

89

MR. JENNINGS: That's correct. The assets,
the assets. The power plant | tal ked about and the
ot her assets that are the utility assets are
actually owned by the district. |It's only the
enpl oyees that are Di sney enpl oyees.

CHAIR GARCI A: Yes. And despite the fact that
the district owns those assets, Disney did not give
you access to them is that correct?

MR. JENNINGS: That is correct.

CHAIR GARCI A: Ckay. Thank you.

Pr of essor Kochan, you're up next.

PROFESSOR KOCHAN: Thank you. | want to just
confirm everyone can hear ne.

CHAI R GARCI A: W can.

PROFESSOR KOCHAN: Great. Thank you,

M. Ardaman. Thank you, M. Chairnan,

M. Adm nistrator, and Board nenbers for the
opportunity to conplete this inportant study and
for the chance to present to you today ny sumary
if its key findings.

| regret that | could not travel to be with

all of you today in person due to health issues,

but I"'mglad for this virtual alternative and | ook
forward to seeing you-all in person soon.
|'d also like to thank Bill Jennings for the

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

90

summary of his report. As M. Jennings nentioned,
our investigations proceeded i ndependently, yet,
what | think you'll see by the conclusion of ny
remar ks and by reading ny reports, is that they are
hi ghly conpl enentary.

| ndeed, to a scholar |like nyself, the detail ed
i nvestigative work that M. Jennings did provi ded
supporting facts for what are ny theoreti cal
predi ctions and then what are the theoretical
predictions that the fields of ny research woul d
provide is extrenely useful. It also hel ped prove
the validity of the theories in a way that add
significant power to this report.

So | feel that the factual findings | was able
to devel op, as well as the theoretical backdrop,
conbined with M. Jennings' own findings as well,
as well as those by the other experts in the
district itself, are quite enlightening.

As noted, | am Donal d Kochan, and |I'm a
prof essor of |aw at George Mason University's
Antonin Scalia Law School. 1've been a professor
there for nore than 21 years -- |'ve been a | aw
pr of essor, excuse nme, for nore than 21 years, and
| ' ve been professionally studying the issues of

| and use, state and | ocal governnent, and property

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

91

and governance issues for nearly 30 years.

| al so serve at Scalia Law School as the
executive director of the | aw and econom cs center.
It is in -- you know, at the | aw and econom c
center is about to celebrate its 50th anniversary.
In our flagship judicial education program the LEC
is the nation's preem nent provider of high quality
bal anced judicial education institutes and sem nars
t hat focus on econonics, finance, accounting,
statistics, and the scientific nmethod. And we've
been training federal and state judges, as |
menti oned, as well as state attorneys, general |aw
pr of essors, econom cs professors, and a variety of
ot her policymakers on these subjects for nearly 50
years.

All of this, the role that | have in the | aw
and econom cs center is, in part, to -- furthered
by the research that | do in | aw and econom cs,
whi ch woul d be a big part of the discussion that |
present to you today.

The goal of ny 59-page study, for which I wll
provi de highlights today, is a study titled, "A
Legal and Instructional Analysis of the Legitinmacy
and Consequences of the Governance Regi nes

Established by the State of Florida's 1967 Reedy

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

92

Creek I nprovenent Act and Associated Laws." The
goal of this study was to evaluate the Reedy Creek
| nprovenent Act of 1967, and the governance systens
that are put in place by it, as well as to use ny
expertise in evaluating institutions and the neans
of influencing themto conduct independent research
to conpare the | evel of influence of private
interests in the establishment of governance of the
Reedy Creek Inprovenment District, and to deternmnine
whet her there are notable deviations fromthe norm
of good gover nance.

Fromthe very start of Disney's relationship
wth Florida including by drafting the | anguage the
| egi sl ature would enact i n the Reedy Creek
| nprovenent Act of 1967, Disney is engaged in a
wel |l orchestrated and sophisticated | obbying effort
to secure what, in effect, is its own private
governance regine insulated fromthe traditional
el enents of denocratic accountability, good
governance, and the rule of |aw that operate
everywhere else in the state of Florida, as well as
t hroughout the country.

The 1967 Act is extraordinary. It deviates
from good governance nornms and creates a path for

capture and control by private interest groups that

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

93

threatens the public interest. Odinary
institutional design and |limts, denbcratic
accountability mechani sns, and constitutionally
grounded processes of good governance serve

i mportant purposes. They exist to ensure that
government powers remain |imted, denobcratic
principles remain protected, citizens renain
enpower ed, and powerful interest groups |like D sney
are thwarted from capturing the strong armof the
state to advance their private purposes. It is
about groundi ng public purposes in public
institutions that are controlled by the public.

| ndeed, the preservation of these principles
of limted governance and the rule of |aw requires
erecting and respecting hurdles to governnent
i ntervention to, one, ensure that governnent
interference in private affairs is limted to
serving the public interest and to those actions
truly necessary and requiring such public
I nterventi on.

And, two, to nmaxim ze the space for private
ordering and market conpetition free of special
privileges so that econom c freedom conpetition,
i nnovation, and growth nay flourish. That neans

t hat governance is intentionally difficult and

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

94

time-consuming with the opportunity for the kind of
broad public participation and scrutiny that | eads
to opti mal deci sion-maki ng, including balance and
conpeting interests, and recogni zing that the
neutrality principle groundi ng good gover nance
prohi bits picking favorites.

Thi s idea that governance is neant to be hard
wll be discussed in ny presentation, and it is
di scussed in ny report, as a contrast to the claim
that there was a need for flexibility and easy
governance by Disney in getting the speci al
privileges it received in the Reedy Creek
| mpr ovenent Act of 1967.

Legislation that sets the framework ri sking
the relaxation of the norms that | have di scussed
should be re-evaluated. The report provided to you
concl udes that the 1967 Act, the political
envi ronnent surrounding its creation, and the
mai nt enance of authorities under the Act, and
gover nance pursuant to the Act, have all surely
acconpl i shed a dangerous rel axation of normal
l[imts on governnental power and the structures of
denocratic accountability.

To reach these conclusions, this report brings

expertise and scholarly insights to bear upon the

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

95

inquiry fromconstitutional |aw, statutory
interpretation, denobcratic governance, and
institution analysis fromlaw and politica

sci ence, | and use planning, |ocal governnment | aw,
ur ban pl anni ng, adm nistrative | aw and regul atory
policy, and the interdisciplinary work ani mati ng
positive political theory explaining how politics
actually works rather than the idealistic ways we
w shed it worked, including sone key insights from
the public choice theory at the intersection of |aw
and econom cs, which |I've already nentioned and
will detail in just a bit alittle nore.

When Di sney scoped out Central Florida as a
potential site for Walt Disney World, the evidence
reveals that it was unwilling to | ocate there
unless it could fundanentally alter the | egal
regime within which it would operate -- be required
to operate. Disney wanted a governance structure
overseeing its operations with broad jurisdiction,
di scretion, and flexibility to approve projects.
And it wanted a governing authority that was
sufficiently in line with Dsney's interest, so as
to effectively give Disney control. This is what
it was seeking when it drafted the 1967 Act and

what it achieved by getting the legislation it

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

96

request ed.

Sonewhat, paradoxically, this neant creating
jurisdiction with wider authority independence, yet
| ess power over its principal devel oper on the part
of the actual governing authority. Notably,
statenents from Di sney's consultants working for
t he devel opnent of the RCI D describe the notivation
for seeking nore authority as including to overcone
what they descri bed as a, "governance problem"

The answer from Di sney's consultants incl uded
limting the scope of denbcracy. Based -- in one
statenent, they said, "New community devel opers
shoul d be exenpted from processing their plans and
devel opnent across through | ocal governing bodies.”

It was all a part of this concept that they
were selling in getting the Reedy Creek | nprovenent
Act in which they clained to be authorities that
were -- fromwhich they were seeking the Act that
they needed to constantly be in, "a state of
becom ng," and that the only way you coul d
constantly be in this evolutionary state of
becom ng would be, "To be freed fromthe
i npedi nents to change.” And these -- this is
Di sney' s actual | anguage.

They consi dered i npedinents to change to

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

97

include things that were "rigid buildi ng codes,
traditional property rights, and el ected political
officials.” So, again, they were seeking to be
unconstrai ned, and this was the goal fromthe
outset in the 1960s. The ask, therefore, was for
t he near absence of anticipated traditional
government control by creating a gover nnent
district that D sney effectively controll ed.

Bef ore proceedi ng to di scuss devel opnents in
the legislation, I do want to point out that the
RCI D, despite using the word "district,"” and
despite the Act using the word "district,"” the RCID
Is sui generis, i.e., it does not fit the nold of
special districts and should not be conpared to
nost ot her special districts so classified under
Fl orida or other state | aws.

Normal |y, when we use the term "speci al
district,” we're referring to a single and specific
pur pose, or, in sone cases, multi but still limted
pur pose jurisdiction, such as for fire protection,
wat er supply, drainage, soil and water
conservation, sewage, or housing and community
devel opnent. This special district would then have
authority limted to what was necessary to serve

the i mted purposes, including sonetines the

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

98

ability to raise revenue for a specific purpose and
not generalized jurisdiction, generalized pl anning,
or generalized | awmaki ng powers.

Al nost all special districts are defined by
t he purpose which is determ ned by the type of
service or public need that is being fulfilled by
its creation. Entirely atypical is to create a
special district notivated to create a nostly
general purpose governance structure to carve out a
jurisdiction that will serve the needs of a
particul ar constituent or designed to advance a
particul ar industry or particular private purpose.

Yet, arguably, this atypical design for a
special district was what D sney drafted and
proposed to the legislature |leading to the 1967
Act. And getting its own private jurisdiction was,
i ndeed, the driving force behind D sney's | obbying
efforts leading to the 1967 Act. Again, in part,
because being a true special district, as a limted
pur pose special district for drainage, for exanple,
whi ch they started as, was not enough.

Special districts are supposed to be created
for special limted public purposes. They are not
created to serve the needs of a private interest

who needs -- clains the need for its own system of

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

99

gover nance. Nonethel ess, the 1967 Act, init, the
RClI D was gi ven extraordi nary powers not shared with
ot her special districts in Florida.

It created a jurisdiction that unlike
muni ci palities and counties in Florida, it does not
have the kind of diverse citizenry and voting
public that generates a check on governnent al
abuse, largesse, or favoritism The RC D has no
residential or voting basis to any significance
gi ven the popul ati on consi sted | ess than a hundred
residents district-wide, alnpost all of whom are
pi cked by or arguably beholden to or indebted to
Di sney in sone of the ways that M. Jenni ngs
al ready identified.

And aside fromthe | ow nunbers, these
residents may vote for municipal officials, but the
muni ci palities inside the RCID have few powers to
the point they are often call ed paper cities.
There's nore detail on that also in the Kinley-Horn
reports.

And the residents generally are not |and
owners capable of voting for the RCID board. Al
this neans is that even the residents in the RCID
cannot act as an active force to check abuses of

power or transgression of prudence. And despite

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

100

prom ses to populate the RCI D and give residents a
futuristic environnent in which to live, D sney has
regularly and repeatedly found ways to avoi d new
residents or | andowners fromcounting within the
RCI D, often just carving out through de-annexation
to ensure they could not becone effective checks on
Di sney's capture of RClI D power.

The 1967 Act rather shockingly exenpts the
RCID from application of |ater-passed | and use
regul ati ons, zoning, or building codes, insulating
it fromcontrol of general changes in these areas
fromthe state and its authorities unless a | aw
expressly renoves the exenption.

It's hard for the state to exercise continui ng
control over the RCI D once a path-dependent
presunption of independence is set. Disney was
avai l able to convince the RCID -- excuse ne,
convince the Florida legislature in 1967 to give
the RCID these extraordinary powers with little
attention to preserving facets of denobcratic
accountability and structural limtations. Wthout
any binding obligations to conpensate for the
negati ve externalities inposed on the region,

i ncluding externalities through pressure on roads

and transportation, affordable housing, schools,

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

101

| aw enforcenent and ot her social services.

A brief note on what | nean by externalities
is useful here. The idea in the economcs
literature is that nornally individuals are
required to internalize the cost of their action,
be responsible for the cost of their action, if
they i npose harmthrough their actions, if their
actions cause harns of others, they are usually
responsi bl e for paying for those harns. Those
negative externalities are things that woul d
typically require sone kind of inpact fee or
conpensation for.

But the ideal for any one of us is to be able
tointernalize all the benefits for actions that
externalize all the costs. And what has really
been devel oped through this legislation is a way in
whi ch, indeed, Disney is able to internalize all
the profits and benefits of its actions while not
internalizing all of the costs, and, therefore,
causi ng these kinds of negative externalities.

In later -- in addition, we -- the one thing
to recognize in terns of the extraordinari ness of
the legislature is that there is a perpetuity
clause in Section 23(1) of the 1967 Act that all ows

for this failure to apply future land use laws to

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

102

t he RCI D.

In | ater years, Di sney would seek an advi sory
ruling fromthe Florida Attorney General on whether
certain | aws passed after 1967 applied to the Epcot
expansi on, for exanple. The question was whet her
or not Disney should have an account -- have to
account for the regional inpact expansion cost |ike
ot her devel opers in other counties who are bei ng
required to do under new statew de | aws.

D sney succeeded, however, in getting an
attorney general opinion that ruled in their favor
findi ng not hi ng obj ecti onabl e about the perpetuity
clause in the 1967 Act and explaining that it
shoul d be enforceable on its plain terns.

Thi s provision exenpting the RCI D from changes
inlawis particularly troubl esone because it
| acks -- or locks in place the status quo rather
t han encouraging political adaptability to changed
conditions as woul d be expected from nost
regul atory regines. It also neans that the 1967
Act gave Di sney near perpetual protection from
future intrusions upon the RCID s i ndependence and
insulation fromtraditional accountability neasures
in these enunerated areas of authority.

Beyond the generally troubling nature that

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

103

Di sney was able to enbed in the 1967 Act a near

per petual exenption fromthe application of certain
categories of future laws unless the |egislature
expressly applies themto the RCID.

This attorney general ruling has had severe
consequences for the communities surroundi ng the
RClI D because it neans that Di sney could expand
W t hout paying for all those negative externalities
it inmposed upon the region.

The decision to exenpt Disney fromtypical
regi onal inpact obligations also neant that D sney
had successfully | obbied for a substantial cost
advant age over conpetitors who would need to conply
wth new statutes, including mtigation obligations
to offset regional inpacts while D sney would not.
And this is precisely what interest group theory
woul d predi ct woul d happen.

Both the Florida |l egislature creating the
powers in the 1967 Act, and the Suprene Court of
Florida, finding themconstitutional based on their
deci sions on reliance on the belief that the RCI D
woul d eventual |y have inhabitants that woul d make
this authority subject to the powerful checks
provi ded by denocratic accountability all

contributed to this.

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

104

The Preanble to the 1967 Act specifically --
it expected a different regine -- a different
envi ronnent to energe. It specifically noted that
t he broad powers that were being conferred in the
RCI D were "necessary for the conveni ence of the
district and all its inhabitants and | andowners,"
again, anticipating the existence of future
i nhabi tants.

The Suprene Court of Florida has over tinme
bl essed the Reedy Creek | nprovenent Act, but
t hey' ve done so, including in the State versus
Reedy Creek | nprovenent District decision in 1967
Act -- in 1967, on the expectation that the
contenpl ated benefits the district will inure to
t he nunerous inhabitants. And this is the quote

fromthem "the contenpl ated benefits by the

district will inure to nunerous inhabitants of the
district, in addition to the persons in the D sney
conpl ex. "

Nonet hel ess, what we've seen is that in --
w t hout those inhabitants, the result is that it is
| argely served al nost exclusively for private
purpose and private interest of a private
corporation. Disney, in the 1967 Act, was seeking

out these special advantages but needed to sell the

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N o o b~ w N

N N N N I N N N N T o i o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ W N -+ O

105

story that there would be inhabitants. Because
only a popularly el ected governnent could regul ate
| and use and buil ding, they consistently prom sed
in the days | eading up to the passage of the 1967
Act that it would create a nodel city, "functioning
community where 20, 000 people would Iive and work
and play."

The record reveals that D sney never intended,
however, to follow through on this prom se because
it indeed had a disdain for voters. Fromthe
earliest days of strategic planning for Di sney
World, Walt D sney on several occasions in several
poi nts of docunented evidence sought to avoi d being
controlled by voters. To get the 1967 Act passed,;
however, they needed to say they would create a
normal city, but once the 1967 Act was passed,
pretense slowy di sappeared.

Pl ease note | do not conclude that the RCID
woul d be nornal and consistent with good governance
if Disney pronpts -- if the Disney prom ses had
been fulfilled. It would not. The 1967 Act is
fundanentally flawed from a good gover nance
st andpoi nt either way. But the fact that the
prom ses were a ruse makes the situation all the

nmore concerning froma political econony

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

106

standpoint, i.e., the study of the consequences of
severe interest group influence in governance
regi nes.

Today the facts are clear that the soci al
contract Disney entered into in the 1967 Act has
been broken. And one question for future
| egi slature i s what shoul d be done for the
continuation of the authority as granted in 1967.
The 1967 Act created an unenforceable |egislative
bargai n. However, despite the pron ses nade by
Di sney to create housing and to populate the RCID
wWth citizens and voters, prom ses nade to induce
the legislature to grant Di sney special privileges
that D sney clainmed were necessary to effectively
acconpl i sh their grand plan includi ng housi ng.

There are no built-in ways to hold Di sney
accountable for the failure to fulfill their
promse. |In other words, if legislative action was
i nduced by D sney's promses in the |legislature
before, but has not been able to get the full
benefit of the bargain.

In fact, D sney appears to regularly find ways
to have a continued absence of voters,
de-annexation efforts including what we saw with

Cel ebration are all good illustrations. The

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

107

i nsul ation then of the RCID and a | ack of
obligation to offset regional inpacts is neant that
Disney is not required to internalize the negative
effects its operation has, yet able to internalize
its profit. That is nmeant -- that is what is neant
by unconpensated externalities that harned

i ndi vi dual s and nust bear the cost actions of

anot her who was not responsi ble for paynent and
conpl ete cost of the harns they inpose.

As the report that has been subnmtted to you
details, nmuch of the rationale driving the 1967
Act, fromthe | obbyist advocating for it and from
the | eqgi sl ature supporting the new paradi gm was
based on the sales pitch that told about the escape
to a magic world where barriers of action normally
i nposed by denocratic governance woul d di sappear to
better pave the way to a shiny new prospect for
regi onal prosperity.

This bright, alluring new object of innovative
gover nance was nasked as necessary and appropriate
to the desired ends. That distractive nature --
narrative -- that distractive narrative, furthered
by what were | ater reveal ed as fal se prom ses of
consideration fromDi sney allowed for the capture

of governnental power by a private entity and the

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

108

abandonnent of key principles of good governance
and denocratic accountability. A robust
appreciation for the valuable role these principles
play to create purposeful barriers to governnental
acti on was m ssi ng.

This is entirely predictable froman anal ysi s
of afield in the discipline of | aw and economn cs
known as public choice or interest group theory,
whi ch M. Ardaman al ready explained to you cane
from Nobel Prize wi nning econom st, Janes Buchanan.
He was known for categorizing public choice as,
"Politics wthout romance." Indeed, it is
precisely for this groundbreaking work in this
anal ysis of interest group influence that he won
the Nobel Prize in economc studies in 1986.

These insights, as applied to the 1967 Act,
the RCID and Disney, for the first tine in any
substantial way, as a matter of academ c anal ysis
of these entities and structures formthe heart of
the final sections of the report that's been
submtted to you. Public choice reveals that we
cannot necessarily count on political
deci sion-makers to act in the public interest if
t hey becone co-opted or deceived by interest

groups. And we should expect that private interest

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

109

groups w |l expand substantial -- expend
substantial resources to influence politics so that
t hey can gain special interest deals and savings
fromwhat they would need to spend to get simlar
benefits in the open narket, if they could get a
substitute through the market at all.

| nt erest groups have strong i ncentives to
co-opt the course of power of the state and even
per suade public actors that they are doing public
good despite reality, doing the private bidding of
a private entity such as that of Disney. The
positive political theories that seek to explain
and denonstrate why institutions operate, including
public choice and ot her aspects of |aw and
econom cs di scipline, operate fromthe perspective
of analyzing |imted-purpose governnental entities,
limted constituency public entities, the inpact of
repeat player phenonenon, and the conditions that
make public entities susceptible to capture by
private interest.

D sney had an interest in creating the type of
special district over which it would increasingly
exert control. Again, the | aw and econom cs
literature predicts that regulatory entities with

highly narrow and |limted constituenci es can be

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

110

easily captured. They can easily be captured by
t hose constituencies, those limted constituencies,
such that the entity starts to serve the interest
of the regulated rather than the public interest or
rather than its statutory nandate.

The RCID fromthe start, with its structure
set up in the 1967 Act, had a design flaw
Captured fromthe outset by the dom nating interest
group that |lobbied it -- and | obbied to create it,
Di sney. That design flaw allows Disney to act in
the interest group's private -- as the interest
group's private governnent.

Capture dynamcs, this field of |aw and
econom cs studies, predict that the RCID is
unli kely to be independent and will be incapabl e of
adequately considering policy choices that are
agai nst Disney's interest, as Disney is a dom nant
constituency, repeat player, that absent adequate
safeguards built into the systemor injected back
into the system w il always have built-in
di sproportionate influence and the capacity to
capture the RCID CFTOD s powers for private gain.
Only by injecting nore process and diversifying the
constituent base in the CFTOD can this kind of

capture be guarded against. Any considered reforns

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

111

shoul d take these and other insights from positive
political theory into account.

Appl yi ng these insights, we can see the
creation of single-interest districts, especially,
when the |l egislation creating themis drafted and
| obbied for by a private interest, such as D sney
did here, predictably lead to a governing entity
driven to serve the private concerns of private
governnent -- private conpanies it regul ates.

In fact, in several enpirical studies that
have | ooked at very narrow purpose regul atory
entities show that those entities becone easily
captured when they have a narrow group of
constituencies. Because Di sney can use the
| ever age of governnment to get the resources other
private entities would need to pay for, it obtains
an artificial conpetitive advantage and insul ates
itself from paying the kinds of taxes on property,
for exanple, that would normally apply to privately
owned properties.

Consi der, for exanple, the parking garages in
Di sney Springs, which were provided by the district
but serve entirely the profit-maki ng enterprise of
Di sney rather than a public purpose. Not only did

Di sney get the cost savings of not having to pay

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

112

for those garages itself, the fact that they were
owned by the government neans the parking garages
do not generate tax revenues. Billions of dollars
of assets kick off no public comunity benefits
when structured this way. That would not be the
norm absent such kind -- this kind of unique and
extraordi nary arrangenent.

As a consequence of the RCID s insulation from
regul ar governance practices el sewhere in Florida,
Di sney has been able to gain a significant
artificially nmanufactured conpetitive advantage as
created by the RCID privilege granting | egislation,
and being able to i npose externalities upon
surroundi ng conmmunities w thout | egal consequences.

The pressure that Disney's growh has pl aced
on the transportati on system affordabl e housing,
and soci al services in Orange County and Osceol a
County, in particul ar, have been borne by those
counties with only partial contribution for those
affects fromDi sney's tax obligations.

It has negatively affected the quality of life
for Di sney enpl oyees, and yet Di sney has not had
full responsibility for those effects. These
findings in ny report are al so supported by the

expert reports submtted by the Kimley-Horn firm

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

113

and attached to the overall under consi deration
t oday.

The Kinm ey-Horn report concl udes, for exanple,
"The RCID, with all the powers granted of the 1967
Act, function entirely to support Disney's resort
operations and is not accountable to surroundi ng
counties or to the general public in the district.
This structure seens to prinarily self -- seenms to
be primarily self-serving and was one of the
reasons the plan was not -- has not permtted
residents to live in the district and have an
active role in the governance role in the
district."”

Furthernore, the Kinley-Horn report concl udes,
"The two cities in the RCID are essentially paper
cities. They do not have individual conprehensive
pl ans or el ected representatives supported by a
resi dent popul ation. There's no provision for
enpl oyee housing in either of these cities, nor is
there any provision for other residents who are not
enpl oyees but support or are part of the activities
and businesses in the district. The district
itself did not function as a typical Florida
gover nnment al body."

Kimey-Horn al so states, "G ven the

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

114

substantial |evel of Walt Disney World's i npact on

the regional transportation system it is
surprising the conpany has not taken nore of a
| eadership role in or responsibility for or
addressing regional traffic and ot her
transportati on problens."”

And, finally, Kimey-Horn concl udes,
"Normal ly, planning within Florida, including the
devel opnent of conprehensive plans, | and use --
| and devel opnent regul ati ons, and actions rel ated
to particul ar devel opnent proposals requiring
official action is nmediated by a public
accountability system consisting of el ected
officials and legally required public invol venent.
The unusual make up of the district's governing
body conplicates the efficacy of any public
partici pati on process. Because the district does
not hold elections by residents, any pl anni ng
perforned by the district is devoid of the norma
mechani sm of accountability that woul d underpin
public participation efforts.”

"Historically, RCID has de-annexed any

residential developnment within its historic

borders. Even if the district held public neetings

on long termor current planning issues, the

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

115

process | acks the typical feedback mechani smof a
regul ar, |ocal elections cycle."

And | did say finally, but | have one | ast
quote fromKinl ey-Horn's report, which is
consistent with ny findings. That says, "The
breadth of authority and unity of ownership result
in a situation where planni ng deci sions are
accountable prinarily to a single private busi ness
i nterest and not accountable to the typical range
of community stakeholders. Furthernore, this
preferential situation is not simlarly afforded to
ot her businesses in the sane industry.

Essentially, the largest and prinary busi ness
interest in the district has been in control of its
own approving body as it relates to | and

devel opnent w t hout neani ngful accountability to

ot her stakehol ders or a clear incentive to serve
the public interest. This could be considered a
major plan infirmty."

A denocracy deficit exists whenever a powerf ul
special interest drafts the |egislation that
ultimately defines how that private entity wll be
regul ated, as Disney did with the 1967 Act, with
little to no resistence in getting their preferred

package passed by the legislature. Wile D sney

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

116

accepted certain limts on its authority, and after
sone objections from Orange County, there were

ot herwi se few changes from what D sney proposed and
what the Florida legislature swiftly passed.

| ndeed, despite the dramatic power shift at
issue in the legislation, it was swept up in
popul ar appeal. The consequences of a successf ul
| obbyi ng canpaign. There are a variety of other
reasons why Di sney was able to acconplish this that
are described in the report, and how D sney was
able to sustain its |l evel of power and influence
over tine is also in that report. The other thing
that is described there is the inportance of the
ways i n which process-driven protections for good
governance all serve inportant purposes.

Finally, it's inportant to point out this idea
of maski ng, which is another way in which this kind
of | obbyi ng becones very successful. Part of the
reason why D sney's influence has been sustai ned,
why the belief that Disney is vital to the
communi ty has becone so enbedded, and why the use
of the governnental resources to benefit Di sney has
been so deeply accepted as legitimate stens from
its highly successful nmasking that has covered the

bl em shes in the 1967 Act, and hi dden the

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

117

weal th-transferring nature of Disney's influence.

D sney clearly deployed several masks in its
public rel ati on canpai gn posturing the 1967 Act,
RCI D powers, and Disney privileges as in the public
interest. Many of these nmasks hid the private
benefits it receives fromthe public entities over
which it exerts substantial influence and control.
Those nasks are all detailed in the report, and |I'd
be happy to answer questions about them

In addition to the masking, there are other
ways -- neans of coloring the perspectives of
potential critics decreasing the |ikelihood that
they m ght vocalize an opposition, and there are
other tactics fromnotivating others to becone
allies.

Sone nechani sns have been depl oyed by Di sney
to nmake it harder for the nmenmbers of the RCID and
the community to appreciate the dangers of Disney's
vast i nfluence over irregular governi ng processes
or to generate biases in Disney's favor. Disney
has a constant incentive to manufacture alignnent
of interest between it and the political
deci sion-makers in and around the RCID in Florida
generally. That's what we woul d expect from an

interest group, and that's what we see in the facts

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

118

denonstrati ng as evidence of the theory.

And Di sney has a constant incentive to
i nfl uence the public narrative in its favor.
D sney has pl anned t he denographi cs and conditions
of residency to nake the existing "voters” in the
RCI D, and the enpl oyees of the RCI D purposely align
wth D sney rather than truly i ndependent voters.
These and ot her neasures create a natural
constituency for Disney. They make individuals
feel indebted to Di sney, and Di sney officials nake
consci ous efforts to make peopl e, including RC D,
enpl oyees feel proud to feel |like they are public
service responsibilities are aligned with acting as
agents of Disney.

Each of those consequences of Disney's
i nfluence efforts are threats to i ndependent
deci si on-maki ng grounded in the public interest.
There's a concerning | evel of influence and control
in the structure and culture of governance, naking
the circunstances worthy of scrutiny and reform by
the CFTOD Board or the Florida |egislature.

This report al so adds insight on the idea
of -- fromthe | aw and econonmics literature on
single-interest entities. But I'll conclude by

pointing out that in light of the insights of this

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

119

report, conbined wth that provided by other parts
of this overall -- overall audit, governnment actors
shoul d recogni ze that they have an obligation to
correct flaws in governance regi nes.

Her e, the governance problens and the inherent
flaws creating high susceptibility to interest
group influence in the 1967 Act, and the RCI D
structure, denand |l egislative attention. The one
thing we realized in studying these facts is that
there's no real way to prevent this kind of
i nterest group influence but for actions to be
taken in the governing authorities to create
barriers to that kind of influence.

In a system of constitutional governnent,
| egi sl ative actors therefore have a duty to take
corrective action when they becone aware of the
public interest that's been sold out to a private
interest, especially, when the systemitself, as
here, is set up to ensure that the nornal
accountability nechani sns are m ssing, such as in
the 1967 Act doing that, and there are no
self-correcting checks or nechanisnms that will be
capabl e of doi ng so.

Research reveals that institutional safeguards

rai se the cost of decision-making in a purposeful

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

120

and useful manner. They are nost effective at
curbing the use and guardi ng against infiltration
of a public systemby a private interest.

In direct contrast, the 1967 Act attenpts to,

i nstead, snmooth the way for interest group

i nfl uence by maki ng deci si on-nmaki ng easi er for the
RCI D by di snantling process checks, regul ar systens
and denocratic accountability by reducing limts on
power and by elimnating space for other
countervailing auxiliary neasures to operate that

m ght otherw se act as institutional or systematic
checks.

Thus, the |legislature and the CFTOD Board are
in a position to evaluate how to restore and create
t he ki nds of checks that ensure better and nore
account abl e governance and to nake it nore
difficult for private interest groups |like Di sney
to capture public power.

While this report has already identified
substantial infirmties and factual support to test
the predictions that the acadenmic literature
supports, a continuation of this valued process
should be a major focus of future investigative
efforts to devel op an even nore conplete record

regardi ng RCI D and Di sney operations on the ground

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

121

across the past 50-plus years.

The standards of good gover nance and
denocratic accountability can be restored in this
area, but doing so will require an analysis of the
infirmties in the system across those netrics, and
woul d requi re an acknow edgenent of the duty to
take corrective actions to infuse the systemwth
these features and to excise fromthe systemthe
undo private influence that is propped up the 1967
Act, by the RCID structure set forth in that act,
and by the failure to expose and publically
acknowl edge the infirmties brought by private
I nterest dom nance that has occurred for too nmany
years.

Wth that, | comend to you the conplete
report, and I | ook forward to answering any
questions you m ght have. Thank you for the tinme.

CHAI R GARCI A: Thank you very nmuch for that
conpr ehensi ve presentati on, Professor Kochan.

And now we'll ask M. Thonpson to address the
gr oup.

MR, THOWMPSON: Yes. Good afternoon,

M. Chairman. It is a pleasure to be with you.
Thank you for the opportunity to address the Board

today. 1'd like to highlight a few of the nost

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

122

troubling findings of the audit, and I'd like to
start by addressing the consistent pattern of the
prior board of approving actions that only
benefited Disney. And there are nmany exanples in
the audit, but 1'Il touch on just a few.

One of themrelates to the D sney Spring
garages. These are three garages that are
constructed by D sney Springs, and they cost
hundreds of mllions of dollars to build. In fact,
it was $700 nmillion to build the three garages, and
Disney is the only one benefiting fromthese
garages. There's no other taxpayer in the district
that's benefiting. Now, D sney nmay say, well,
we're the biggest taxpayer, so what's the big deal ?

Well, the reality is, as the audit shows,
there are 57 other taxpayers in the district, and
they pay at |east 13 percent of the district's
t axes, so 13 percent of $700 mllion, that's
$91 mlIlion of obligations and liabilities that
wer e hoi sted upon the other taxpayers in this
district for sonething that did not benefit them

And the story is actually even worse than that
because Disney in many of its | eases, al so passes
t hrough these tax obligations to the district to

many of their tenants. They do so with provisions

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

123

that are called, "Central area naintenance
paynents,"” so-called CAM provisions that are built
into comrerci al |eases and require the tenants to
pay the property taxes associated with that
property.

D sney has stonewall ed us. W have tried to
figure out the extent to which they are passing on
their tax obligations to their tenants, and they
have refused to provide us with that information.
But the bottomline is whether it's 91 mllion or,
you know, well over a hundred mllion dollars of
val ue that was siphoned off by Disney with the wll
and cooperation of prior boards in the district.

That's not only the benefit that accrued
solely to Disney's advantage. As has been
menti oned before, Disney was al so payi ng on an
annual basis mllions of dollars to Disney for
ti ckets and nerchandi se and subsi di zi ng crui ses
t hat enpl oyees took. And D sney was the only
taxpayer in the district to receive these benefits.
Benefits that over tinme anounted to tens of
mllions of dollars. And here again the other
taxpayers in the district were being forced to pay
for this perk.

It was al so pernicious, those passes, because

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

124

they created a so-called discount, the illusion
that D sney was doi ng sonething to benefit the
enpl oyees. But the passes were paid for, not by
Di sney, but by the taxpayers of the district, and
t he quot e-unquot e di scounts that enpl oyees receive;
40 percent on cruises, |arge discount on
mer chandi se and food from Di sney stores, those
were -- they anmobunted to a significant anpunt of
noney, and they were paid for -- they weren't a
true discount, they were paid for by the district
back to Di sney.

And Di sney benefited fromthis arrangenent in
a nyriad of ways, but one of the ways was that its
views on contested questions within the district
woul d prevail. One exanple | would give you is the
Shades of Geen resort. This is a resort that is
operated for the benefit of U S. service menbers
and their famlies, those who are currently serving
and veterans. And many of the veteran service
menbers who stayed there wanted to get access to
t he Magi ¢ Ki ngdom by crossing a street and goi ng
t hrough the Polynesian Village to a ferry.

And, in fact, Disney did not want the guests
at the Shades of G een to have a pedestrian

crossing wwth a signal. They did not want --

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

125

Di sney certainly did not want a bridge, a
pedestrian bridge, to be built to facilitate access
to the Polynesian Village and the ferry boat, and
Di sney's views have prevailed. They prevail ed
under the prior nmanagenent and the prior board.
When Disney said junp, the prior board often said,
How hi gh.

Anot her troubling aspect of the audit that
we've heard a little bit about is the vendor
preferences, and the fact that it was a wall ed
garden, and that it was a short list of authorized
contractors. There was not a formal binding
bi ddi ng process. There was a conplete | ack of
transparency, and we've heard today that under the
current Board now there is transparency, and the
contracts that are being bid out are open for the
public to see, but that certainly was not the case
under the prior regine.

Anot her aspect of the audit that I'd like to
touch upon relates to the utility facilities.

Under the old act, the district was able to own its
own utility, and, in fact, could even build a

nucl ear power plant if it wanted to. And up until
2003 Disney owned the utilities, the utility

facilities. But, in 2003, the decision was nade

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

126

for Disney to offload those assets on to the
district, and the purchase price was significant.
It was $70 million that the district paid to D sney
in 2003 financed by bonds.

And as far as we could tell, based on the
i nvestigation that was taken in connection with the
audit, there was no evi dence of any fornal
eval uati on process. Qbviously, in a transaction
worth $70 million, would one expect to see due
diligence, to see a fornmal eval uation process, and
t here was none of that that we've been able to find
any evidence of, and it would be highly irregul ar
for a transaction of this nagnitude to proceed
w t hout any of those safeguards.

D sney al so was able to engage in an
extraordi nary degree of regulatory capture over the
prior board. As you may know, to be a Board nenber
under the prior regine, the Board nenbers had to
own |and. Well, D sney would give themthe | and
that would permt themto serve and fulfill that
requi rement. And Disney would give it to them for
the period of tine while they were board nenbers,
and then Di sney went so far for many of the board
menbers to actually pay their property taxes.

These are personal obligations of the prior board

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

127

menbers and yet for many of them Di sney went so
far as to cut the checks on D sney bank accounts to
pay these taxes.

One can't imagine really in any other part of
the country a private, regul ated entity paying the
personal taxes of a city mayor, a council nmenber.
It's just extraordinary, and that's what happened
in the prior regine.

D sney, in light of what we've been hearing
about from M. Jennings and Professor Kochan, and
the itens |'ve highlighted, it's hardly surprising
that in a governnental system where they could
avoi d hundreds of mllions of dollars of inpact
fees as they went on a building spree, that D sney
wanted to try to preserve that type of sweetheart
arrangenent, and they did so by entering into a
series of 11th hour deals to try to extend the
status quo. They entered into a devel opnent
agreenent which purported to confer on Disney the
ability to decide what was going to be built in the
district. They entered into a restrictive covenant
agreenent which purported to restrict the
district's ability to use its own property as it
saw fit. And it all did so in a way that certainly

was not an arm s | engths transacti on.

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

As we previously detail ed, these agreenents
were dead on arrival. They were riddled wth
procedural and substantive irregularities.
Irregularities that rendered themnull and void
fromthe beginning, including the fact that they
| acked proper notice, that the district had not

foll owed the steps necessary to adopt. These

128

devel opnent agreenents, that they were so one-sided

that they | acked any consideration for the
district, which is a requirenent of any contract,
and that they constituted inproper del egati on of
gover nment power to Di sney, anong ot her

shortcom ngs and fl aws.

And rather than sinply accepting that, D sney

went out and | aunched a canpaign of litigation.
They went to federal court, and they had a nyriad
of different clains. And now all of those clains
have been dism ssed with one exception, and that
one remai ning count is forecl osed by binding
circuit precedent. And nowthere's litigation in
the state court that the district comenced in
response to Disney's inproperly going to federal
court with many of the issues. And this is a

di spute where there are nmany di spositive | ega

i ssues, and instead of allowing the court to sinply

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

129

assess those dispositive | egal questi ons based on
the briefing, D sney |aunched a round of invasive
di scovery, which is expensive and wasteful, and is
a further exanple of Disney driving up the cost for
the other taxpayers in the district.

D sney has said that, "W are extrenely proud
of our inpact on the Central Florida econony over
t he past century,"” but one wonders what they are
proud of. Are they proud of a hundred thousand
wor kers who have to sit in traffic and commute
every day because there's little or no workforce
housi ng? Are they proud of a district in which
there's not a single school, in which there's not a
single public library, in which there's not a
single hospital? Are they proud of evadi ng
hundreds of mllions of dollars of inpact fees that
coul d have aneliorated the transportation
si tuati on.

The bottomline is Disney has put forth a
fairytale in which the prior governance structure
was a nodel of good governance, but the audit shows
that the exact opposite is true. And we know t hat
the audit's conclusion is correct. How do we know
that ? Because throughout the United States,

t hroughout the | ast 55 years, there is not one

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

130

single jurisdiction that has decided to enul ate and
replicate this system of governance. And that is
proof positive that the prior nodel was indeed a
failure. Thank you, M. Chairnman.

CHAI R GARCI A: Thank you, M. Thonpson. Do ny
fell ow Board nenbers have any questions or
coment s?

MR. BARAKAT: M. Chairman, would this be
appropriate for, | guess, questions to all the
present ati ons?

CHAIR GARCI A: Yes, sir.

MR. BARAKAT: Ckay. |I've got a few. | don't
know, maybe we shoul d hop around, but | guess I'I]I
just start with M. Jennings. So, first of all,

t hank you-all for the presentations and the

t hor oughness whi ch you engaged i n your task of
wor ki ng al ong side you-all is really -- | nean,
your reputations all preceded you, but |I'm
certainly thankful and not surprised, and even ny
hi gh expectations were exceeded in the process.

So M. Jennings, a couple questions. You
mentioned that prior to 1978 all of the enpl oyees
of the district were Di sney enpl oyees. What -- so
by ny math that's the first 30 years of the

district all of its enployees were on D sney books.

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

So what -- first of all, is that right, and what
changed -- can we tell what changed in -- |I'm
sorry, it was 1998. \What changed in 1998?

MR, JENNINGS: Unfortunately, | don't know.

It's lost alittle bit in the sands of tine, but

131

ny

under st andi ng was that D sney nade the decision to

have a separate payroll set up for the district i

'98, and so all of the people who were Di sney

n

enpl oyees, who working for the district, were then

transferred to the separate district payroll, but
don't know the reason for that.

MR. BARAKAT: Is it fair to say that's
sonewhat unconmon in ternms of -- in your
observati ons, have you observed that in other
special districts where there's that kind of
over | ap?

MR. JENNINGS: 1|'ve never encountered anythi

like it, actually.

ng

MR. BARAKAT: Ckay. You nentioned that there

was no i ndependent evaluation for $7.7 mllion

i npact cost of the Disney-owned golf course. It
sounded |i ke there was sone editorial coments
made, "This is a great econonic deal." | wonder
absent a econom c -- independent economc

val uati on, on what basis do we have for that

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

132

observation, or do we have any?

MR. JENNINGS: No basis that we could find.

MR, BARAKAT: Ckay. 18 mllion in roadway
repairs reall ocated to the general fund. And it
sounds |i ke you said that the roads
predom nantly -- the efforts were really, in terns
of road upkeep and repairs were enphasi zed on roads
used by visitors, by guests to the parks. That
suggests to ne that maybe roadways used
predom nantly by enpl oyees or by nei ghboring
residents were ignored in the process; is that
fair?

MR. JENNINGS: That's what we observed and
physi cally observed. Took sone photographs that
are included in our report.

MR. BARAKAT: Those are ny questions for you.
I'll let all the other folks go. 1'll reserve sone
time for questions for the other experts.

CHAI R GARCI A:  Supervi sor Aungst.

MR. AUNGST: Thank you, M. Chairman. And
ki nd of picking up where vice chair Barakat,

M. Jennings, first, | very nuch appreciate your
expertise and your report, and | very much
appreci ate your just-the-facts approach to your

tasks. It was extrenely helpful to ne. | think it

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

133

was extrenely objective and is certainly supported
by a significant anount of data that you have
i ncl uded as exhibits in the report.

| wanted to pick up on the deferred
mai nt enance for the roads. That is a narrative
that we've heard, and so | want to dig into that a
little bit. Everyone, of course, is entitled to
their own opinions, but they're not entitled to
their own facts. And one of the things that people
are saying about this Board is that we have
deferred road mai ntenance out of sone nefarious --
nefarious notivation to sonehow hurt the district,
and nothing could be further fromthe truth. | can
tell you that this Board takes public safety
extrenely seriously. It was one of the top, if not
the top, priority. You can see that through the
fire departnent staffing. You can see that through
the new vehicles. You can see that through the
FDOT, DOT, railway safeguards that we've install ed
that were cut out of old budgets.

But | want to just dig into this because | was
shocked to find out that this deferred road
mai nt enance problemis sonething that we inherited
that was intentionally done by the prior Board. 1Is

t hat accur at e?

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

134

MR. JENNINGS: That's what we found.

MR. AUNGST: Can you explain that just a
little bit nore detail? So instead of us creating
a problem we have inherited a problemthat we are
now di ggi ng out of a hole, and the problem has been
conpounded by the fact that you have supply chain
i ssues, and you have | abor issues that make it nore
difficult for us to now catch up on the road
mai nt enance. |s everything | said, do you agree
wth that, and can you expound on that a little
bit?

MR. JENNI NGS: Yeah, that's correct. The
probl em actually dates to 2018. Unfortunately, |
don't know what precipitated the decision in 2018
to -- it appears to us to intentionally divert
nmoney fromroad projects to the general fund to
create this sort of surplus in the general fund.
But that process started in 2018. And, in
fairness, we were told by enployees a variety of
things. That there were, you know, weather i ssues.
The person who was the head of the departnent
responsi ble for the road nai ntenance was
over - aggressi ve i n maki ng budget requests, supply
chain issues, et cetera.

Once again, we saw no evi dence of any of that.

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

135

And the fact of the matter is, when you say soneone
is overly aggressive, you know, what | hear from ny
many years of experience is that the road

mai nt enance requirenents that were put forth as
part of the budget were necessary. |If that's true,
t he person who was responsi ble for executing those
budgets was sinply unable to conplete the work, but
t hat shoul d have been defected in 2019 and
corrected then, and it was not. It was allowed to
persist, and you can see -- if you |ook in our
report, we actually have the enpirical anal yses of
the road conditions. And you'll notice that they
deteriorate after 2017, so starting into this 2018
peri od.

And renenber the supply chain issues that
they're referring to have to do with the pandemni c.
That was | ate 2019, early 2020 phenonenon. It
woul d not have affected 2018 or 2019. And so we
just sinmply didn't see any evidence of, you know, a
series of underlying natural causes for the
deficiencies in road mai ntenance. And, you know,
on the other hand, it does appear that there was an
intent to create this surplus in the general fund,
al t hough we don't know the reason for that.

MR. AUNGST: | have one question that | want

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

136

to ask of all three of our experts, so I'll ask
M. Jennings first, then Professor Kochan and
Attorney Thonpson can think about it when it's
their turn to answer questions.

| think that you used the word
anti-conpetitive when you di scuss the procurenent,
the closed | oop that you discuss. And that to ne
al so neans anti-innovation in ternms of a
gover nnent, because this a governnent.

And so the governnent naturally innovates and
evol ves as new best practices arise. For exanmple,
af f ordabl e housing, public transportation. This
government didn't to that. The RCID didn't do that
because it wasn't incentivized to do that by people
at the top, of course, and the Board and, you know,
by the special purpose of serving only one
corporation's interest. So ny question to you is:
Thi s new act has been descri bed by sone as
anti -business, and I wanted to get your reaction to
soneone claimng that the new structure is
anti - busi ness and sonehow the ol d structure was not
anti - busi ness?

MR JENNINGS: Well, | don't know what they
mean by anti-business. | would say that the

enpirical evidence that we coll ected suggests that

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

137

the prior structure was certainly anti-conpetitive,
meani ng, there were significant barriers to new
busi nesses being able to operate in the district.
What' s changed about that, and, of course, we've

i ntervi ewed a nunber of enployees who are directly
involved in this process, is a concerted effort to
i ncrease the nunber of vendors who are able to bid
to provide products and services to the district.
My -- again, nmy own definition of business would be
that's pro-business when you're inviting new people
to participate in the econom c opportunity in the
district.

MR. AUNGST: Thank you, sir. That's all |
have, M. Chair.

CHAIR GARCI A: Any other comments, questions
fromny fell ow Board nenbers?

MR PERI: Yes. Several of you -- | think
certainly M. Kochan and M. Thonpson nentioned the
issue with regards to regional transportation and
the lack of contribution comng from Di sney that
coul d have cone had the structure of governance
been different. |I'mwondering if you m ght be able
to el aborate on that a little bit because here in
the district, if you're in the district the roads

are typically fantastic, traffic is easy, it's

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

138

beauti ful .

The nonent you get off, you're on 192, or you
get on one of the surrounding roads, it mght take
an hour and a half to go a mle and a half. And,
you know, it's an interesting thought -- nore than
interesting, disappointing -- that, perhaps, far
nore funds could have been invested and far nore
t hought coul d have been invested if the governance
had been different here.

MR THOMPSON: Certainly, | think that's
right. |If we |ook at those inpact fees, | believe
there's sonething |Ii ke 36,000 hotel roons that
Di sney has in the district. Those were |ocated in
Orange County or Gsceola County or pretty nuch
anywhere el se, there's an acknow edgnent that when
you build hotel roons, then you create traffic.
And that has to be taken into account, and that's
what the inpact fees are for. And D sney has been
able to weasel out of over 130 mllion of
transportation inpact fees alone, and there are

ot her inpact fees for the fire departnment, police,

et cetera.

So it's not just -- it's well nore than
$130 mllion. How were they able to get out of
that? Regulatory capture. | nmention the fact that

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

139

Di sney was paying the personal tax obligations of
many of the prior Board nenbers and giving them

| and, too, and showering themw th perks, et
cetera, 40 percent discounts on Di sney cruises and
the like. And so when you put that all together,
you' ve got a extrene exanple of regul atory capture,
and the result is terrible.

PROFESSOR KOCHAN:  And |1'll add that one of
t he i ssues we have here is certainly financing, and
the failure to require the internalization of the
cost of the actions. Another is the governance
structure itself not requiring the | evel of
coordination that otherw se m ght occur if there
was no insulation of governing authority inside the
district for D sney.

The other problemis just a physical one, and
that is because the -- Disney has nade sure that
the district never has any significant anpbunt of
housi ng, certainly no significant affordable
housing for its enpl oyees, Disney has created a
physical reality outside of the district, which
i ncludes a |lot of stressors on those transportation
systens fromthe vast work force that is required
to live outside the district. And that, too, is a

direct result of D sney's |level of power and

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

140

i nfl uence and conti nued i nsul ati on.
MR. PERI: Thank you.
CHAIR GARCI A: Any other --
MR, JENNINGS: That was not really a subject

in our investigation.

MR. AUNGST: | did have a couple for Professor
Kochan. | didn't know we were going to take them
one at a tine. And, Vice Chair, | don't know if

you wanted to take the | ead on that.

MR. BARAKAT: Actually, why don't you go
ahead. | have a few

MR. AUNGST: Ckay. Thank you, sir. Just
briefly, Professor Kochan, | believe in your report
you brought up the Shades of G een pedestri an
bri dge exanple, and it's -- | think there's emails
that are included as exhibits in the report, which
were very interesting to nme, because when we first
got on the Board, when | was first appointed, |
recei ved several enmails fromveterans saying that
they stayed at Shades of Green. And one veteran,
who was a disabled veteran, that said that it was
extrenely convenient for himto be able to get to
the nonorail and the ferries across the wal kway
that was being elimnated by whatever project was

going on, and that he wanted us to revisit that as

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

141

a Board and to correct that, and to provide sone
type of pedestrian access for our veterans from
Shades of Green to the nonorail and to the ferries.
It was essentially being renoved, elimnated, taken
away of being inpossible for themto get there by

t hose neans.

And | asked the old | eadershi p about that at

the tine, and the answer | got was, Well, there's
nothing we can do. It's not within our
jurisdiction. |It's between the federal governnent

and Disney. And, essentially, what they were
sayi ng was that the federal governnent had the
| ease for Shades of G een, and it was really
bet ween the federal governnent and Di sney.

What |'ve cone to find out, based on your
report, that it actually was under our
jurisdiction, and it was sonet hi ng our planning
department had, essentially, advocated for the
pedestrian bridge, and they were eventually
over r ul ed.

And so | take that as an opportunity. You
know, for nme, this is much nore about informng the
future and the future direction and opportunities
that this Board has and that this district has, so

| want to thank you for pointing that out. And I

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

142

know | ' ve already talked to M. G| zean about
putting that on our short-termlist to evaluate the
district constructing a pedestrian bridge or
provi de sone type of way for those veterans to get
to the nonorails and to the ferries in the manner
that they used to be able to do prior to that being
t aken away.

So that's nore of just a comment to you to
t hank you for that. And then | did want to just
gi ve you and M. Thonpson an opportunity to answer
that question in terns of the anti-conpetitive
nature of the old Act, one of the things | think
that's brought up in Dr. Kochan's report --
Prof essor Kochan's report is the fact that a | ot of
busi nesses popped up on 192 and I-4 in the 1970s
and 1980s on the prom se of the investnent of
Disney in this area. And then in the 1980s and
1990s and 2000s, Disney essentially was given carte
bl anche to conpete with those businesses wthin the
district wth advantages that you-all outlined, not
havi ng to pay inpact fees.

You know, | have a client that wanted to
change 5,000 square foot retail store to a
cross-fit gym and the Cty wanted to charge him

$21,000 in transportation inpact fees for that.

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

143

That is common. He had to hire a traffic engi neer
to do a traffic study, and then we were only able
to knock it down to $17,000. And that was just to
change to the use froma store to a cross-fit gym
Every property owner, every developer in the state
of Florida has to pay inpact fees.

Many jurisdictions have inpact fees for parts
and recreation, for schools, for fire services. So
it's not just transportation, but the businesses on
192 and 1-4, they had to pay all the application
fees. They had to go through a true devel opnent
revi ew process so that whatever |ocal jurisdiction
they had to go through, and yet, as we see in the
report, a lot of those businesses went out of
busi ness as a result of the conpetition.

So from-- ny question to M. Jenni ngs was
nore focused on the procurenent side. I|I'd like to
ask you guys nore focused on that elenent of the
nature of having a corporation, particularly, one
of the nore powerful, successful corporations in
the world owning its own governnent and having the
ability to exerci se governnental functionalities,
is that -- is the new act anti-business conpared to
that set up, and |l et nme know your thoughts on that?

PROFESSOR KOCHAN: Sure. |'Ill start, and you

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

144

are highlighting a ot of great points here.

One -- let ne start with just a bit of an

expl anation of why interest groups do what they do
and what the | aw and econonmics literature calls
rent - seeki ng behavior, is what we're seeing at play
here. 1t's when you're trying to seek sonme ki nd of
advant age from the channel s of governnental power

t hat you could not otherw se get fromthe

mar ket pl ace.

I n other words, you get sone kind of
exenpti on, such as exenption from paying the fees
that your conpetitors do. That yields an advant age
because your costs are | owered; whereas, your
conpetitors don't have the sane |lowering of their
cost which neans you have a now artificially
created advant age over your conpetitors. So this
rent-seeking is a way to nornally just get sone
kind of legislation that m ght be beneficial to
you, a subsidy or sonething el se.

Here, they've got an entire governing
structure to serve your interest that do this,
coupl ed with exenpti ons and exceptions that give
you these conpetitive advantages. And what that
means is that you're able to operate at a | ower

cost than your conpetitors, not because you

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

145

i nnovat ed, not because you realize cost savings,
not because you are sonehow produci ng sonet hi ng
nore efficiently, but sinply because you' ve

recei ved governnent favor. And that is why D sney
has been able to drive out other businesses and get
conpetitive edge of their own.

The second consequence of that, then, is that
it does drive out conpetition, and it, therefore,
means that you do not have the natural forces of
conpetition that nake all of us better off,
including the citizens of Central Florida,

i ncl udi ng the people who m ght be wanting to visit
Disney facilities. They are all worse off because
there are not these conpetitive pressures on D sney
to, in fact, inprove, innovate, and otherw se
provi de a better product.

So one of the things that we often describe
when we're teaching economcs to policynakers, to
judges and other things is you need to take into
account all of the uni ntended consequences of your
actions. And when you give soneone a conpetitive
advantage, artificially, you decrease the anmount of
conpetitive pressures that nornmally lead to
I nnovati on and i nprovenent.

And so we shoul d expect not only does that

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

146

mean that we don't know what kind of industry m ght
have conme into the district or surroundi ng areas
but for this |ack of conpetition -- this ability to
suppress conpetition that Di sney has obtai ned by
gai ning RCI D favor, but we also need to understand
that we don't know how t he products of the dom nant
nmonopol y here coul d have been better if they were
subj ect to conpetitive forces.

So ny point is we mght have had peopl e
conpeting with Disney on all kinds of |evels: at
the hotel |evel, even at the amusenent park |evel;
ot herwi se, that m ght have brought a better product
into the mx. But we also mght just have a better
Disney as a result of them being forced to conpete.
So we don't know. The consuners of Disney's
products don't know that they m ght not be --
actually a nmuch better conpany if they were forced
to conpete.

So that all leads to ny final answer to
your -- to your major question, which is, was the
Reedy Creek | nprovenent Act of 1967 a pro-business
act. Absolutely not. Nothing that enbeds a -- a
private entity with public authority like that is
pro- busi ness. Sinply because it gave a busi ness an

advant age does not make it pro-busi ness because it

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

147

is anti-conpetitive, because it is pro-capture,
because it is providing special privileges.

There's no right -- |I've heard it descri bed by sone
in Disney as we are losing our rights to the
governance regine. There's no right to a
governance regi ne on the part of business.

And so a pro-business environnent is one that
respects neutrality, respects governance,
princi pl es which provide accountability, and keep
out the ability for any conpany to seek a
conpetitive advantage over another through the
auspi ces of governnent.

So really | see nothing that i s pro-business
about how a system which sinply gives an
entitlenent to a particul ar busi ness and everythi ng
that's pro-business about a systemthat provides a
neutral and | evel playing field for all of business
to thrive

MR THOMPSON: And | agree with everything the
prof essor has just said. He said it far nore
el oquently than | would, but | would add one thing,
which is, governnents are not bound by the
anti-trust laws. They engage in anti-conpetitive
conduct. So it's particularly pernicious when you

have a corporation that totally captures the

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

148

gover nment because they can then use those powers
free and clear of the anti-trust |laws to, you know,
crush | ocal conpetition, and that's exactly what
we' re seeing here.

MR, JENNINGS: One real world exanple I'd |iKke
to offer, because | was struck by Professor
Kochan's renmarks, is many of you won't renenber
this, but there was a tine when the only conpany
that was allowed to provide tel ephone service in
the United States was AT&T, and | renenber it well.
We had these big giant phones that were on the wall
wth a coiled wire in a giant receiver, and that
was the only tel ephone service able in the United
St at es.

In fact, if you went back a little earlier,
because AT&T wasn't willing to invest in expanding
its infrastructure, a |lot of those people that had
t he phones on the walls al so had what were call ed
party |ines where they had to share their phone
service w th unknown ot her customers of AT&T,
soneti nes whil e engaged in a phone call.

And so the point of ne saying that is to -- |
want to reinforce Professor Kochan's point, this
structure isn't really even good for Disney. You

know, the -- your question, M. Aungst, about

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

149

conpetition, conpetition is a good thing.
Conpetition brings better goods and services to all
of us at better prices.

CHAI R GARCI A: Thank you, sir.

MR. BARAKAT: Al right. 1'Il take a -- I"'1]
junp back in, M. Chair. Just a couple questions
for Professor Kochan. Now, you use the phrased --
in describing this district, you used the phrase,
"sui generis"; is that right?

PROFESSOR KOCHAN: Correct, yes.

MR. BARAKAT: Now, I"'mnot a -- not a Latin
scholar. | don't have a Harvard degree. | only
have a University of Florida, but | think that
means, essentially, one of kind sprung forth from
no |i ke exanple and naybe no future; is that right?

PROFESSOR KOCHAN: Excel l ent, vyes.

MR. BARAKAT: Ckay. M/ -- the one thing |I do
know, | account for probably hundreds of conmunity
devel opnent districts in the state of Florida in ny
career, and | noticed that in sonetines exanpl es
are given of pointing to other CD-type district,
maybe -- there's Universal or el sewhere where their
boards are solely controlled by -- or appointed by
the I and owners, and sone view that as though naybe

Disney is being treated unfairly.

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

150

Now, you tal ked about nobst districts, CDDs, in
particular, tend to be for a very narrow purpose, a
very narrow scope, specific purpose, specific
limts in time. This district, | think you
hi ghlighted a -- uniquely generalized purpose and
powers, no limt in tinme, no voting power.

| just want to underline, is it fair to say
this is a uniquely powerful special district, not
just in the state of Florida, but in your
observation throughout the United States?

PROFESSOR KOCHAN:  Yes, absolutely. It is
uni quely powerful. It is distinguished fromthe
CDDs in others despite the fact that | and owners --
you know, the election process, it may be
different. And there may be simlar limtations on
the elected -- election process in other districts,
but the level of authority and the diversity of
constituents are quite different in this.

And so it is not only unique in Florida, and I
t hi nk David Thonpson pointed it, as well, it's
uni que throughout the entire United States. No
one -- | think probably not just that no one has
adopted it because it doesn't seemli ke a good
| evel of governance, but it's extraordi nary that

this was ever able to be accepted as a legitimte

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

151

form of governance in the first place. So highly
uni que.

MR. BARAKAT: Probably not -- | mean, | know
that D sney and other | arge | and owners subsequent
where Di sney has attenpted to sort of expand this
operations in other areas. |Is it fair to say that
it's, at least, attenpted to duplicate or maybe
haven't been successful ?

PROFESSOR KOCHAN: | think -- | don't know the
full facts on Disney's operations el sewhere, but I
do know generally sonme of what you're descri bing,
and the attenpts have been unsuccessful, | would
assune, because of the extraordinary ask that's
bei ng made and the wi sdom of those who've rejected
it.

MR. BARAKAT: And | guess | ast question, or
| ast piece for you, in terns of -- you talked a | ot
about negative externalities. | think, you know,
anot her word for that is inpact, right? W' ve had
a |l ot of discussion of inpact fees. That's a
fairly quantifiable nunber. But | can't help but
wonder, do you think it goes -- when we take out
t he nunber of inpact fees that naybe had been | eft
unpaid, do you think that fully captures the

nonetary i npact of these negative externalities

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

152

i npact when you take into account a hundred
t housand empl oyees, and the true sort of negative
economc inpact, is it really fully captured by
that inpact fee figure, or is this a subject that
m ght need deserve sone further inquiry to fully
determ ne the inpact?

PROFESSOR KOCHAN:  No, | think it's an
I nperfect conpensation for the overall i npact
that's being made, especially the inpact on the
community condition or the human conditi on of
peopl e who are forced to live | ong distances from
their workpl ace sinply because the work -- the
enpl oyer itself is prohibiting housing near the
| ocation of the activity. There are other inpacts
whi ch just aren't calculating the inpact fee that
are i nposing negative harmand externalities on the
community that wouldn't be captured by the inpact
fees. There's the inpact on the absence of
conpetition that would provide better services
to -- and nore opportunities throughout the region
if there were higher |evels of conpetition.

So I think further study needs to be done into
the overall econom c inpact of the D sney operation
and its inposition of those negative externalities

beyond what woul d be conpensated for by the inpact

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

153

f ees.

"Il ask if there are any foll ow ups on that
question, but |I do want to say one thing about your
prior question, as well, which | neglected to say.
And its -- you know, there's quite a bit of

evi dence that D sney sought out the extraordi nary
authority in Florida precisely because they were
frustrated by the inability to have that in

Di sneyland. And the frustrations -- the costs that
were i nposed upon them the costs of conplying with
governnent. And so Walt Disney had a real plan to
avoid all the things he wi shed he had done in

Di sneyl and and the surroundi ng conmuni ti es by not
replicating the need to deal wth the pesky systens
of governance that he had to deal with in
California when we cane to Florida. And that's --
there's -- there are stories as to why other cities
were rejected precisely because they were unwi |l |ling
to provide Walt Disney with those kinds of special
privileges that ultimately Florida did provide.

MR, BARAKAT: Thank you. You know what? One

last thing. |I'msorry, M. Chair. | appreciate
t he i ndul gence. Professor Kochan, | really just
wanted to thank you for your thorough, I'll say,

original analysis of this district theory. But I

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

154

wonder -- you know, you also in your report

acknow edged sort of a debt paid, prior academcs

who have | ooked into this issue. |I'mnot sure if
he's still here, Professor Fogl esong, and his book,
Married to the Mouse, 20 years ago. |Is it fair to

say that you are not the first academc to identify
these flaws? M sense is that these are not new --
whol ly new identifications. These have been fl aws

t hat have been identified for sone tine, but naybe

you can expand on that.

PROFESSOR KOCHAN: Yes, that's absolutely
true. It is -- and Fol gesong's work was extrenely
useful in -- and thorough, and in his overall
met hodol ogy and study was extrenely val uable to not
only ny work but also to |I think exposing many of
t hese problens. And there are other academ cs
cited in ny scholarship. W've also identified
this over tinme. | would -- and | tried to coll ect
sone of themtogether in their insights into the
study, and also then apply ny own expertise in | aw
and econom cs to show why what they were expl ai ni ng
fits this broader literature, as well.

MR. BARAKAT: And it sounds |ike what you're
saying i s even though these flaws have been

publically identified, part of this sort of this

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

155

capture of the district is the econom c benefit, is
it fair to say because it was so heavily
concentrated in one -- the benefit was so heavily
concentrated in one entity, but maybe negati ve

i npacts were sort of nore disparate, that's part of
the chall enge that nade the reformso difficult.

PROFESSOR KOCHAN:. Yes. So when you have
concentrated benefits on one entity |ike D sney,

t hey have every -- they are willing to invest a | ot
to secure and sustain their |evel of influence.
Wien you have di spersed cost, it's nmuch harder for
anyone to cone and challenge them So I'll give
you an exanmpl e.

If -- if Disney gets a hundred units of --
$100, right, worth of benefit out of a particular
deci sion, they are able to spread that across, say,
a community which may not even have voting
authority or access to any | evels of power
what soever. But putting that aside, they' re able
to spread a 10 cent for this one thing. Cbviously,
there are multiples of this that Disney is getting
in terms of perks, but they are able to spread that
across so everyone | oses at 10 cents.

VWll, the people who | ose at 10 cents aren't

even going to spend up to 10 cents to save 10

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

156

cents. Disney is going to spend up to a hundred
dollars to get a hundred dollars. And so who's
going to win in that kind of situation? 1It's

al wvays going to be the nore powerful interest group
who has the concentrated benefit rather than those
who have the di spersed cost.

Now, on top of that there's an incentive on
the part of those who have this access to power to
get the concentrated benefits to al so decrease the
| evel of infornmation available to people to even
know t hat they're being harmed or how they're being
harned. | n other words, how they're being harned,
that they're being harnmed because Di sney has
speci al advant ages.

So they have an incentive to keep that
information or to prevent that information from
even flowing to the people who ot herw se m ght
resist. And so there's going to be an i nvestnent
in control over information flows, as well as
public rel ations canpai gns that convi nce everyone
that what's good for Disney is good for them and
that's why we see such a sophisticated operati on.

And this was -- you know, the |evel of
sophi stication on the part of the D sney PR

department fromthe point of creating the district

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

157

in the first place and through legislation in 1967
all the way through today is extraordinary and has
been a major contributor to the success, as well as
this differential -- this dynamc of the
differential in benefits versus burdens.

MR. BARAKAT: Ckay. Thank you.

CHAI R GARCI A: Any ot her questions or conmments
fromny fell ow board nenbers? | have sone brief
cl osing comments before we vote, but | just want to
make two really basic observations. Disney
publ i shed a report about two weeks ago about all of
the revenues that are generated fromtheir
busi nesses, and | want to nmake sonething very
clear. W're thankful for that. GCkay. Bringing
i n busi nesses that generate revenues is a wonderful
t hi ng.

But as Charlie Miunger, one of the w sest nen
ever lived, Warren Buffet's right-hand man used to
al ways say is that revenues aren't free. You have
to spend to generate revenues. And the way
governnent deals with the revenues generated by big
busi nesses is that they charge themi npacts fees,
and i npact fees are then used for the public good
| i ke schools, roads, affordable housing, all the

things that are problematic around the district.

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

158

And so we're grateful to Disney for their
revenues, but you understand that for 57 years, as
ny fellow directors and these experts have pointed
out, surroundi ng busi nesses outside of the district
were paying inpact fees. No inpact fees were paid
wthin the district. Hundreds and hundreds of
mllions of dollars.

And |l et ne just share an anecdotal story. |
got a call after our audit was published yesterday
froma very successful investor, and he said, Hey,
Martin, |I'mnot surprised at all the problens from
t he governance standpoints that |'ve seen in that
report fromthe old Reedy Creek board. And | said,
How do you know anyt hi ng about the old Reedy Creek
board? And he said, Are you seeing what is
currently going on with respect to the Di sney
board? Do you see the nunber of sophisticated
stockhol ders that are saying that there's a
| eadership problemat Disney currently?

And so last night | just | ooked up and did a
little bit of research and found a letter from an
institutional investor, a substantial investor, in
Disney. |It's an investor called Ancora,
AA-NCORA And | quote fromhis letter to the

board of directors of Disney. He said, "A degree

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

159

of sharehol der-driven change is certainly warranted
in Disney's board room foll owm ng an extended peri od
of absent-m nded gover nance."”

That is the poor governance that we were
experiencing in this district. D sney controlled
the old Reedy Creek board, and so it's the
trickle-down effect. As shareholders of D sney
currently recogni ze, there's a | eadershi p probl em
there, that trickled down to the old board. And so
| have a few closing brief comments, and they are
responsive to the presentations of our experts
today, and they also relate to other things that
are in this audit.

So the audit is indeed conprehensive. It is
also illum nating and not infrequently shocki ng.
The audit features a litany of revel ati ons about
the district and its observations. They wll
astoni sh ne but none of them should surprise
Di sney. The audit indicates that Disney pulled a
bait-and-swtch at the very outset. It sold the
Reedy Creek Act of Florida in the md '60s as one

t hi ng, but proceeded to do sonethi ng al nost

entirely different |ike Professor Kochan outlined.
Above all, the conpany failed or, perhaps,
rat her neglected to fulfill critical promses it

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

160

made to Florida. For alnpbst a half century, D sney
used its enornous influence to defend and fortify

t he unprecedented government entitlenents for which
it as a conpany exclusively benefited as our
experts have outlined today.

The audit docunents the clever, creative, and
even i nappropriate tactics that were used over
decades to, yes, outnmaneuver and co-opted
politicians. At $82 billion in revenue a year.

One of the world' s biggest conpanies.

The conpany cleverly no -- clearly no | onger
needed the entitlenents to prosper a |long tine ago.
D d sharehol ders were the wi nners, and the | osers
were, as you' ve heard here today, the district
itself, its enployees, its taxpayers, |loca
vendors, who spoke here today, citizens of Central
Fl ori da, and even the federal government.

The audit indicates that D sney never
delivered on its century-old promse to create
housing in the district. And this has caused
avoi dable quality of life issues for district
enpl oyees. The failure to collect inpact fees by
the district for so many years has exacer bat ed
traffic and environnental problens for Centra

Fl orida according to the report.

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

161

The audit docunents how obstructions were
created to favor Di sney vendors over the other
vendors, sone that spoke here today, that are now
avai |l abl e thanks M. G | zean because of the new
policies, and they're now doi ng business with the
district. Disney sold its utility operation, as
M. Thonpson noted, to the district for many, nany
mllions of dollars, and our experts have not been
able to validate that a fair price was paid to the
district.

Even tax incone was hidden for years fromthe
federal government. Fromthe $700 mllion parking
garages that M. Thonpson tal ked about to mllions
of dollars in inappropriate governnent perks that
M. Jennings tal ked about, the audit shows how
Di sney benefited to the exclusion of many ot her
taxpayers in the district. This district noney
t axpayer noney that were paid by ot her taxpayers,
non- Di sney conpani es were used for the exclusive
benefit of D sney's properties.

The audit shows that Di sney even paid for real
estate taxes for sonme of the governnent officials
who were charged with regulating its business
practices. |'ve got to repeat that. Were have

you seen that? The audit shows that Di sney even

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

162

paid real estate taxes for sone of the governnent
officials who were charged with regulating its
busi ness practi ces.

G ven the stunning facts in the audit, it is
especially shanmeful that Disney is still trying to
preserve its entitlenents, |et al one through
unl awful , 11th hour agreenents. As is reveal ed
in those |lawsuits against the district, D sney, to
this day, to this day, refuses to acknow edge any
infirmties, any. They're saying that 1967 Act
that they tried to stick us in the nud with is good
for day -- good today. Wat do you know -- have
any busi ness for governnent that's functioning the
sane today as they were in 1967? It just isn't the
case.

So they refuse to acknowl edge any infirmties
W th respect to those one-sided agreenents that
they had years ago. The Reedy Creek Act was a
Pandora's Box. A curse disguised in the formof a
beautiful gift. Nowthat the truth is out, Florida
| awmakers and governnent officials should expel the
curse with nore reforns to the district. There are
many referenced in the audit in terns of reforns
t hat shoul d be wel coned on a bipartisan basi s:

traffic solutions, schools, affordable housing.

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

163

Who argues against that? D sney.

So as the audit denonstrates, the district was
indeed in dire need of reformand thus | egislature
was anply warranted in passing the new | egi sl ation
this year to begin reformng the district, to be
begin reformng the district. This has enabl ed our
Board to inplenent a nyriad of reforms. W | o0k
forward to working wth other governnent officials
to continue reformthe district to serve the public
good that Professor Kochan, M. Jenni ngs, and
M. Thonpson outlined and are which are nore --

di scussed in nore detail in this 80-page report
that, wwth its supplenents, is hundreds of pages.

So that's all | have to say. |If ny fellow
di rectors don't have anynobre questions or comments,
or if our experts have nothing else to add, | would
like to ask if there is a notion to approve the
I ndependent audit prepared by a nunber of very
qual i fied experts. |Is there such a notion?

MR. BARAKAT: | wll proudly so notion.

MR, AUNGST: Second.

CHAI R GARCI A: Any further discussion?

All in favor, indicate by saying aye.

THE BOARD. Aye.

CHAI R GARCI A:  Any oppose? So let the record

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

164

that that notion passes unani nously.

We' re now down to unfinished business or other
busi ness, and I would ask ny fellow directors and
general counsel and M. G| zean, is there any
unfi ni shed busi ness or other business to be
di scussed today?

MR. AUNGST: M. Chair, if |I mght, just
briefly. | know we've had a very |long neeting, but
we're comng to the end of the year, and at the
begi nning of this Board, we were kind of | ooking
for sonme structure before M. G| zean, and we used
to tal k about things at the end of the neeting
about things that we'd |li ke to see comng up. And
wth the eye towards the future and the new year, |
think that housing affordability is a huge issue
and so is public transaction.

In that -- inline with that, one of the
things the legislature required us to do, along
wth the report that we just accepted, was to
devel op a new conprehensi ve plan by 2026. And so |
beli eve that we need to start that process in
earnest. | think the report, the historical
context of the report gives us a good opportunity
to start that process. Obviously, the

conpr ehensi ve pl anni ng process takes awhile and is

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

165

i ncl usi ve and col | aborative of all of our

t axpayers. That woul d be an outstandi ng
opportunity to start devel opi ng and adopti ng sone
state-of -the-art policies and practices on

af f or dabl e housi ng and public transportation.

One thing that is extrenely inportant to note
about the new Act is that it enpowers the district
to invest in projects outside of the district, and
so it is entirely possible and entirely feasible
for the district to provide insensitive-s for
af f ordabl e housi ng devel opnents and public
transportation that are even not within the
district. And so collaborating wth our counsel,
our planning staff, and M. Glzean, I'd like to
ki nd of launch that effort and do it
ent husi astically, and then look at this as a
springboard to the future on actually delivering on
those things and doing it over the next year, naybe

even sooner.

Anot her comment, |'m super excited about
swearing in our new firefighters. | think we have
21, 227

MR FERRARI : It is 23.

MR. AUNGST: Twenty-three new firefighters,

and I would highly encourage M. G| zean public

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

166

swearing in cerenony, and let's really cel ebrate
that acconplishnent for the fire departnent and for

the district.

And | think that -- the only other comment,
and, hopefully, M. G| zean, please don't kill ne,
but, again, |ooking forward to things, | know that

you're working on maternity/ paternity | eave policy.
My wife and | did not get maternity or paternity

| eave for either of our children; our daughter and

our adopted son. So |I know that you're al so

| ooki ng at an adoption | eave policy, and so that's

really inportant for me. So, our enployees, | want
you to know, we're not stopping thinking about you.
We're al ways thinking about you, we're al ways

t hi nki ng about ways to nake your experience here

t he best possi bl e experience, and that's sonething

" mlooking forward to in the comng nonths to talk
about this, this policy. Thank you, sir.

CHAI R GARCI A: Yeah, thank you for those
comments. Any further commrents?

VR. BARAKAT: M. Chair, I'Il have to just --
| appreciate Supervi sor Aungst raising these
issues. | too amlooking forward, we really truly
in terns of the opportunities to help foster, and I

appreci ate the public comments earlier. And I

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

167

think fromthe public comments fromthe report, the
need for this district to address affordable
housi ng i ssues, transportation issues, our -- |
think it's been abundantly clear for a long tine
t hat anybody has sat, whether you' re an enploy or a
visitor who's sat in traffic on |I-4 trying to
access this district, you're sitting in a parking
lot that is I-4, | think it's obviously not --
there's roomfor inprovenent, particularly, as the
surroundi ng suburbs around this district have grown
significantly over the last 15 to 20 years.
There's an overwhel m ng need, and | think as going
forward basis, | think one is inportant | ooking --
one, trying to identify further use into the
negative externalities, true nonetary cost of what
maybe failed as a district to address in the past.

And, two, naybe using that as an opportunity
to | aunch oursel ves forward and devel op a pl an
nmoving forward. So | wanted to -- those conments,
and I"'m |l ooking forward to having to work with the
rest of this teamalong with M. G| zean, of
course, to engage on those issues in the com ng
year. And, also, Merry Christmas and Happy
Hanukkah and Happy New Year. Thank you.

CHAIR GARCI A: Anything further? |If not,

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

t hank you to everybody for your interest and for
joining us today. W now stand adj ourned.

(Time ended 1:15 p.m)

168

Legal Realtime Reporting




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

169

CERTI FI CATE
STATE OF FLORI DA
COUNTY OF ORANGE
|, SANDRA D. BROWN, Florida Professional
Reporter, certify that | was authorized to and did
stenographically report the foregoi ng proceedi ngs
and that the transcript is a true and conpl ete

record of ny stenographic notes.

Dated this 8th day of Decenber, 2023.

%{;I}d?{( /‘7 Z')W(

SANDRA D. BROMW
FLORI DA PROFESSI ONAL REPORTER

Legal Realtime Reporting




Central Florida Tourism Oversight District

Board of Supervisors

Agenda Item 6.2

Page 1of1

Meeting Date

January 24, 2024

Agenda Iltem Name

Second Amendment to Reedy Creek Improvement District/Orange County Amended and
Restated Water, Wastewater, and Reclaimed Water Service Territorial Agreement.

Requested Action

Board approval of the Second Amendment to Reedy Creek Improvement District/Orange
County Amended and Restated Water, Wastewater, and Reclaimed Water Service
Territorial Agreement.

Staff Report

The Territorial Agreement was originally executed in 1992 and defines the potable water,
wastewater, and reclaimed water service territorial boundary between CFTOD and the
County. The Territorial Agreement provides that CFTOD and the County may alter the
territorial boundary by mutual consent. This amendment alters the territorial boundary by
removing 114.298 acres from the CFTOD Territorial Area in the north-west portion of the
District. In addition to changing the territorial boundary, this amendment also changes the
name of the agreement to “AMENDED AND RESTATED WATER, WASTEWATER, AND
RECLAIMED WATER SERVICE TERRITORIAL AGREEMENT” and substitutes “CFTOD” for
“RCID” in all places in the Territorial Agreement.

Additional Analysis

This amendment to the territorial boundary is to accommodate an affordable housing
project to be located on the 114.298-acre parcel. This parcel is located adjacent to Orange
County Utilities infrastructure along Avalon Road. The nearest CFTOD utility infrastructure
is over 1.5-miles away in the Flamingo Crossing area.

Fiscal Impact Summary

No fiscal impact.

Exhibits Attached

1. Second Amendment to Reedy Creek Improvement District/Orange County Amended and
restated Water, Wastewater, and Reclaimed Water Service Territorial Agreement




SECOND AMENDMENT
TO
REEDY CREEK IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT/ORANGE COUNTY
AMENDED AND RESTATED WATER, WASTEWATER, AND
RECLAIMED WATER SERVICE TERRITORIAL AGREEMENT

THIS SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE REEDY CREEK
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT/ORANGE COUNTY AMENDED AND RESTATED
WATER, WASTEWATER, AND RECLAIMED WATER SERVICE
TERRITORIAL AGREEMENT (this “Second Amendment”), is made and entered into
on the date of later execution below (the “Effective Date”), by and between CENTRAL
FLORIDA TOURISM OVERSIGHT DISTRICT, an independent special district created
pursuant to Chapter 2023-5, Laws of Florida (“CFTOD”), whose address is P.O. Box
10170, Lake Buena Vista, Florida 32830, and ORANGE COUNTY, a charter county and
political subdivision of the State of Florida (hereinafter called the “County”), whose
address is 201 South Rosalind Avenue, Orlando, Florida 32801.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Reedy Creek Improvement District (“RCID”’) and the County
entered into that certain Reedy Creek Improvement District/Orange County Amended and
Restated Water, Wastewater, and Reclaimed Water Service Territorial Agreement dated
September 30, 2008 (the “Original Agreement”), as amended by that certain First
Amendment to Reedy Creek Improvement District/Orange County Amended and Restated
Water, Wastewater, and Reclaimed Water Service Territorial Agreement dated November
14, 2018 (the “First Amendment,” and together with the Original Agreement, the
“Territorial Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, the Territorial Agreement defines the potable water, wastewater, and
reclaimed water service territorial boundary between RCID and the County and describes
the areas referred to therein as “RCID’s Territorial Area” and the “Adjacent Territorial
Area;” and

WHEREAS, Section 5 of the Territorial Agreement provides that RCID and the
County may alter the Territorial Boundary by mutual consent; and

WHEREAS, RCID’s Territorial Area was altered by that certain Territorial
Boundary Adjustment Agreement dated December 6, 2022 (the ‘“Adjustment
Agreement,”); and

WHEREAS, RCID was renamed the Central Florida Tourism Oversight District
by Chapter 2023-5, Laws of Florida; and

Page 1 of 4



WHEREAS, CFTOD and the County desire to modify and alter RCID’s Territorial
Area, as that term is defined in the Territorial Agreement, in accordance with the provisions
set forth herein; and

WHEREAS, this Second Amendment fulfills the requirements set forth in Section
5 of the Original Agreement; and

WHEREAS, CFTOD and the County have determined that it is appropriate to use
the Second Amendment to change the name of the Territorial Agreement from “REEDY
CREEK IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT/ORANGE COUNTY AMENDED AND
RESTATED WATER, WASTEWATER, AND RECLAIMED WATER SERVICE
TERRITORIAL AGREEMENT” to “AMENDED AND RESTATED WATER,
WASTEWATER, AND RECLAIMED WATER SERVICE TERRITORIAL
AGREEMENT”.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises, and for other
good and valuable consideration, the parties agree as follows:

I. The recitals set forth above are true and correct and by this reference are
incorporated into this Second Amendment.

2. The name of the Territorial Agreement is changed from “REEDY CREEK
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT/ORANGE COUNTY AMENDED AND RESTATED
WATER, WASTEWATER, AND RECLAIMED WATER SERVICE TERRITORIAL
AGREEMENT” to “AMENDED AND RESTATED WATER, WASTEWATER, AND
RECLAIMED WATER SERVICE TERRITORIAL AGREEMENT”.

3. CFTOD and County desire to remove the area more particularly described on
Exhibit “B” from RCID’s Territorial Area. Accordingly, Exhibit “A2” to the Adjustment
Agreement is hereby replaced with Exhibit “A3,” which is attached to this Second
Amendment and incorporated by this reference into the Territorial Agreement. From and
after the Effective Date of this Second Amendment, RCID’s Territorial Area means all
lands lying within and encompassed by the Territorial Boundary described in Exhibit “A3.”

4. CFTOD shall be substituted for RCID in all places in the Territorial Agreement and
Adjustment Agreement unless the context requires otherwise. Other than the substitution
of CFTOD for RCID in the Territorial Agreement and Adjustment Agreement and the
alteration of RCID’s Territorial Area, the terms and conditions of the Territorial Agreement
and Adjustment Agreement shall remain the same.

5. Except as modified by this Second Amendment, the terms and provisions of the
Territorial Agreement shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect.

[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON THE FOLLOWING PAGES]

Page 2 of 4



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, CFTOD and the County have caused this Second Amendment
to be executed by their duly designated representatives as of the date and year indicated
below.

“CFTOD”

CENTRAL FLORIDA TOURISM OVERSIGHT
DISTRICT

Martin Garcia
Board Chairman

Date
Approved by the CFTOD Board of Supervisors on ,2024.
STATE OF
COUNTY OF

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of [ ] physical

presence or [ ] online notarization, this  day of , 2024, by

as of the Central Florida Tourism Oversight

District, an independent special district created pursuant to Chapter 2023-5, Laws of

Florida, on behalf of CFTOD, who [ ] is personally known to me or [ ] has produced
as identification.

(SEAL)

Notary Public

Name Printed or Stamped

My Commission Expires:

Page 3 of 4



“COUNTY”

ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA
By: Board of County Commissioners

By:

Jerry L. Demings
Orange County Mayor

Date:

ATTEST: Phil Diamond, CPA, Orange County Comptroller
as Clerk of the Board of County Commissioners

By:

Deputy Clerk

Page 4 of 4



Exhibit “B”
to
Second Amendment to Reedy Creek Improvement District/Orange County Amended and
Restated Water, Wastewater and Reclaimed Water Service Territorial Agreement /See attached
sketch of description totaling 2 pages]

Exhibit B
Cover Page



DESCRIPTION

A parcel of land lying in Section 8, Township 24 South, Range 27 Eost, Urange
County, Florida, and being more particularly described as follows:

Commence at the Southwest corner of said Section 8, run along the South line of
the Southwest 1/4 of said Section 8, N 8939'31" E, 1330.51 feet to the
Southwest corner of the Southeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of said Section and
the Point of Beginning; thence run along the West line of the Southeast 1/4 of
the Southwest 1/4 of said Section, N 00'24'44" E, 242.11 feet to a point on the
Easterly right of way line of County Road 545 as shown on Orange County right of
way map, Project number 12167.001 dated November 14, 2014 and aq point on a
non—tangent curve concave Westerly having o radius of 2826.01 feet, and a
central angle of 19"14'15”; thence from a tangent bearing of N 1834'50" E run
Northerly along the arc of said curve and right of way line, 948.86 feet; thence
run along said right of way line, N 00°39'25" W, 141.86 feet; thence departing said
right of way line run along the North line of the Southeast 1/4 of the Southwest
1/4 of said Section, N 89'41'27" E, 1188.92 feet to the Northeast corner thereof;
thence run along the West line of the Northwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of said
Section, N 0015'09" E, 1265.33 feet to a point on the Hartzog Road right of way
line as described in Official Records Book 9735, Page 8005 of the Public Records
of QOrange County Florida; thence run along said right of way line the following
four courses; N B9°43'24” E, 207.16 feet to a point on a non—tangent curve
concave Southwesterly having a radius of 802.00 feet, and a central angle of
65'19°'49”; from a tangent bearing of N 839'43'09" E run Southeasterly along the
arc of said curve, 914.46 feet; S 24'57°'02" E, 499.49 feet; S 23'48'17" E, 1807.61
feet to a point on the South line of said Section 8; thence departing said right
of way line run along said South line, S 89°39'31" W, 3220.30 feet to the Point of

Beginning. Containing 114.298 Acres, more or less.

/—DS

This document hos Been electronically signed using o

o )\,GREEN ",
§ d;ﬂFlcq) "g DocusSigned by:
{ 2‘!’ NO. 5357“\1‘{2 G
ia STATE OF 5_! M e
"»‘g%"ion\o" d‘? § FO7A464D3A7549E...
iy ste‘
11/20/2023 GENERAL NOTES:

1. BEARINGS ARE BASED ON THE LINE, SW 1/4, SEC. 8—245-27E AS BEING

N 89°39'31" E

digital signature in compliance with F.A.C. 2. THIS SKETCH IS NOT_A SURVEY,
5J-17.602(3). Printed copies of this document are 3, THIS SKETCH MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED IN SIZE BY REPRODUCTION. THIS
not considered signed and the e—signature must be MUST BE CONSIDERED WHEN OBTAINING SCALED DATA.
varified on any electronic copy. The seal appearing 4. THIS SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION MEETS THE APPLICABLE "STANDARDS OF
on this document wos authorized by Jeff L. Green PRACTICE® AS SET FORTH BY THE FLORIDA BQARD OF PROFESSIONAL
P.S.M. 5357. SURVEYORS AND MAPPERS IN RULE 5J-17.050-.052, FLORIDA
Reedy Creek Energy Services, LB 7714 ADMINISTRATIVE CODE.
5300 Center Drive, Buy Loke, Florida 32B30-1000 REVISED: 11 /20/23
FILING AR DATE:
WDW DISNE'Y OVERALL 9/20/23
SCALE
POB. 10000 ‘ LAND REMOVED FROM CFTOD SERVICE AREA
FL_32830-1000 DRAWN BY:
PHONE 407-B24—5B55 SKE'TCH OF DESCRIPTION ‘JLG
FILENAME:
EXHIBIT B, SHEET 1 OF 2 10JG23024




....... TANGENT TABLE =~ -

LINE# BEARING DIST.
'§ L1 N 00*24"44* E 242 11
L2 N 00*39' 25" W 141,86
WM L3 N 89*43' 24" E 207. 16

0
1_265.3_3'

i
J]
West line, NW 1/4, SE 1/4, Sec. 8—24-27
i
North line, SE 1/4 of
the SW 1/4, Sec. 8—24-27

001 5'09'7 E

‘ N _89'41'27° E _1188.92'
o~
-

N comen, 1/4 of %
the SW 1/4, Sec. 8-24-27"/ \ 73

/ Easterly R/W line of C.R. 545
“PROJECT # 12167.001

" - West line, SE 1/4,
SW 1/4, ésec 8-24-27

# South Ina. Sec. 8

S 89°39'31" W 3220.30"

1330 /5 v i ABBREMIATIONS
. BRG BEARING
PO.C SW corner, SE 1/4, SW 1/4, Sec. 8-24-27 CFTOD  CENTRAL FLORIDA TOURISM
OVERSIGHT DISTRICT
SOUTHWEST CORNER, . glgT gIESE'II'JANB%EDK
SEC 8, TWN 24 S, RNG 27 E FAC FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE
§ LB LICENSES BUSINESS
______________ | OR.~ CFMCIAL RECORDS book
CURVE TABLE | oo : R,
CURVE __RADIUS DELTA ___LENGIH _ TANG,_ BRG. - P DO O YOR, AND
o3} 2826, 01 19* 14’ 15" 948, 86 N 18*34°'50" E MAPPER
_C2 80200 65719'49" 914.46 N 89°43709" E | RAW  RGa OF way
SEC SECTION
TANG  TANGENT
W TOWNSHIP
REVISED: 11/20/23
FILNG AR DATE:
‘ WDW DISNEY OVERALL 9/20/23
SCALE
N P08, 10000 1STA LAND REMOVED FROM CFTOD SERVICE AREA 1" = 500°
FL_32830-1000 DRAWN BY:
ENERGY SERNICES  PHONE 407-B24-5855 SKE'TCH OF DESCRIPTION ‘JLG
FILENAME:
EXHIBIT B, SHEET 2 OF 2 10JG23024




Exhibit “A3”
to
Second Amendment to Reedy Creek Improvement District/Orange County Amended and

Restated Water, Wastewater and Reclaimed Water Service Territorial Agreement /See attached
sketch of description totaling 29 pages]

Exhibit A3
Cover Page



DESCRIPTION OF
CENTRAL FLORIDA TOURISM OVERSIGHT DISTRICT
WATER, WASTEWATER AND RECLAIMED WATER
TERRITORIAL AREA

Begin at the Southwest corner of the Northwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section &, Township 24 South, Range 28
East run N 000022° E, 1327.43 feet along the West line of Section & to the West 1/4 corner thersof; thence N
8927457 E, 1997.50 feet along the MNorth line of the South half of Section 8, to the Southwest corner of the East
1/2 of the Southeast 1/4 of the Narthwest 1/4 of Section 6, thence N 0020°35" W, 1154.75 fast along the Wast line
of the East 1/2 of the Scutheast 1/4 of the Northwesl 1/4 of Section 8; thence N 83'38'50" £, 663.64 feet along o
line that is 165,00 feet South of and parallel to the Neorth line of the Southeast 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section
6; thence N 827117347 E, 148,82 feet +,/— along a line parallel to and 165,00 feet South of the Nerth line of the
Southwest 1/4 of the MNortheast 1/4 of Section 6 to a point on the Westerly shore line of Lake Mable; thence
meander the shore line of Lake Mable in o Southerly direction, to a point on the South line of Section & aond the
Morth line of Section 7, Township 24 South, Range 28 East, said point being S 18°20M0% W, 3981.97 feet more or less
from the previously described point, and also lying N 83'3117" E, 1683.05 feet from the Southwest cormer of Section §;
thence continue along the share line of Lake Mable in a Southzasterly and Northeasterly direction across the Morth 1,/4
of Section 7, 1o the MNorth line of Section 7 and the South line of Section 8, Township 24 South, Range 28 East, =said
paint being N 823117" E, along the North section line of Section 7, 1381.64 feet from the previously described point
and lying S 89731177 W, 2304.35 feet fram the MNortheast corner of Section 7; thence continue to meander the shore
line of Lake Mable in a MNortheasterly direction across the Southeast 1/4 of Sectien 6, Township 24 South, Range 28
East to a point on said shoreline which is intersected by the North line of the South half of the Southeost 1/4 of
Section B, sald point being N 2514710 E, 1475.82 feet from the previously described point; thence N 8929°30" E,
alang said MNarth line of the South half of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 6, 1673.89 feel to the East section line
thereof, thence S 00712°20" W, 1330.62 feet along the East line of Section & to the Southeast corner of Section 6 and
the Northwast corner of Section 8, Township 24 South, Range 28 East; thence N 8%21°03” E along the North line of
Section &, 191.58 feet more or less to a point on the West shore line of South Loke; thence meander the shore line
of South Lake in o Southwesterly, Southeasterly and Northegsterly direction to a point where the shore line of South

Lake intersects the East line of the West half of the West half of Section 8; said paint being S 251713" £, 2679.01
feet more or less from the previously described point, thence 5 D01358" W, 221.07 feet to the Mortheast corner of
the MNorthwest 1/4 of the Scuthwest 1/4 of Section &; thence S 00°06°217 E along the East line of the West half of
the Southwest 1/4 of Section 8, 1334.85 feet to the Southeast corner of the Northwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of
Section 8; thence S 88'4R2°04" W, 1111.09 feet to a point of curvature of a curve concave Southeasterly having g
radius of 545.08 feet, and a central angle of B115'08"; thence run Southwesterly along the arc of said curve, 772.99
feet; to a point of reverse curvature of a curve concove Northerly having a radius of 80,00 feet, and a central angle
of 12&843'B0", thence run Westerly olong the arc of soid curve, 179.74 feet; thence 5 43°40°58" E, 16.92 feet; thence
S 34°38'41" E, B.13 feet; thence S 25716'40" E, 86.79 feet; thence S 2B'57'56" E, 106.03 feet; thence S 58°01'53" E,
B87.73 feet; thence N 8%'58'2%" E, 134,58 feel to g paint of curvature of a curve cancave Southerly hoving a radius of
425,00 feet, and a central angle of 23'28'539"; thence run Easterly dlong the arc of said curve, 17431 feet; to o point

of compound curvature of a curve concave Southwesterly haoving o radius of 15.00 feet, and g central angle of
46°20°48"; thence run Scutheasterly along the arc of said curve, 1213 feet; to a peoint of compound curvature of a
curve concave Westerly having a radius of 425.00 feet, and a central angle of 1633547, thence run Southerly along
the arc of said curve, 122.87 feet; to a point of compound curvature of o curve concave Westerly having a radius of
25.00 feet, and a central angle of 51°32°25"; thence run Southerly along the arc of said curve, 22,49 feet; thence S
4356736 W, 91.06 feet; thence 5 6440°37" W, 105.25 faet; thence S 4045327 W, 117.42 feet; thence S 1328'047 W,
97.39 feet: thence S 42714'20" W, 132.97 feet: thence S 88°558"11" W, 89.71 feet; thence S 28%5044" W, 77.77 feet
thence S 1452477 W, 88.32 feet; thence 5 0159297 E, 106.28 feet; thence 5 24°42°487 W, 241,59 feet: thence S
3655807 W, 120.64 feet; thence S 24°03'44" W, 71.01 feet to a point of curvature of a curve concave Northwesterly
having a radius of 25.00 feet, and a central angle of 4055457 thence run Southwesterly along the arc of said curve,
17.86 feet; thence S 64597307 W, 91.68 feet to a point of curvoture of @ curve concave MNortherly having a radius of
25,00 feet, and a central angle of 46°29°32"; thence run Westerly along the arc of said curve, 20.2% feet; thence N
68'30°58" W, 131.37 feet; thence N 34'537°287 W, 145,43 feet; thense N 1044°047 W, 144,09 fest; thence N 1034"18" E,
129.55 feet: thence N 44°03'35" E, 129.67 feet; thence N 8635327 E, 100.03 feet; thence N 6£2°4818" E, 100.08 feet;
CONTINUED ON SHEET 2

FILING AREA DATE:
WOW DISNEY OVERALL 4/5/22
PROJECT NAME SCALE
P.0.B. 10000
FoB oo CFTOD WATER/WASTE WATER TERRITORY
FL. 32B30—1000 SURVEY TYPE DRAWN BY:
SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION JLG
COMMENTS FILEMAME:
SHEET 1 OF 29 SHEETS 10JG09095RA




CONTINUED FROM SHEET 1

thence N 5816'14" E, 9599 feet; thence N 15017477 £, 86.03 feet; thence N 14307327 W, 104.94 feet; thence N
0308'23" W, 111.08 feet; thence N 0732427 E, 68.01 fest; thence N 15714137 W, 80.67 feet; thance N 87127487 W,
4011 feet; thence S 77°42'57" W, B4.88 fest; thence S 74°44'47" W, 66.79 feet; thence S 3520°27" W, 90.33 feet:
thence S 2258"3" W, 87.94 feet:; thence S 20°05'22" W, 168.18 feet; thence S B539°23" W, 108.46 feel; thence N
790ZMBT W, 146.86 feet; thence S 44°41'247 W, 85.24 feat; thence S B658'59" W, 80.82 feet; thenca N 8303007 W,
9B.8B8 feet; thence S B41813" W, 51.78 feet; thence S 7758'53" W, 116.91 feet; thence S 7014007 W, B4.28 feet;
thence N 6352'48" W, 163.26 feet: thence N 71749577 W, §1.32 feet; thence N 56'3848" W, 106.72 feet: thence N
37°38'37" W, 96.72 feet: thence N 6948'38" W, B5.22 feet; thence N 851514" W, 9572 feet; thence N 75858117 W,
104,56 feet; thence S ZB55"14" W, 152,43 feet; thence S 1345'44" B, 47.73 feet to g point of curvature of g curve
concave Westerly having a radius of 75.00 feet, and a central angle of 30°06°13"; thence run Southerly along the arc
of said curve, 39.41 feet; tc a point of reverse curvature of a curve concave MNertheasterly having a radius of 45.00
feet, and a central angle of 99°54'55"; thence run Southeasterly along the arc of said curve, 78.47 feet, to g point of
reverse curvature of o curve concave Southwesterly having a rodius of 250.00 feet, and a central angle of 2531716%;
thence run Southeasterly along the arc of said curve, 242.26 feel; thence 5 28°03111" E, 95.35 feel to a paint of
curvature of a curve concave Westerly having o radius of 12500 feet, ond a central angle of 5841°017; thence run
Southerly along the arc of soid curve, 130.21 feet; thence S 31°37'50" W, 165.37 feel; thence S 51°01'41" E, 83.54 feet
to a point on a non—tangent curve concave Southeasterly having a radius of 678649 feet, and a central angle of
2943077, thence from a tangent bearing of N 50717 44" E run Nartheasterly along the arc of said curve, 350.89 feet;
thence S 355%9'307 E. 248.14 fest; thence S 5537137 E, 316.45 feet; thence S 6844°46” E, 336.44 feet to a point
on a noh—tangent curve concave Southerly having a radius of 399.38 feet, and a central angle of 0853417 thence
from a tangent bearing of N 791356" E run Easterly along the arc of said curve, 68.97 feet; to a peint of reverse
curvature of o curve concave Northerly having a rodius of 137.63 feet, and a central angle of 1421°49% thence run
Easterly along the arc of said curve, 34.50 feel; thence S 035740 W, 60.74 feet to a point on a non—tangent curve
concave Southerly having a radius of 344.38 feet, and a central angle of 0415117 thence from a tangent bearing of
S 8602'20" E run Easterly along the arc of said curve, 2556 feet, to a point of compound curvature of a curve
concave Southerly having o radius of 132.00 feet, and a central angle of 26°04°01"; thence run Eaosterly dlong the arc
of said curve, 60.05 feet; to a point on a non—tangent curve concave Southwesterly having a rodius of 184.37 feet,
and a central angle of 31'44°0Q0"; thence from a tangent bearing of 3 48°4421” E run Southeasterly along the arc of
said curve, 10211 feet; to a point of compound curvature of a curve concove Westerly having o radius of B878.36 feet,
and o central ongle of 0851'48", thence run Southerly clong the arc of said curve, 105.09 feet; to o point of reverse
curvature of a curve concave Easterly having a radius of 437.18 feet, und a central angle of 1837'07" thence run
Southerly along the arc of said curve, 142.06 feet; to a point of compound curvature of a curve concave MNartheasterly
having o radius of 395,25 feet, and g central angle of 1813'3%"; thence run Southeasterly along the arc of sald curve,
125.74 feet; to a point of revarse curvature of a curve concave Southwesterly having a radius of 845.0%9 feet, and a
central angle of 0321'33"; thence run Southeasterly along the arc of said curve, 37.82 feet; thance N 82718147 W,
71.09 feet: thence N 51°44'44" W, 65.78 feet; thence N 8024'25" W, 90.39 feet; thence S 48°32'48" W, 80.93 feet:
thence S 22°55'38" W, 113.12 feet; thence S 2771916"° E, 55.45 feet; thence S 1840°58"° W, 153.75 feet; thence S
1048 30" W, 180,42 feet to o point of curvature of a curve concave Easterly having a radius of 223.65 feel, and «
central angle of 5802337, thence run Southerly along the arc of said curve, 230.47 feet; to a point on the Northerly
and Easterly boundary of Tract R, Golden Ook Phase 1B according to the Plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 75, Pages
3 through 1% of the Public Records af Orange County, o nen—tangent curve concave MNortherly having o radius of 2500
feet, and o central angle of 64 33'48"; thence from a tangent bearing of 5 49°58'05" E run Easterly along the arc of
said curve, 28,17 feet; thence N B22B'07" E, 122,36 feet; thence N 76°27'23" E, 76.29 feel 1o a point of curvature of
a curve concave Northwesterly having o radius of 2500 feet, and a central angle of 2514"16"; thence run
Northeasterly along the arc of said curve, 11.01 feet; thence S 78711'38" E, 85.68 feel to a point on a non—tangent
curve concove Easterly having o radius of 1010.00 feet, and a central angle of Q07'58°42" thence from o tangent
bearing of S 11°48°22" W run Sautherly along the arc of said curve, 140.84 feel; to a peint on a non—tangent curve
concave Southwesterly having a radius of 25.00 feet, and a central angle of 8713527 thenca from a tangent bearing

of N 0349°41” E run MNorthwesterly aleng the arc of said curve, 38.06 feet; thence M B324'117 W, 42.54 feet to a
COMTINUED OMN SHEET 3

FILING AREA DATE:
WOW DISNEY OVERALL 4/5/22
y v J PROJECT MAME SCALE
. POB 0000 e CFTOD WATER/WASTE WATER TERRITORY
— FL. 32830-1000 SURVEY TYPE ORAMN BY:
N ENERAY SERWICES FHONE 4078244135 SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION JLG
COMMENTS FILENAME:
SHEET 2 OF 28 SHEETS 10JGO2056R




CONTINUED FROM SHEET 2

point of curvature of a curve concave Saoutherly having a radius of 221.37 feet, and a ceniral angle of 2807387
thence run Westerly clong the arc of said curve, 112.54 feet; to a point of reverse curvoture of a curve concave
Nartherly having a radius of 132.76 feet, and a centrol angle of 4816"12% thence run Westerly along the arc of said
curve, 111.85 feet; to a point an o non—tangent curve concave MNertheasterly having a radius of 23418 feet, ond a
central angle of 14'51°36"; thence from a tangent bearing of N 6471537 W run Northwesterly along the arc of said
curve, 60.74 feet; thence 5 242332 E, 34.06 feet; thence 5 180433 E, 78.70 feet to a point on a non—tangent
curve concave Northwesterly having a radius of 2500 feet, and o central angle of 1157407437, thence from a tangent
bearing of S 17'580°29” E run Southwesterly along the arc of said curve, 50.48 feet; thence N 82709'40" W, 26.47 feet;
thence S 26743017 W, 107.99 feet: thence S 1353M3° W, 84.71 feet; thence S 20°06'37" W, 86.21 feet: thence S
22°42M7° W, 90.27 feet; thence S 48°33°38" W, 93.96 feet; thence S 51'48°05" W, 58.47 feel; thence S 70°41'52" W,
98.39 feel; thence S 75748307 W, 82,70 feel; thence N 827227127 W, 18.57 feel; thence S 59487127 W, §1.99 Tfeef;
thence S 2348427 W, 31.41 feet: thence S 213468 E, 112.86 feet; thence S 2504587 E, 80.36 feet; thence S
08'5818" E, 51.79 feet to a point of curvature of o curve concove Westerly having a radius of 2500 feet, and a
central angle of 541713" thence run Southerly aglong the arc of said curve, 2269 fesl; thence S 47718047 W, 37.10
feet; thence S 0348'45" E, 24.29 feet to a paint of curvature of a curve concave Northwesterly having a radius of
25.00 feet, and a central angle of 7918'562"; thence run Southwesterly along the arc of sold curve, 34.59 feet; thence
S 7528077 W, 7019 fest to g paint of curvature of o curve cencave Northerly hoving a radius of 25.00 feet, and a
central angle of 41718°24" thence run Westerly along the arc of soid curve, 18.01 feel; thence N £3712°30" W, 63.09
feet to a point on the Easterly right—of—way of Central Florida Tourism Owersight District (CFTOD) Canal L—105 as
described in Official Records Book 1896, Page 232 of the Public Records of this County, and a non—tangent curve
concave Easterly having a radius of 150550 feat, and a central angle of 3708487, thence from a tangant bearing of
S 035120 E run Southerly along the arc of sald curve and right—of—way, 976.05 feet; thence continue along said
right—of—way S 41°00°068" E, 193.39 feel; thence 5 4859'54° W, 100.00 feet to o point on the westerly right—af—way
of said Canal; thence departing said Canal run, N 87715°41" W, 130,57 feel; thence N £63'21°34" W, 33.90 feel; thence
N B108R2" W, 154.09 feet; thaence N 3933007 W, 38.53 feet; thence N 2854147 W, 86.79 faet;, thence N 2830743"
W, 101.63 feet; thence N 32738'468" W, 77.00 feet; thence N 39°30°368" W, 9830 feet to a point of curvature of a
curve concave Easterly having o rodius of 25.00 feet, and a central angle of 3714°40% thence run Northerly along the
arc of said curve, 16.25 feet; thence M 027127567 W, 56,50 feet; thence N 39°368'587 W, 135.27 feet; thence N
8504007 W, 87.65 faet to a point of curvature of a curve concave Northeasterly having o radius of 25.00 feet, ond a
central angle of 46°40°29"; thence run Northwesterly aleng the arc of said curve, 20.37 feel; thence N 3823307 W,
64,62 feet; thence N 84716'04" W, 16.33 feet to a point of curvature of a curve concove Nartheasterly having a radius
of 25.00 feet, and a central angle of 5838437, thence run Northwesterly alang the arc of sald curve, 25.59 feet;
thence W 0537207 W, 20.54 feet; thence N 44°31'28" W, B2.56 feet; thence S 2342547 W, 3595 fest to a point of
curvature of a curve concave Northwesterly having a radius of 25.00 feet, and o central angle of 84'48'10"; thence run
Southwesterly along the arc of said curve, 38.9G feet; thence N 71'30°56” W, 65.59 feet; thence N 67'45'48" W, 71.42
feet; thence N 47°0%M2" W, 129.61 feet;, thence N 2809107 W, 687.04 feet to g point of curvature of a curve concave
Easterly having a radius of 25.00 feet, and a central angle of 58717037, thence run Northerly along the arc of said
curve, 25.43 feet; thence N 3007527 E, 66.18 feet; thence N 4127387 E, 8262 feet; thence N 2803167 E, 61.53
feet: thence N 2103097 W, 47.93 feet: thence N 17713117 W, 99.26 feet: thence N Q032'57" E, 48.45 feet; thence N
1221107 E, 151.79 feet; thence N 2346'35" E, 109.94 feet; thence N 3326'51" E, 91.52 feet; thence N 17007457 E,
45,16 feet; thence N 34°586'28" W, 27.03 feel; thence N 2629'23" W, 104.81 feel; thence S 4840'54" W, 30.14 feet to
a point on a nan—tangent curve concave Southerly having a radius of 7.86 feet, and a central angle of 7820377,
thence from o tangent bearing of N 28356'03" W run Westerly along the arc of said curve, 10.75 feet; to a point of
compound curvature of a curve concove Southeasterly having a radius of 19.64 feet, and o central angle of 3685237
thence run Southwesterly along the arc of said curve, 12.64 feet; to a point of compound curvature of o curve
concave Easterly having a radius of 3.95 feet, and o central angle of 74°25'35", thence run Southerly along the arc of
said curve, 5.13 feet; thence S 38°34'51" E, 13.88 feet; thence S 51858307 W, 145.54 feet; thence N 3757097 W,
16.70 feet to a point on a non—tangent curve cencove Northeasterly having a radius of 1080.42 feet, and o central
" e A TIUED OM SHEET 4

FILING AREA DATE:
WOW DISNEY OVERALL 4/5/22
y v J . PROJECT MAME SCALE
. EA%EB'B1UG€S§ vISTA CFTOD WATER /WASTE WATER TERRITORY
| FL. 32830-1000 SURVEY TYPE DRAWN B
‘N ENERAY SERWIGES FHONE 4078244185 SKETCH OF DEZCRIPTION JLG
COMMENTS FILEMAME:
SHEET 3 OF 28 SHEETS 10JGO2096R 4




CONTINUED FROM SHEET 3

angle of 2021187, thence from o tangent bearing of N 4806°54” W run Northwesterly along the arc of said curve,
383.82 feet; thence N 3756187 W, 17.87 feet; thence N 30°54'21" W, 19379 feet 1o a point on o non—tangent curve
concave Southeasterly having o radius of 762.70 feet, and o central angle of QB'52'54", thence from o tangent bearing
of 5 835849 W run Southwesterly aclong the arc of said curve, 118.23 feel; thence S 55°05'55" W, 58.77 feel to a
point of curvature of a curve concave Southeasterly hoving a radius of 1680.82 feet, and a central angle of 19716°017;
thence run Southwesterly along the arc of said curve, 54.08 feet; to a point of reverse curvature of a curve concave
Nerthwesterly having o rodius of 159.25 feel, and a central angle of 38715007, thence run Scuthwesterly along the arc
of said curve, 100.82 feet; thence S 72°04'54" W, 26.78 feet to a paint of curvature of o curve concave Southeasterly
having a radius of 158,03 feet, and a central angle of 2154447, thence run Southwesterly along the arc of said curve,
60,44 feet; to a peoint on g nen—tangent curve concave MNeortheasterly having o radius of 22.89 feet, and a central
angle of 104'26°29"; thence from a tangent bearing of § 7527°00" W run Northwesterly clong the arc of said curve,
96.41 feet: thence N 0QO00&'31" W, B4.31 feet; thence N 74°49°42" W, 43.41 feet; thence S 4447417 W, 145.43 feet;
thence S 45°05°06" £, 18.68 feel; thence S 0314°02" W, 84.66 feel; thence S 0512°38" E, 58.35 feet to ¢ peint of
curvature of a curve concave Easterly having a radius of 1125.00 feet, and a central angle of 27°5728", thence run
Southerly along the arc of said curve, 548.65 feet; thence S 3310°07"7 E, 163.59 feat to o point of curvature of a
curve concave Westerly having o radius of 492.00 feet, and a central angle of 26'5913"; thence run Sautherly aleng
the arc of said curve, 231.74 feet; thence N 86728'268" E, 126,87 feel; thence N 76715'48" E, 8389 feet; thence S
64°38"17° E, 11817 feet; thence S 52°38'40" E, 68205 feet; thence S 4571867 E, 127.88 feet to a point af curvature
of o ecurve concave Southwesterly having o radius of 25.00 feet, ond a central ongle of 3513417, thence run
Southeasterly aleng the arc of soid curve, 12.37 feet; thence S 1002'35" E, 93.01 feet to a point of curvoture of a
curve concave Westerly having a radius of 2500 feet, and a central angle of 48718°35%; thence run Southerly alang the
arc of said curve, 20.21 feet; thence S 36716007 W, 28.53 feet; thence $ 20723467 W, 184.80 feet; thence S
7505407 W, 31.33 feet to g point on a non—tangent curve caoncaove Narthwesterly having o radius of 25.00 feet, and a
central angle of 3Z3'B8'13"; thence from a tongent bearing of S 2114147 W run Southwesterly along the arc of said
curve, 14.82 feet; thence S 55112'27" W, 19.76 feet; thence S 1842°59" W, 22.23 feet to g point on a non—tangent
curve concave Southwesterly having o radius of 1908.34 feet, and a central angle of 22°05°517; thence fram a tangent
bearing of S 75173687 E run Southsasterly along the arc of said curve, 736.00 feet; thence 3 5311'44" E, 1488.58
feet to a point of curvature of o curve concove Northeasterly having a radius of 850.82 feet, and o central angle of
14'29°08"; thence run Scutheasterly along the arc of said curve, 240.40 feet; to o point of compound curvoture of a
curve concave Northerly having o radius of 313,39 feet, and a central angle of 1313'42"; thence run Easterly along the
arc of said curve, 118.593 feet; thence S 80°54'32" E, 24,78 feet to g point of curvature of a curve concave Northerly
having a radius of 110303 feet, and a central angle of 0717217, thence run Easterly along the arc of said curve,
141.09 feet; thence S 8811547 E, 77.05 feet; thence S 89'29°03” E, 140.11 feel; thence S5 89'29°03" E, 433.68 feet;
thence N 8342'58" E, 146517 feet: thence N 0Q000'00" E, 131.18 feet: thence N 4500007 W, 71.68 fest: thence N
a0 00'00" E, B833.08 feet; thence N B9'59°00" W, 445.76 feet; thence N 0027'48" E, 673.19 feet; thence 5 8%5817"
E, 398.81 feet; thence N 0000007 E, 753.74 feet; thence N 3000007 W, 362.43 feet; thence N 0518397 W, 108.23
feet; thence N 2B°33'54”7 W, 135.35 feet: thence N 473244 E, 146.69 feet; thence N 11°2834" E, 24.04 feet to a
point of curvature of a curve concave Westerly having o radius of 15,00 feet, and a central angle of 52:09°22" thence
run Northerly along the arc of said curve, 13.65 feet; thence N 40°40°48" W, 82.81 feet; thence N 90°00°00" W, 73.87
feet to a point on o non—tangent curve concave Westerly having a radius of 1396.50 feet, and a central angle of
0B°523"10% thence from a tangent bearing of N 0709'58" E run MNortherly aleng the arc of said curve, 167.84 feel;
thence N 0016'47" E, 0.50 feet to the Northwest cornaer of the Northsast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 17
Township 24 South Range 28 East; thence S B89°56'953" E, 3882.90 feel dlang the North line of the South half of
Section 17, to the East 1/4 corner of Section 17; thence S Q024’527 W, 2682.68 feel aglang the East section line of
Section 17 to the Scoutheaost carner of Section 17 and the Nartheast corner of Section 20, Township 24 South, Range
2?8 East; thence S 00013687 E, 1333.66 feset along the East section line of Section 20 to the Scutheast corner of the
Northeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 20 and the Southwest corner of the Northwest 1/4 of the Northwest
1/4 of Section 21, Township 24 South, Range 28 East; thence N 89°57'37” E, 670.11 feet to the Northwest corner of
CONTINUED ON SHEET 5

FILING AREA DATE:
WOW DISNEY OVERALL 4/5/22
PROJECT NAME SCALE
P.0.B. 10000
FoB oo CFTOD WATER/WASTE WATER TERRITORY
FL. 32B30—1000 SURVEY TYPE DRAWN BY:
SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION JLG
COMMENTS FILEMAME:
SHEET 4 OF 29 SHEETS 10JG09095RA




CONTINUED FROM SHEET 4

the MNortheast 1,/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 21, thence S 000832 E, 668.06 feet to
the Southwest caorner thereof; thence 5 B95Z°30° E, 671.45 feet to the MNortheast corner of the Southeast 1/4 of the
Southwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 21; thence 3 001527 E, B68.41 faet to the Northwest corner of the
Northeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 21; thence § 00°44°42" E, 656.38 feet to the Northwest carner of Lot
85, Munger and Compony Subdivision of Section 21, occording to the Plat recorded in Plat Book E Page 22 of the
Public Records of this Caounty, thence S 8951017 E, 335.66 feet to the Northeost corner of said Lot 85 thence S
00°40'49" E, 656.31 feet to the Scutheast corner of Lot 83; thence S 89'53115" E, 1004.75 feet along the North line
of the Southeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 21 to the Northeast corner thersof, thence S 00287107 E,
655,63 feet along the West line of the Northwest 1/4, Southwsast 1/4 of the Southeost 1/4 of Section 21 to the
Southwest corner thereof; thence N 8920°56" E, 666.99 feet alang the South line of the Narthwest 1/4, Southwest
1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 21 to the Southeast corner thereof, thence M 0021227 W, 652.39 feet along the
West line of the Northeast 1/4, Southwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 21 to the MNorthwest corner thersof;
thenca N 8937387 E, 2005.42 feet aleng the Morth line of the South half of the Scutheast 1/4 of Section 21 to the
Northeast corner thereaf, sald point also being the Southwest corner of the Northwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of
Section 22, Township 24 South, Range 28 East; thence N D002°32° E, 1285.39 feet along the West line of Section 22
to the West 1/4 corner of Section 22; thence N B9'50°48" E, 2691.31 feet along the North line of the South half of
Section 22, to a peint on a line that is 150.00 feet westerly of and parallel with the base line of State Rood 400 as
shown in map section 75280-2465 ond dated 2/22/1883; thence run along said line, S 3829427 W, 7143.82 feet to
a pcint on the Westerly right—of—way line of State Reoad 536 as shown in map section 75000-2520 and doted
3/05/1998; thence departing said parallel line run along State Road 536 the following courses, S 43357427 W, 1571.48
feet to a point on < non—tangent curve concave Northwesterly having a radius of 1809.86 feet, and < central angle of
37°23'06% thence from o tangent bearing aof S 42°29'42° W run Southwesterly alang the arc of said curve, 1180.92
feet; thence 3 79°52'517 W, 148B.72 feet to a pcint on the West line of Section 2B, and on the Cast line of Section
29, Tewnship 24 Scuth, Range 28 East, said point lying N 00°00°07" W, 387.61 feet from the Southwest cormer of
Section 28; thence S 79'52'63" W, 95.47 feet to a point of curvature of o curve concave Northerly having a radius of
2191.83 feet and o central angle of 32°28°097; thence run Westerly along the arc of said curve, 124210 feet; thence N
5959507 W, 311.67 feet; thence run S 23297477 W, 304,81 feet to a point on @ nen—tangent curve concave
Southwesterly, having a radius of 1140216 feet and a central angle of 00°29°43”: thence from a tangent bearing of S
653317° E, run Southeasterly alang the are of sald curve, 98.56 feet; thence S BB8'56'268" E, 509.41 feet to o point
on a non—tangent curve concave Southwesterly, having o radius of 200.00 feet and o central angle of 02°31°407;
thence run Southeasterly along the arc of said curve 32.70 feet to a point on the South line the Southeast 1/4 of
Section 29, said point lying N 8950743 W, 1167.48 faet from the Southeast corner of Section 28, thence leaving said
right—of—way, run N 8950°43" W along the Scuth line of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 29, 1498.10 fzet, ta the South
Quarter corner thereof; thence N 89'50°42" W, 215259 feet clong the South line of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 29
to a point on the right—of—way of Chelonia Parkway as shown on the Flat of Bonnet Creek Resort recorded in Plat
Book 56, Page 41 af the Public Records of this County, thence run along sagid right—af—way the following courses; due
Morth 163,29 feet to the peoint of curvature of a curve concave Scoutheasterly, having a radius of 675,00 feet and a
central angle of 4540'47" thence run Northeasterly along the arc of said curve 538.15 feet to a point of reversa
curvature of o curve concave Westerly, hoving a radius of B825.00 feet ond a central angle of 98°34'08"; thence run
Northeasterly and Northwesterly along the arc of soid curve 1419.28 feet to a point of reverse curvature of a curve
concave Northeasterly having o radius of 300.84 feet and a central angle of 2253217 thence run MNorthwesterly and
Mortherly along the arc of soid curve 200.08 feet; thence N 300000" W, B807.96 feet; thence due Narth, BE.6Q feet;
thence due West 67.60 feet to o point of curvature of o curve concave Southerly having o radius of 611.16 feet and a
central angle of 19°0118" thence run Wastarly along the arc of soid curva and Southerly right—of—way 202.90 fast;
thence S 57°06°40" E, 167.71 feet; S 3000°00" E, 180.00 feet; S 0615'02" E, 54.63 feet; S 30°00°00" E, 408.17 feet
to a point of curvature of a curve concave Northeasterly, having o radius of 650.84 feet and a central angle of
22°53' 21" run Southeasterly along the arc of said curve 260.00 feet; to o point of reverse curvature of a curve
concave Westerly, having a radius of 675.00 feet and o central angle of 2834°08" thence run Southeasterly and
Southwesterly along the arc of soid curve 11681.24 feet to o point of reverse curvature of a curve concave

COMNTINUED ON SHEFT ©

FILING AREA DATE:
WOW DISNEY OVERALL 4/5/22
PROJECT NAME SCALE
P.0.B. 10000
FoB oo CFTOD WATER/WASTE WATER TERRITORY
FL. 32B30—1000 SURVEY TYPE DRAWN BY:
SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION JLG
COMMENTS FILEMAME:
SHEET 5 OF 29 SHEETS 10JG09095RA




CONTINUED FROM SHEET 5

Southwesterly along the arc of soid curve 1181.24 feet to a point ©F reverse curvatdre ol d curve concave
Southeasterly, having o radius of 825.00 feet and a central angle of 45'40'477; thence run Southwesterly along the arc
of said curve, 857.74 feet; thence dus South, 162.89 feet to the South line of the Southwest 1,/4 of Section 29;
thence departing the right—of—way line of Chelonia Parkway run N 8%50°42” W along the South line of the Southwest
1/4 of Section 28, 380.89 feet to the Southwest corner of Section 29 and the Northeast corner of Section 371,
Township 24 South, Range 28 East, thance S 00°40°50" E, 2749.41 feet along the East line of the Northeast 1/4 of
Section 31 to the Southeast corner thereof, thence S 00271137 W, 2643.90 feet along the East line of the Southeast
1/4 of Section 31 to the Southeast corner of Section 31; thence N 8336017 W, 2646.94 feet along the South line of
the Southeast 1/4 of Section 31 to the Scuthwest corner thereof; thence N 895654 W, 274B.82 feel dlong the
South line of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 31 to the Southwest corner thereof and the Southeast corner of Section
36, Township 24 South Range 27 East; thence S 89°50°04" W, 2608.48 feel along the South line of the Southeast 1/4
of Section 36 to the Southwest corner thereof; thence S 89'48°387 W, 2656.21 feet along the Scuth line of the
Sauthwest 1/4 of Section 36 to the Southwest carner thereof and the Southeast cormer of Section 35, Township 24
Sputh Range 27 Fast; thenca S 89°48'35" W, 2652.59 faet along the South lina of the Southeast 1/4 of Saction 35 to
the Southwest corner thereof, thence S 8944'077 W, 2661.0% feet along the South line of the Southwest 1/4 of
Section 35 to the Southwest cormer of said Section and the Southeast corner of Section 34, Township 24 South Range
27 East; thence 5 B3467°46" W, 3438.73 feet along the South line of Section 34 to a point on the boundaory of Black
Lake Village according to the Flat thereof recorded in Plat Book 73, Foge 149 of the Fublic Records of this County,
thence leaving the South line of 3Section 34, run along the Easterly and Northerly boundary of said Plat fellowing
courses; M 0013 58" W, 29.01 feet; N 1442°28" W, 11482 feet; N 065349 W, 123.97 feet to a point of curvature of
a curve concave Easterly having a radius of 25.00 feet, and o central angle of 18 38°28”; run Nartherly along the arc
of said curve, 7.25 feet; N 09'42°37" E, 104.21 feet to & point of curvature of a curve concave Southeasterly having a
radius of 25.00 feet, and o central angle of 5124117 run Northeasterly aleng the arc of said curve, 22.43 feet; N
51'06'48" E, B53.88 feet; N 71 3402”7 E, 17.56 feat; N 1825517 W, 18.21 feet to 4 point on a non—tangent curve
concave Northeasterly having o radius of 50.00 feet, and o central angle of 10648'530"; from a tangent bearing of N
80°45°36” W run Northwesterly along the arc of said curve, 93.21 feet; N 314740" W, 44.69 feet to o point on a
non—tangent curve concave Northwesterly having a radius of 436.00 feet, and o central angle of 155647"; from a
tangent bearing of S 58712217 W run Southwesterly along the arc of said curve, 121.35 feet; S 74°02°08" W, 308.68
feet to a point of curvature of a curve concave Southeasterly having a radius of 514.00 feet, and o central angle of
2005'00"; run Southwesterly clong the arc of said curve, 18017 feet; 5 54°04110" W, B7.69 feet to a paint of
curvature of a curve concave Naortherly having a radius of 315.00 feet, ond a central angle of 35°55'53"; run Westerly
along the arc of said curve, 187.54 feet; M B9°59°58" W, B384 feet to a point of curvature of o curve concave
Northerly having o radius of 381.00 feet, ond o central angle of 34'07'58"; run Westerly olong the arc of said curve,
226.97 feet; to o point of reverse curvature of a curve concave Southerly having a radius of 3284.88 feet, and a
central angle of 34°00'28"; run Westerly along the arc of said curve, 228.44 feet; to a point of reverse curvature of a
curve concave Northerly having a radius of 185.00 feel, and o central angle of 3539'45" run Westerly along the arc
of said curve, 11515 feet; to a point of compound curvature of a curve concave Easterly having o radius of 47.00
feet, and a central angle of 130°32°08"; run Meortherly along the arc of said curve, 107.08 feet; N 78718217 £, 28.14
faet; S B922'47" E, 9.24 feet; N 7508237 E, 4215 feet; N 66'44°45" E, 4592 feet; N 5810'56" E, 7.13 feet; N
40°00'00" E, B.68 feet: N 282127 E, 21.50 feet; N 1911°08" E, 7.97 feet; N 0544'49" E, 22.07 feet: N 09°37°03" E,
18.85 feet; N 2818597 E, 25.32 feet; N 39'33'24" E, 18.56 feet; N 51748127 E, 17.01 feet; N 53'20°03" E, 12.93 feet;
N 8723587 E, 18.89 feet; N B1'31'347 E, 16.71 feet; N 8531207 E, 16.65 feet; S B4'2704” E, 14.79 feet; S 6607307
E. 25.25 feet; 5 70°01°08” E, 21.22 feet: S 76711°40" E, 28.29 feet; S 81047457 E, 15.86 feet; S 63151147 E, 32.58
feet; S 71°35°23" E, 7.28 feet; S 8348MB” E, 20.77 feet; N B6°068"18" E, 21.64 feet; S 7549'09" E, 17.31 feet; $
87°5518" E, 10,48 feet; N 7243507 E, 26.75 feet; N 8042°21" E, 36.44 feet; N 77716'53" E, 19.62 feet; N 68337 24"
E. 7.52 feet; N 5706157 E, 21.62 feet; N 4830°29" E, 7.40 feet; N 28'39°26" E, B.BB feel; N 1342°55" E, 39.82 feel;
N 10°08'247 B, 32.03 feet; N 01°4Z317 W, 28.22 fest; N 0537'38" W, 2882 feet; N 12°01'53" W, 42.36 feet; N
210643 W, 7.72 feet; N 38°50"10" W, 37.65 feet; N 47°37'33" W, 25.00 feet; N 55718'28" W, 4483 feet; N 49°30°53"

W, 55.06 feet; N 59'47'57" W, 8.89 feet; N 7221°36" W, 35.00 feet; N 82'08°10" W, 65.71 feel: S 8342°01" W, 51.60
CONTINUED ON SHEET 7

FILING AREA DATE:
WOW DISNEY OVERALL 4/5/22
PROJECT NAME SCALE
P.0.B. 10000
FoB oo CFTOD WATER/WASTE WATER TERRITORY
FL. 32B30—1000 SURVEY TYPE DRAWN BY:
SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION JLG
COMMENTS FILEMAME:
SHEET 6 OF 29 SHEETS 10JG09095RA




CONTINUED FROM SHEET 6

feet; N 80°08'53" W, 56.11 feet; N BE26°00" W, 8.09 feel; S 81147147 W, 46,34 feel; S 784225 W, 40.49 feel; S
F7AE02T W, 6374 feet; S 79708437 W, 47.65 feet; 5 7248447 W, 44.03 feat; S 6314'347 W, 42.60 feet; S
5748'39" W, 28.70 feet; S 6421007 W, 20.44 feet; S 67°08'48" W, 209.21 feel; S 8328'20" W, 29.99 feet; S B3'04'31"
W, 27.06 feel; S B4719M18" W, 42,81 feet to a point of curvature of a curve concave Northeasterly having a radius aof
50.00 feet, and o central angle of 82 36°017; run Northwesterly alang the arc of sald curve, 72.95 feet; to a paint of
compound curvoture of a curve concove Easterly hoving a radius of 188.00 feet, and o central angle of 27°45'45": run
Northerly alang the arc of said curve, 91.10 feet; S 89°52"M07 W, 17416 feel; thence departing said Plat run along the
West line of the Seuthwest 1/4 of Section 34, N 00'00'19” E, 313,89 feet to the Northwest corner of the Southwest
1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 34 and the Northeast cormer of the Southeast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of
Section 33, Township 24 South, Range 27 East; thence continue M 00'00'18” E 49835 feet to the Southeast corner of
the North 5/8 af the Nartheast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 33 thence run olong the South line of the
Morth 5/8 of the Mortheast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 33, N 894757 W, 1326.58 feet o the Southwest
corner thereof, thence run along the West line of the North 5/8 of the Northeast 1/4, of the Southeast 1/4 of
Section 33, N 0000317 E, B35.26 feet to the Northwest corner thereof; thence run aleng the West line of the
Scutheast 1/4 of the Nertheast 1/4 of Section 33, N 000025" E, 1321.43 feet to the Northwest corner thereof;
thence run along the North line of the Southeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 33, S 895%°44" E, 1326.40
feet; to the Northeast corner thereof; thence run along the West line of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 34 Township 24
South Range 27 East, N 0000°08" E, 1329.09 fset to the Northwest corner thereof; thence N B9'53'53" E 2679.47
feet along the North line of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 34 to the Northeast corner thereof and the Southwest
cormner of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 27, Township 24 South, Range 27 East; thence N 000111" W, 3964.69 feetl
along the West line of the East 1/2 of Section 27 to the Scutheast corner of the Northeast 1/4 of the Narthwest 1,/4
of Section 27, thence S 8937547 W, 1332.15 feet along the South line of the Northeast 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of
Saction 27 to the Southwest corner thersof; thence N 0008127 E, 1330.97 feet along the West line of the Northeast
1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 27 to the Northwest corner thereof; thence S 8946°23" W, 132851 feet along
the North line of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 27 to the Northwest corner of Section 27 and the Northeast corner aof
Section 28, Township 24 South, Range 27 East; thence S 82748067 W, 1331.20 fest along the North line of the
Northeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 28, to the MNortheast corner of the West 1/2 of the Northeast 1,/4 of
Section 28; thence S 00712"8" W, 882.69 feet along the East line of the West 1/2 ond the Northeost 1/4 of Section
28, Township 24 South, Range 27 £ to g point on the Westerly right of way line of State Road 429 gs described in
Official Records Book 7070, Fage 2553 and Book 7106, Fage 2802 of the Public Records of QOrange County, Florida and
a peoint on g nen—tangent curve cancave Southwesterly hawving a radius of 2204.09 feet, and a central angle of
07°27°37", thence from a tangent bearing of N 29°38'58" W run MNorthwesterly along the arc of said curve and right of
way line, 286.99 feet, thence continue along said right of way line the following two courses; N 37068 368” W, 690.17
feet to o point on a non—tangent curve concave MNortheasterly having o radius of 770.43 feet, and a central angle of
09°5915" thence from a tongent bearing of N 39°00'55" W run Northwesterly along the arc of said curve, 134.30 feet;
thence N B8'4315" W, 555,85 feet to g paint on the Easterly right of way line of Flamingoe Crossing Blvd, os described
in Official Recards Book 10815, Page 4619 of the Public Records of Orange County, Florida and g non—tangent curve
concave Westerly having a rodius of 1010.00 feet, and a central angle of D1'5218"; thence from a tangent bearing of
S 05'40°55” E run Scutherly along the arc of said curve and right of way line, 35.05; thence S B%'48'06"7 W, 125.45
feet along the South line of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 21, Township 24 South, Range 27 East to the Southwest
corner thereof; thence S 8%94%9°36" W, 483.70 feet; along the South line of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 21, Township
24 South, Range 27 East; thence N 40717327 W, 323.52 feel; thence N 32°21°38" W, 271.683 feel; thence N 34°30'371"
W, 120.76 feet; thence N 485728377 W, 108.80 feet; thence S 88487147 W, 2571 feet to a peoint of curvoture of a
curve concave Southerly having o radius of 934.00 feet, and a central angle of 01705'30" thence run Westerly along
the arc of said curve, 17.79 feet; thence S QQ10°31° E, 11.26 feet; thence S B949'29" W, 2835 feet; thence S
04702587 E, 4.66 feel; thence S B60506" W, 22.85 feet; thence N 0354547 W, 6.14 fest; thence S B94929" W,
17397 feet to a point of curvature of a curve concave MNortherly having a radius of 215853 feet, and a central angle
of 24'058'38% thence run Westerly along the arc of said curve, 907.70 feet; thence N BE'04°53” W, B48.81 feet; thence

N OQO35'44” E, 1606.72 feet along the West line of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 21, Township 24 South, Range 27
CONTINUED ON SHFFT 8

FILING AREA DATE:
WOW DISNEY OWVERALL 4/5/22
A -ﬂ- FROJECT MAME SCALE
. : F.O.B. 10000 CFTOD WATER/WASTE WATER TERRITORY
; LAKE BUEMA WISTA
: FL. 32830—1000 SURVEY TYFE DRAWN BY:
EEN ENERAY SERWIGES FPHOME 407-324— 4185 SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION JLG
COMMENTS FILEMAME:
SHEET 7 OF 28 SHEETS 10JGOR0S6R Y




CONTINUED FROM SHEET 7

Secticn 17, to the Scuthwest corner thereof: thence N 001818" W, 2652.68 feet aleng the West line of the East 1/2
of the MNortheast 1/4 of Section 17 ta the Northwest corner therecf; thence N 89'39'31" E, £538.27 feet along the

Marth line of Section 17 to a point on the right of way ling of Hartzog Read as described in Official Recards Book
9711, Page 5346 and Book 9782, FPage 7172 of the Public Records of Orange County, Florida; thence entering Section

8, Township 24 South, Range 27 East; thence run along said right of way line the following four courses; N 234817”
W, 12807.81 feet; N 2457702 W, 498.49 feet, to o point of curvature of a curve concove Southwesterly having o rodius
of Z02.00 feet, and a central angle of 6519'49"  run MNorthwesterly along the arc of said curve 91446 feet; S
8943 24" W, 20715 feet; thence departing said right of way line run along the West line of the Narthwest 1/4 of the
Southeast 1/4 of said Section run N 00714'57” E, 100.00 feet 1o a point on the Nertherly right—of—way line of
aforesaid Hartzog Road; thence run aleng said right—of—way line the following three ceurses; N 8943’25 E, 671.30
feet; N 23'57'49” E, 158.82 feet to a point on o non—tangent curve concave Southwesterly having a rodius of 2750.09
feet, and a central angle of 0443'07"; from a tangent bearing of 3 32316'29” E run Southeasterly along the arc of
said curve, 226.49 feet; thence N 8943 24" E, 1808.38 feet along the North line of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 8 to
the MNortheast corner thereof and the Northwest corner of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 9, Township 24 South, Range
27 East, thence run N 8944'05" E, 132536 feet along the MNorth line of the Northwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of
Section 9 to the Nartheast corner thereof; thence S 0070831 W, 1314.23 feet along the East line of the MNorthwest
1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 3 to the Southeast corner thereof; thence N 8345107 E, 1327.55 feet along the
North line of the Southeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section ¥ to the MNortheast corner thersof; thence S
QU0305" W, 1314.64 feet along the East line of the Southeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 9 to the
Southeast corner of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 9; thence N 39'5348" E, 2633.36 feet along the South line of the
Southeast 1/4 of Section 2 to the Southeaost corner thereof and the Southwest corner of Section 10, Township 24
South, Range 27 East; thence N Q015357 E, 5286.81 feet along the West section line of Section 10 to the MNorthwest
corner thereof and the Scuthwest cormer of Section 3, Township 24 Scuth, Ronge 27 East; thence N a0 11'80" W,
2661.64 feel along the West line of the Southwest 1/4, Section 3 to the Northwest carner thereof; thence N 89°38'50"
E, 3976.31 feet along the North line of the Scuth huolf of Section 3 te the Northeast corner of the Neorthwest 1/4 of
the Southeast 1/4 of Section 3; thence S 00047397 E, 1326.78 feet along the East line of the Northwest 1/4 of the
Southeast 1/4 of Section 3 to the Northwest corner of the Southeast 1,/4 of the Southeast 1,/4 of Section 3; thence
N 8937167 E, 1328.99 feel along the Neorth line of the Southeast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 3 to the
Nertheast corner thersof and the Northwest carner of the Scuthwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 2, Township
24 South, Range 27 East; thence N 0007507 W, 1325.78 feet along the West line of Northwest 1/4, of the Southwest
1/4, of Section 2 to the Northwest corner thereof: thence N 00°07'43" W, 40013 feet along the West line of the
Northwest 1/4, of Section 2; thence run along the Northerly boundary of a deed recorded in Official Recards Boaok
1457, Fage 934 of the Fublic Records of this County the following three courses; N 2646137 E, 102487 feet; N
7737237 E, 1103.42 feet; N 5371838" E, 1872.82 feet to a point on the Southerly right—of—way line of Reams Road
os shown on Plat book 3, Page 85 of the Public Records of this County, thence run along said right—of—way line the
following three courses; S 43401107 E, 1382.92 feet to the beginning of a curve concave to the Northeast, hoving a
rodius of 546,86 feel and a central angle of 48°21°00"; thence run Southeasterly along the arc of sald curve 44239
feet; thence N 8958007 £, 341.81 feel; thence leaving said right—of—way, run S 0019°24" E, 603,75 fzel along the
East line of the Northeaost 1/4 of Section 2, to the Southeast corner thereof, and the Northwest corner of the
Northwest 1,/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 1, Township 24 South, Range 27 Eost; thence N 8843477 E, along
the Narth line of the Northwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 1, 1297.19 feel to @ point 25 feet West of the
Neortheast corner of the Northwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 1; thence N 0012°217 W, 598,76 feet dong a
ling that is 25.00 feet West of and parallel to the West line of the Southeast 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 1
to the Southerly right—of—way line of aforescid Reams Road; thence N £8956°46" E, 100.00 feet along said Southerly
right—of—way of Reams Read; thence run along the Easterly and MNortherly boundary of a deed recorded in Official
Records Book 1465, Page 307 of the Public Records of this County the follawing five courses; S 02°0412" E, 523.43
feet; N 89°4340" E, 52.00 feet; S 0012°21" E, 48.00 feet; N 894341" E, 229.00 feet; S 0012'25" E, 26.23 feet;
thence N 82°43°47" E, 1038.16 feet along the North line of the South half of Section 1 to a point 20.00 feet East of

CONTINUED ON SHEET 9

FILING AREA DATE:
WOW DISNEY OVERALL 4/5/22
PROJECT NAME SCALE
P.0.B. 10000
FoB oo CFTOD WATER/WASTE WATER TERRITORY
FL. 32B30—1000 SURVEY TYPE DRAWN BY:
SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION JLG
COMMENTS FILEMAME:
SHEET & OF 29 SHEETS 10JG09095RA




CONTINUED FROM SHEET 8

the Northeast corner of the Southwast 1/4 of Section 1; thence S 0534'33" W, 911.86 feet: thence S 000518 E,
420,00 feet along the East line of the Northeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 1 to the Southeast corner

thersof; thence N 8944107 E, 26498.93 feet along the North line of the South half of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 1
to the Point of Beginning.

Less the fellowing described parcels:

That portion of Lets 110 and 111 of the Munger and Company Subdivision of Section 22, Township 24 South, Ronge 28

Fost ogccording to the Plat recorded in Plat Book E Fage 22 of the Public Records of Orange County, Flerida, being
mare particularly described os:

Commence at the MNorthwest cormer of the Southwest 1/4- of the Southwest 1/4- of Section 22, run 5 83827137 E,
464.18 feet along the MNorth line of the Southwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Saction 22; thence S 0032477 W,
15.00 feet to a point on the MNorth line of said Lot 111 and the Point of Beginning; thence S 892713" E, 300.00 feet
along the MNorth line of Lots 110, and 111 to the West right—of—way of State Road 400 as shown in map section
75280-2465 and dated 2/22/1893; thence S 0405327 E, 150.49 feet along the sald right—of—waoy, thence N

B92713" W, 31217 feet along the South line of the MNorth 150.00 feet said Lots 110 and 111; thence N 00°32'47" E,
150.00 feet to the Point of Beginning.

And

That part of the MNorthwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 and the Northeast 1/4 of the Southwest
1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 22, Township 24 South, Range 28 East, being more particularly described as:

Commence al the Northwest corner of the Southwest 1/4 of the Scuthwest 1/4 af Section 22, run along the Narth
line of the South 1/2 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 22, 5 892713" E, 985.26 feef, to the Point of Beginning;
thence continue along said line S B9'27'13" E, 642,78 feet; thence run along the Westerly right—of—way line of State
Road 400 cs shown in map section 75280—2465 and datsd 2/22/1993 the following three courses; S 4605237 W,
68112 feet to g peint on a non—tangent curve concave Mortherly having a radius of 60.00 feet, ond a central angle
of 118'45'23"; from o tangent bearing of S 4606367 W run Westerly along the arc of said curve, 124,36 fsef; N
15077407 W, 205.41 feet; thence run along the West line of Lot 108 of the Munger and Company Subdivision of Saction

22, according to the Plat recorded in Plat Book E Fage 22 of the Public Records of this County, N Q014307 E,
25264 feet to the Foint of Beginning.

Centaining 17,611.075 acres mare or less.

FILING AREA DATE:
WOW DISMEY OVERALL 4/5/22
FROJECT NAME SCALE
F.O.B. 10000
POB 10000 CFTOD WATER /WASTE WATER TERRITORY
FL. 32830-1000 SURVEY TYPE DRAWN BY:
PHONE 407-824-4185 | SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION JLG
COMMENTS FILENAME:
SHEET 8 OF 28 SHEETS 10JGO2056R




6000"

GRAPHIC SCALE
SCALE 1"= 8000’

ABBREVIATIONS
BRG BEARING
CFTOD CENTRAL FLORIDA TOURISM

[

2

OVERSIGHT DISTRICT

DEED BOOK

DISTANCE

FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE
LICENSES BUSINESS

OFFICIAL RECORDS

PLAT BOOK

POINT OF BEGINNING

POINT OF COMMENCEMENT
PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR AND
MAPPER

b,

S

]

\L I_ \‘ T STATE R0AD
% - s e TOWNSHIP
[ Rty
™ 7 = v
i o S L ]
Uiy :
L S
; ET\NT%E{_); Kode
K gj@
=4
IR
b

"'nm-. o

dH Green

FO7A464D3AT549E...

BEARINGS ARE BASED ON THE WEST LINE OF THE SW 1/4, OF SEC. 6,

B
AT Y
| sl S I
(_.P.’t'g / )
S W-okance county”
TCWNSHIP 24 STUTH
=z |l /-\IL‘:-}:%___J"——"
owlsuip 25 Storm
Vg == O04CEOLA COUNTY REVISED
{308 Ve gt A 5 1/7/23
181 Shmor ji} 9/21/23
%-a. ‘IQR‘QF .5'5 DocuSigned by: ) 9/27/22
4L g e CENERAL NOTES: 9/19/22

TWN 24 5, RNG 28 E AS BEING N 00°00°227 E

-

Thiz document has been electronically signed using a
digital signature in compliance with F.A.C. 5J—17.6802(3).
Frinted copies of this document are not considered
signed and the e—signature must be verified on any 4.
clectronic copies. The seal appearing on this document

was authorized by Jeff L. Green P.S.M. 5357,

Feedy Creek Energy Services, LE 7714

L

ADMINISTRATIVE CODE.

THIS SKETCH 15 NOT A SURVEY.

THIS SKETCH MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED IN SIZE BY REPRODUCTION. THIS
MUST BE CONSIDERED WHEN OBTAINING SCALED DATA.

THIS SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION MEETS THE APPLICABLE "STANDARDS OF

PRACTICE” AS SET FORTH BY THE FLORIDA BOARD OF PROFESSIONAL
SURVEYORS AND MAPPERS IN RULE 5J—17.050-.052, FLORIDA

5300 Center Drive, Bay Lake, Florida 32830—1000 5. SEE SHEETS 28 AND 28 FOR LINE AND CURVE TAELES.
: FILING AREA DATE:
WOW DISNEY OVERALL 4,/5/22
P oE 10000 PROJECT MAME Scﬁ\LE )
LAKE BUENA VISTA CFTOD WATER/WASTE WATER TERRITORY 1" = 6000
FL. 32830—1000 SURYEY TYPE DRAWN BY:
PHONE 407-824-4185 SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION JLG
COMMENTS FILEMAME:
SHEET 10 OF 29 SHEETS 10JG0Y0496R4




165,00 feet
MNarth ling, SE

West 1/4 corner
Sec, 62478

SW corner, E 1

N B927'45" E

West line, East 1/Z,
1/4, NW 1/4
Sec. 6—24-28

SE 1,4, NW 1/4
Sec. 6-24-—

South of the
174, NW 1 /4o,

185.00 feet South of the
Naorth line, SW 1/4, NE 1/4MM

Sec, 6-24-28 1

;-2/ Sec. 6-24-28

.

" 54.75'\

28

i
1997.50'

N_00-20'35" W\

Wasterly shore line o

“ Morth line, South h
Sec. B-24—
[~——West line, Sec. €

—

n
N
o
"M
-—

N 00°00°22" E

1/4, Sec.

—24-028

P.0.B.

" SW corner, NW 1/4, SwW

5

28 &

6—24-28

.n SEE SHEET 26 -

BRG BEARING
CFTOD CENTRAL FLORIDA

outh line, Sec. 6-24-28

LSW corner, Sec. 8-24-28

1381.64'

North line, South half, SE 1/4
Sec. 6-24-78B

N 892930 £ 1679.89'

Z90eE L.
[ # 022100 5 1

MNE Comer Sec 7 24— 28
NW corner, Sec. §—-24-28 X
o ;

GRAPHIC SCALE
SCALE 1"= 1000=

East line, Sec. 6-24-23

1000

N

ANTBELT € 168205 \N B9'31M7”

TOURIGM

E =3 89;1 17” W 230@ 35

West shore line of Sguth Lak

| SW 1/4 Sec. 8-24-28

ME corner, HNW 1 FERE

East line, West
half, West half
Sec. 8—-24-28

SHEET 11 OF 29 SHEETS

]
OVERSIGHT DISTRICT P ¥ I
D.B DEED BOOK E 3
DIST DISTANCE y r g \ 2
“[SC [h}%mgésAaDaA‘smngngATNE ~OPE East I\ne W half S 1/4 Sec E—24-25: '2’;
O.R. OFFICIAL RECORDS e
i RS ~—1( #5~SE CORNER, NWS1E,(/:4SS\§4W /2%\ “Im
P.O.B.  POINT OF BEGINNING ’
P.0.C.  POINT OF COMMENCEMENT A 1111.09" -
PSH PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR AND -
MAPPER S R&'48'04" REVISED
R /W RIGHT OF WAY 11/7/23
RNG RANGE
SEC SECTION 9/21/23
SR, STATE ROAD 9/27/22
TANG TANGENT
TN TOWNSHIF 9,/18,/22
FILING AREA DATE:
WOW DISNEY OVERALL 4/5/22
PROJECT NAME SCALE
P.0O.B. 10000 s y
PO oo CFTOD WATER/WASTE WATER TERRITORY 17 = 1000
FL. 32830-1000 SURVEY TYPE DRAWN BY:
PHONE 407-824-4185 SKETCH OF DESCRIFTION JLG
COMMENTS FILENANE:

T10JGO909BRAY




400’

SCALE 1"

SEE SHEET 11

i

ABEREMVIATIONS
BEARING
CEMTRAL FLORIDA TOURISM
OVERSIGHT DISTRICT

C.B DEED BOOK
CIST DISTANCE
FAG FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE H
LE LICEMSES BUSINESS
O.R. OFFICIAL RECORDS
F.B. PLAT BOOK
F.0.B POINT OF BEGINNING
F.C.C POINT OF COMMEMCEMENT
PShd PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR AND & # ﬁ REVISED
MAPPER '
o Mortherly and Easterly boundary of
;42’ EESGTEOF way Tract R, Golden Ook Phaose 18, 11/7/25
SEC SECTION \ Plat Book 75, Pages 3-15 9/21/23
N STATE ROAD H Q2722
TANG TANGENT \ i /27/
T TOWNSHIP <+ SEE SHEET 13 9/19/22
FILNG AREA DATE:
WOW DISNEY OVERALL 4/5/22
¥ v ry . PROJECT MAME SCALE
"""" P.0.B. 10000 L :
n . 4 LAKE BUENA VISTA CFTOD WATER /WASTE WATER TERRITORY 1 400
B FL. 32830-1000 SURVEY TYPE DRAWN BY:
REE ‘ENERAY SERWIBES FHONE 407-824-4185 | SKETCH OF DESCRIFTION JLG
GOMMENTS FILENAME:

SHEET 12 OF 28 SHEETS

10JGO909BRAY




=
e
]
%’.-.
23
w o
CFTCD CAMAL L—105
O.R. 1898, PG 232
s
b
ABEREVIATIONS B
ERG BEARING
CFTOD  CENTRAL FLORIDA TOURISM
QVERSIGHT DISTRICT
D.B DEED BOOK
DIST DISTANCE
FAC FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE #
LB LICENSES BUSINESS
O.R. OFFICIAL RECORDS
F.B. PLAT BOOK
F.O.B.  POINT OF BEGINNING
F.O.C.  POINT OF COMMENCEMENT REVISED
PSM PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR AND &7 M/7/23
MAPPER 9,/21/23
R W RIGHT OF WAY
RNG RANGE 9/27/22
SEC SECTION
SR, STATE ROAD 9/18/22
TANG  TANGENT Csg ~J
T TOWNSHIP L
FILING AREA DATE:
WOW DISNEY OVERALL 4/5/22
FROJECT NAME SCALE
P.0.B. 10000 o ¢
LAKE BUENA VISTA CFTOD WATER /WASTE WATER TERRITORY 17 = 400
FL. 32B30—1000 SURVEY TYPE DRAWN BY:
ENERQY SERWIGES FHOME 407-324-4185 | SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION JLG
COMMENTS FILENANE:
SHEET 13 OF 28 SHEETS 10JGO909BRS




3 H NW corner, MNE 1/4, SW 1/4, Sec. 17—24-28

I—North line, South hcﬂf Sec 17-24-28

il il —— ra

Eost 1/4— corner, Sec. 17—24-28

1000

1000’

1ig, p1sinPquang B

—

BTZ89¢ M 203200 &

GRAPHIC SCALE
SCALE 1° :

SEE SHEET 13

¥ Fast section line, Sec. 17—24—281

J

* SE corner, Sec. 17-24-28

6‘0% M N . .W. ../m[.. 3 . N .

MW corner, NE 1/4,
SW 1/4, NW 1/4,
Sec. 21-24-253

"East section line, Sec. 20-24—28

3 L0C,10.00 S

= ‘ : o // - L179
< SE carner, NE 1/4, NE 1/4, Sec. 20—24-28 - -
SW ocorner, NW 1/4, NW 1/4, Sec. Z1-24-28 o

\ - A ws

"NE Corner SE 1/4 SW 1/4
/4 Sec 21— 24 28
: \

e
ogil

Za1

AN

NW corner, NE 1/4— SW 1/4— Seo 21 24— 28
ABBREV\A\ONS \ X
BRG BEARING

CFTOD  CENTRAL FLORIDA TOURISM _- = - 7 \
OVERSIGHT DISTRICT 7 NW corner of Lot 85, Munger and Compcmy Subdlvmony
D.B DEED BOOK 4 ! ; Sec. 21724— 28, recorded in Flat Book E Poge 22 \

pisT DISTANCE L _ 'u!

FAC FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE GODE +

R —

': 5.‘91'\

84

LE LICENSES BUSINESS

O.R. CFFICIAL RECORDS

P.B. PLAT BOOK

F.0.B. FOINT GF BEGINNING

P.OC. POINT OF COMMENCEMENT

PEM PROFESSIONAL SURWEYOR AND
MAPPER REVISED |

R/W  RIGHT OF WAY B A A A A 1
BNG RANCE _// : ; : : : ; : : 5 . W/I/?/ZB’
SEC SECTION A o - o o o - o o S 9/21/23
SR, STATE ROAD L 5 /27 /22
TANG  TANGENT . : . : . : - : - : - :

TN TOWNSHIP . ) P R . A 9,/19/22
4 FILING AREA DATE:

WOW DISNEY OVERALL 4/5/22

IUPUUVIUR: S —

PROJECT NAME SC:)&LE )
P.0.B. 10000 CFTOD WATER /WASTE WATER TERRITORY 1 = 1000

LAKE BUENA VISTA
SURVEY TYPE DRAWN BY:

FL. 32830-1000
SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION JLG

COMMENTS FILENAME:
SHEET 14 OF 29 SHEETS T10JGO909BRAY




o SEE SHEET 14
2 NE corner, SE 1/4, SW 1/4, NW 1/4, Sec, 21-24-28
"1 L181
24 : g 1=
st T | D ]
: gg N £y A4
. :
a1 N 89'50'49" E_2601.31
, %all. ! §§ West 1/4 corner, Sec. 22-24—28— | : \ \—f—Eoster\y R/W line SR, 5357 e
- 8 t I Hoey,
) g . a sralipanas West line, Sec. 22—24—23 (1) North line, South ho\f Sec 22 24-28 .
: U@ o L184 /—NE corner, Lot 85 i "
**** - : NE corner, SE 1/4, SW 1/4, S Ay
4 .d\'v\'sion/ Sec. 21-24-28 ) o e R/ A
B age 22 ° B o Nerth line, South half, © R/ 8
: \ SOOEIR SE 1/4, Sec. 21—24-23 z|,
& e H 7 A . £
AL B S_B9'53'15" E N _89°37'38” E_2005.42 T
LA ] = J SEE SHEET 27 !
+" _SE corner, Lot 85—F /;-1004_-.75’ - MW corner, NE 1/4 SW 1/4 FOR THis AREA | PP
North line, SE 1/4, W 1/4_/" : P Ly ©| . SE 174 Sec. 21-24-28 /
. Ssc. 21724 25 . g =k NE corner, South holf, 150, DO W of
West line, NW 1/4, SW 1/4, SE 1/4, Sec. 21-24—2834 buseline S.R. 400
SE 1 /4, Sec, 21—DA—287 L187 (SW corner, NW 1/4, SW 174, L
TSW corner, NW 1/4, SW 1/4, Sec, 22-24-28 et |§ R}W\
~S/E 1/4, Sec, 21-24-28 ¢ West line, NE 1/4, SW 1/4, f %%E Hne: grRy A

South line, MW 1/4, SW 1/4/ .
SE 1/4 Sec. 21-24-28
SE corner, NE 1/4 Sw 1/4 SE 1/4 S

SE 1,/4, Sea. 21—24-28

ec, 21 24 25

Westerly R/W
SR 536

ABBREVIATIONS
o BRG BEARING
il CFTOD CENTRAL FLORIDA TOURISM
o OVERSIGHT DISTRICT
u D.B DEED BOOK
1714 b DIST DISTANCE
FAC FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE
ﬁ . . LB LICENSES BUSINESS
L4 0.R. OFFICIAL RECORDS
Westerly R/W F.B. PLAT BOOK
] SR 536 - S R 400 Interchange . P.0.B. POINT OF BEGINNING
4 | PSU~ PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR AND
s West Mne Sec 28 24— 28 REVISED MAPPER
ay 11/7/23 R/W RIGHT OF WAY
RMNG RANGE
3 19 5N200 0007 W 9/21/23 i SEC SECTION
e 9/27/22 5.R. STATE ROAD
387.61" 3,/18,/22 TANG TANGENT
TN TOWNSHIP
FILING AREA DATE:
WOW DISNEY OVERALL 4/5/22
FROJECT NAME SCALE
P.0.B. 10000 o '
LAKE BUENA VISTA CFTOD WATER /WASTE WATER TERRITORY 17 = 1000
FL. 32830-1000 SURVEY TYPE DRAWN BY:
PHONE 407—-824—4185 SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION JLG
GOMMENTS FILENAME:
SHEET 15 OF 28 SHEETS 10JG09096RA




1000 |

GRAPHIC SCALE

SCALE 1"= 1000'

\'\
R/W of Chelonla Pmrkway\\\ o
< Plat Bock 86, Page 41 )

. SEE SHEET 15

o

#" East line, SE 1/4, Sec, 3"1724!28\-“

< SW corner Sec. 29-24-28
7 NE Corﬂer, Sec 31— 24 28 SGuth 1/4 carner Sec 29— 24 28
L. . \ i . 16748
JE N 89504 W 2152.59 N 89'5_0'43_"_w 1496 107 N BTS04 W

E # . & . o K
East line, NE 1/4, Sec, 31—24—28 "=

—

“56¥IZ 3 05,0500 S

“Zorner NE 1/4, Sec. 31-24-28— ]

.

South line, SW 1/4, Sec. 29—24-28

South line, SE 1/4, Sec. 28—24-728

SW carner, Sec. 28—-24-28
SE scomer, Sec. 29-24-28

bt i

oy
!
Yt

(—

REVISED
1M/7/23
9/21/23
9/27/22
9,/19/22

v
o
. N
‘ ~
~ ABBREVIATIONS
- = EBRG BEARING
E | CFTOD CENTRAL FLORIDA TOURISM
I OVERSIGHT CISTRICT
& @ D.B DEED BOOK
~ I o N DIST DISTANCE
- e e oraNCcE COUNTY A0 TLONDA AOUNETRATIVE Cone
<'sE Sec. F—24-28" ) y AT ¥ BB PLAT Book 0
i # cornear, <C. B s f - £ o N=h
SOuth line, SE 1/4, Sec. 31-24-28 TOWNSHIP 24 S0UTH P.0.B. POINT OF BEGINNING
P.0.C.  POINT OF COMMENCEMENT
g 26486, 94 1 /PSM PROFESSIOMAL SURVEYOR AND
rd s o MAPFER
R /W RIGHT OF WaY
N 89736'01" W . == Sl RéG RANGE
TOWNSEHIF 26 F0UTH SEC SECTION
SR. STATE ROAD
OECEGLA COUNTY TANG  TANGENT
TWN TOWNSHIP
FILING AREA DATE:
WOW DISMNEY OVERALL 4/5/22
FROJECT NAME SCALE
F.C.B. 10000 L '
LAKE BUSNA VISTA CFTOD WATER /WASTE WATER TERRITORY 1T = 1000
FL. 32B30—1000 SURVEY TYPE DRAWN BY:
PHONE 407-8z4-#185 | SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION JLG
COMMENTS FILEMAME:
SHEET 16 OF 29 SHEETS 10JGOHOS6R Y




1000, 1

CRAFHIC SCALE
SCALE 1"= 1000’

0

SEE SHEET 18 -, -

Sec. 36-24-37

\;‘

“ South line, SW 1/4,

ggﬁj%@g ﬁ? gﬁgéﬁ

0 %wi
Ei &gwwg?g“f

i’“‘*{?{xxﬁ???
24 ﬁ'ﬁiﬁ %‘ /“\

Oscealo Parkway

S'outh line, SE 1/4, See. 36-24-27

E : South Ime, SW 1/4 Seo 31 24—-28"
S S~ )
\Z 2743 82" . T

SEE SHEET 16 ™, . %™ Ny

\ S 8950'04" W
SW corner, SE 1/4, :
Sec. 36-24-27
!

' 2656.21" 2658.48' _
S B946°36" W N\BQ 5? 5}
SW corner, Sec. 31—24-2SW corner, SE 1,/4,
SE corner, Sec, 36-24-Z Sec. 31-24-28
[
ABBREVIATIONS s . s -
ERG BEARING TOWNSHIP 258 BEOLITH
CFTOD  CENTRAL FLORIDA TOURISM i
g DEED o e TR ] GROROLA COUNTY
DIST DISTANCE 3
FAC FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE
LE LICENSES BUSINESS ﬂ
0.R. OFFICIAL RECORDS
F.B. PLAT BOOK
F.O.B. POINT OF BEGINMING ;
P.0.C. POINT OF COMMENCEMENT
Pai PROFESSICNAL SURVEYOR AND
MAPPER REVISED
R /W RIGHT OF WAY
RéG RANGE ” 1/7,/23
SEC SECTION : 9,/21/23
SR STATE ROAD
TANG TANGENT 9/27/22
T TowNSHE R 9/19,/22
FILING AREA DATE:
WOW DISMNEY OVERALL 4/5/22
FROJECT NAME SCALE
F.C.B. 10000 L '
LAKE BUSNA VISTA CFTOD WATER /WASTE WATER TERRITORY 1" = 1000
FL. 32B30—1000 SURVEY TYPE DRAWN BY:
llllll’ SERVIEES PHONE 407-524-4185 SKETCH OF DEZCRIPTION JLG
COMMENTS FILENANE:
SHEET 17 OF 29 SHEETS 10JGOHOS6R Y




1000

GRAPHIC SCALE
SCAIE 1°= 1000°

0

" SEE SHEET 20

| _fﬁm %m wg& Wz’
ggi}%ﬁfwzmﬁ 24 é§§€;?§§§

South Ime SW 1/4 Sec 35 24 27

L

- .O;scc.ol.o Parkway

South \me SE 1/4— Sec 35 24727
/ 2652.59" \)

South line, 3W 1/4,
Sec. 36 2427

=

Sy 12661.05"  2656.21" >
S 89'44°07" W S B94B’35" W 89°46'36" W
SW corner, Sec. 35—-Z24-27 SW carner, SE 1/4,
] SE corner, Sec, 34—24-27 Sec. 35—24-27 ;
SW corner, Sec. 36—24-—27 E]
SE corner, Sec. 35-24-—-27
SHEEEAATNG FORNSHIF 26 SOUTH ;
CFTOD  CENTRAL FLORIDA TOURISM e R
. OVERSICHT DISTRICT OSCEOLA COUNTY
CIsT DISTANCE
FAC FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE H
LE LICENSES BUSINESS
0., OFFICIAL RECORDS
F.B. PLAT BOOK
~.0.B. POINT OF BEGINNING
F.0.C POINT OF COMMEMNCEMEMT
=i FROFESSIOMAL SURVEYOR AND i
MAPPER REVISED
R W RIGHT OF WAY AP
Rgc RANGE & T 11/7/23
SEC SECTION 9/21/23
S.R. STATE ROAD
TANG TAMGENT 9/27/22
I [QWNSHIP 9/19/22
FILING AREA DATE:
WOW DISNEY OVERALL 4/5/22
PROJECT MAME SC:?LE ,
POB. 0000 CFTOD WATER/WASTE WATER TERRITORY 1" = 1000
FL. 32830-1000 SURVEY TYPE DRAWIN BV
SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION JLG
COMMENTS FILEMNAME:
SHEET 18 OF 29 SHEETS 10JGO909BRS




'SEE SHEET 20 ©~ .~

L —SE comer, North 5/8, NE 1/4, SE 1/4, Sec. 33-24-27"

L280

<NW corner, SW 1/4, SW 1/4, Sec, 34—24-27
NE cormer, SE 1/4, SE 1/4, Sec. 33—-24—27 ¢

L279

f/-_West line, SW 1/4, Sec, 34-24-27"

Edsterly and ND.rtherIy.boundciry of
<7 Black Lake Village, Flat Book 75, Page 149 .~

L214

i \B\gck Lake Village, Plat Book 75, Page 149\

i soue
SCAIE 1°= 300° .,

O

SEE SHEET 20 = ™ % % n

South line,
1 Sec. 34—24—27

343873

S B89'46'46" W

ABBREVIATIONS
BRG BEARING
CFTOD  CENTRAL FLORIDA TOURISM
DVERSIGHT DISTRICT
DB DEED BOOK
pDisT DISTAMCE
FAC FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE
) LICENSES BUSINESS
0.R. OFFICIAL RECORDS
F.E. PLAT BOOK
P.0.B POINT OF BEGINNING
P.0.C POINT OF COMMENCEMENT
PSM PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR AND
, MAPPER REVIZED
R /W RIGHT OF WAY
RNG RAMGE 11/7/23
SEC SECTION 9,/21 /23
SR, STATE ROAD
TANG TANGENT 9/27/22
TWn TOWNSHIP 9,/19,/22
FILING AREA DATE:
WOW DISNEY OVERALL 4/5/22
PROJECT NAME SCALE
P.0O.B. 10000 AR !
LAKE BUENA VISTA CFTOD WATER /WASTE WATER TERRITORY 17 = 300
FL. 32B30—1000 SURVEY TYPE DRAWN BY:
PHONE 407-824-4185 | SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION JLG
COMMENTS FILENAME:
SHEET 19 OF 289 SHEETS 10JGO909BRS




P

Pt e

000

1

SCALE 1°= 1000’

NW caorner, Sec. 34—24-27

SEE SHEET 21

West line, Eust 1/2 -
-48ec 27-24-27

_N _00° 1'1‘_1_' W 5964-:69'

Morth line, N'W 1/4, Sec. 34-24-27

North line, SE 1/4, NE 1/4, Sec. 33—24—27
MW corner, SE 1/4,
NE 1/4, Sec. 33-24-27 ™~

West line, NW 1/4, Sec. 34—24—27 —=F

I/N 00°00'06"{E

S 89'55°44° E

N _B9'5353" 2679.47',

+1329,09"

1 326.40’:
Ly - E
:O*":)?West Ime SE
N
ol —
PI (5
o]
zZ|

o

= NE corner, SE 1/4, NE 1/4, Sec. 33-24-27

1/4 NE"1/4, Sec, 33—24-27

—a

NW corner, M. 5/8, NE 1/4,
SE 1/4, Sec. 33—24—27

L2B1

:NE corner, NW 1/4, Sec, 34—24-27
SW corner, SE 1/4, Sec. 27-24-27

SEE SHEET 18 . . .

e ) /SE corner, North 5/8 NE 1/4 SE 1/4 Sec 33 24— 27
F' » i p
W corner, N. 5/8, NE 1/4:/ N 894 57 v T NW corner, SW 1/4 SW 1 /4, Sec. 34-24-27, ]
g\i’ggREVlATg);ASR‘NG S NE corner, SE 1/4, SE 1/4, Sec. 33-24-27 ’
CFTOD  CENTRAL FLORIDA TOURISM "I _West line, SW 1/4, Sec. 34—24—27 Rt
CENTRAL FLORIDA TOURISH e = West line, / ec. g‘}gﬁ& %gg {?ﬁ{; gggfg?y “
0.8 DEED BOOK E - - ,
DIST DISTANGE
FAC FLORIDA ADMIMISTRATIVE CODE ?mg}?ﬁ' %;gggggﬁ @xf fgﬁa ?ﬁ{
LB LICENSES BUSINESS
O.R. OFFICIAL RECORDS
P.B. PLAT BOOK
P.O.B.  POINT OF BEGINNING South line,
P.0.C.  POINT OF COMMENCEMENT See 404 07
PSM PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR AND : : - :
MAPPER REVISED
R /W RIGHT OF WAY 11/7/23 SEE SHEET 19 o Ce
RING RANGE g /21/25 CSSFOR_THIS AREA X 343873 ¢
SEC SECTION ~9/21/ S 89°4646" W
S.R. STATE ROAD 9/27 /22
T4 ToWNSHIP 5,/19,/22 TOWNSHIP 25 SOUTH
FILING AREA DATE:
WOW DISNEY OVERALL 4/5,/22
PROJECT NAME SCALE
P.0O.B. 10000 s y
LAKE BUENA VISTA CFTOD WATER /WASTE WATER TERRITORY 17 = 1000
FL. 32830-1000 SURVEY TYPE DRAWN BY:
PHONE 407—-824—4185 SKETCH OF DESCRIFTION JLG
COMMENTS FILENANE:
SHEET 20 OF 28 SHEETS 10JG09096R4




1000’

GRAPHIC SCALE
SCALE 1™

72, NE"1 /4,080, 252 24-29 AN
_Narth line, NE 1/4, NE 1/4, Sec. DH_ 24— 27

NW cormer, Sec. 27—24— 27\/
NE corner, Sec. 28-24-27 T

NW corner, NE 1/4 NW 1/4, Sec 27-24-

1328 51 \SE corner, SW W./4 S\ftd’ 1,/4, “Sec oo_nd_

O 87 S 8948'06" W S 894629" W |
South line, SW 1,/4, / | 2 L] T
Sec. 21-24-27 2 R
Ny ; o4 = [
South line, SE 1/4, > North line, NW 1/4, Sec. 27—-24-27 E — |-
Ses. 21—24-27 I —E UNE w142, NE 1/4. Sec. 2872472.?; 8
s _SW corner, NE 1/4—, NW 144 s
West line, NE 1,/4, NW 1/4, Sec. 27-24-27 —"" |Z /Sec 27-24-27 \
E. R/W Flamings Crossings
Blvd. O.R. 10875 /4619 - 133215 :
ABEREVIATIONS Scuth line, ME 1/4, NW 1/4, Sec, 27—24-37- 75 895754 W
BRG BEARING o Z8—24-27 — = a
CFTOD  CENTRAL FLORIDA TOURISM SE corner, NE 1/4, NW 1/4, Sec. 27-24-27 4
OVERSIGHT DISTRICT g
DB DEED BOOK al
DIST DISTANCE ]
FAG FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE
LB LICENSES BUSINESS =\ e
0.R. OFFICIAL RECORDS .
P.E. PLAT BOOK o e gﬁ“‘?
F.C.E. POINT OF BEGINNING £ 4t
F.0.C. POINT OF COMMENCEMENT = o
P S PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR AND REVISED /8
MAPPER é%v 1/7/23 i@
=/ RIGHT OF WAY : e o A
RHG RANGE 9/21,/23 z
SEC SECTION ; 9/27/22 B
5.R. STATE ROAD ‘ ;
TANG TANGENT ¢/19/22
T4/ TOWNSHIP SEE SHEET 20
FILING AREA DATE:
WOW DISNEY OVERALL 4/5/22
FROJECT NAME SCALE
P.0.B. 10000 o '
LAKE BUENA VISTA CFTOD WATER,/WASTE WATER TERRITORY 17 = 1000
FL. 32B30—1000 SURVEY TYPE DRAWN BY:
SKETCH OF DESCRIFTION JLG
COMMENTS FILENAME:
SHEET 21 OF 28 SHEETS 10JG02098R4




B i
;
H

SEE SHEET 23 -,
South line, East 1/2 \ \

"NE 1/4, Sec. 17-24— 27
1347.90° ¢ . \ \

f

SW corner, East 1,2,
NE 1/4, Sec. 17-24-37

MWE corner, SE 1/4, See, 17—24-27

East line, SE 1,4, Sec. 17—-24-27

S 89°43'49° W

N_00°02'13" E 2669.40

" GRAPHIC SCALE
SCALE 1= 1000°

1000 -

=
vl
[
s
S
U]

»

j? gE\IW carner, SW 1/4, Sec. 21-24-27

MW corner, Sec, 21—-24-27
SE corner, Sec. 17-24-27

=
=
=
S

7
1]
]
2
|
r
T
R
-

f

/ N _00°35'56" E  2659.37'

™~
\ R
ol .
West line, SW 1/4, Sec. 21-24— 27—-11‘_“9
wj -
E
*
<
ABRREVIATIONS Poll I
BRG BEARING D Bl
CFTOD  CENTRAL FLORIDA TOURISM o
OVERSIGHT DISTRICT S
D.B DEED BOOK =
DIST DISTANCE Ed § N
FAC FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE # )
LB LICENSES BUSINESS \ \3_& m;gga E
o orh s ~ smuﬁ}rewn b
P.O.B POINT OF BEGINNING -C37 LZ06T. B
F.O.C POINT OF COMMENCEMENT 5 N
PSH PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR AND
ROrES REVISED
R/W RIGHT OF WAY M/7/23
RNG RANGE
SEC SECTION 9/21/23 - -
S.R. STATE ROAD G,/27/22 Y
TANG TANGENT South line, SW 1/4,
Wi TOWNSHIP 9/19/22 Sec, 21-04-27
FILING AREA DATE:
WOW DISNEY OVERALL 4/5/22
PROJECT NAME SCalE
P.0O.B. 10000 AR '
PoB 000 CFTOD WATER /WASTE WATER TERRITORY 1" = 1000
FL. 32830-1000 SURVEY TYPE DRAWN BY:
SKETCH OF DESCRIFTION JLG
GOMMENTS FILENAHE:
SHEET 22 OF 28 SHEETS 10JG09096R4




Mortherly R/W line of Hartzag Rood.

N kY

NE corner, SE 1/4, Seg. 8-24-27 i
NW carner, SW 1/4, Sec. §—24-27

/

Morth line, NW 1/4,
SW 1/4, Sec. 9—24-27

1000

GRAPHIC SCALE
SCALE 1°= 1000°

| NMorth line, SE 1/4, Sec. 8—24—27
West line, NE 1/4, Sec. 8-24-27 6\ \ — \
: e
o %_/LJDO > \.pN 89'43'24" E 1808. 38 N_8944'05" E o
= —d \ P T 1:525 36 .
ol S BRAZ24" w C‘ East line, NW 1/4 e
P 207.15' #SW 1/4, Sec. 9-24-27 p g o
Tn o
a Y e ) NE corner, NW 1 4 w2
8 & NW 174, “SW 1/4, Sec. 9-24-27 N 5]
e SE 1/4 ' \ L . o
o s = .
‘ N 24'57°02" W : \ E line,’ N 1/4_ North line, SE 1/4,
West line, NW 1/4, 499.49° AT S5y 1/4 Sec. 9-24-27 T E[SW 1/4, Sec. 9
SE 1/4, Sec. 8-24-— 27 T -,&_O . # N B94510" E
,\é. SE corner, NW 1/4, 1327.55"
) SW 1/4, Sec. 9-24-27 v
AREA EXCLUDED FROM AZ —\ lo
| E
. :D
R/W line Hartzog Road i 17
QO.R. Book 9711/5348 — 13
0.R. Book 9782/7172 ] ®
.=ai
North line, Sec. 17—/ o+
- ™~
NW comer, East 1/2, NE 1/4, Sec. 17-24-27 8 & -
o [~}
al B
N .v’H
i,
; I
| 3 &
©
- B
=
ABEREVIATIONS S
BRG BEARING
CFTOD CENTRAL FLORIDA TOURISM =
OVERSIGHT DISTRICT _
D5 DEED BOOK
EL\SCT ElLSOTR/TBIPC\EADMIN\STRATIVE CODE South line, East 1/2,
LG LICENSES BUSINESS oA NE 174, See 172
o.F. OFFICIAL RECORDS ¢ 1347.90°
P.5. PLAT BOOK i !
P.0.8 POINT OF BEGINNING 4 S 894342 W i
P.0.C POINT OF COMMENCEMENT g REVISED
= PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR AND 8 i
MAPPER SW corner, East 1,/2, __E."ﬂ/7/2:’>5
R RIGHT OF WAY NE 1/4, Sec. 17—24-27 o 9/21 /23
A aNeE NE corner, SE 1/4, Sec. 17—-24—27 ; 59?27§22
s e : (A AYAY i
Ty TOWNSHIP o SEE SHEET 22 _°
FILING AREA DATE
WOW DISMEY OVERALL 4/5/22
FROJECT NAME SCALE
P.0.B. 10000 no_ '
POB o000 CFTOD WATER /WASTE WATER TERRITCRY 1" = 1000
FL. 32830-1000 SURVEY TYPE DRAWN BY:
ERAY SERVWIEES FHONE 407-224-4185 | SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION JLG
COMMENTS FILENAME:
SHEET 23 OF 28 SHEETS 10JGOY056R A




L

GRAPHIC SCALE
SCALE 1°= 1000’
1000

N_0011'50" W _2661.64

£ North line, South half, Sec. 3—24-27 =
NW corner, SW 1/4, Sec. 3—24-27 5 %

/4 SE 1/4 Seo 3-24-277

NE corner,

N corner, SE 1/4 sE 1/4

A
North line,
SE 1,/4, Sec

Eust \me NW 1/4 SE 1/4 SEC 3— 24 27\—_,,

Sec. 3- 24 27_“

v =-==- L

e

wile

8k

;'“"‘l'ﬂ

bt N 893716 E

1132899

SE /47
3-24-27,

o

i

2]
N
L
L
[72]
ME corner, SE 1,/4,

- SW 1/4, Sec. 9-24-27

| |

73 East line, SE 1/4, SW 1/4, Sec. 9
=18
B =
o
‘1’_8' SE corner, SW 1/4, Sec. 9-14-27
< South line, SE 1/4 Sec. 9 2427

N _8953'46" [E_2633.36"

P.0.B. 10000
LAKE BUENA VISTA
FL. 32830-1000

_N _0015'35" E_5286.81"

"Sec. 10—24-27
Seq, 3-24-27 &

\NW Garner,
SW ocarner,

- 4-West line, Sec. 10-24-27 .

< BRG
CFTOD

"REVISED 7

: ABBRE\MHON’SH

BEARING

CENTRAL FLORIDA TOURISKM
OVERSIGHT DISTRICT

DEED BOOK

DISTANCE

FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE
LICENSES BUSINESS
OFFICIAL RECORDS

FLAT BOOK

FOINT OF BEGINNING
FOINT OF COMMENCEMENT

PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR AND
MAFPER
n/7/23 RIGHT OF waY
: . 9/21 /23 _ RANGE
SE corner, Sec. 9—24-27 9/27/22f SECTION
T SW corner, Sec. 10-24-27 STATE ROAD
[+ o ra 9/W 9/22 TANGENT
5 i . o o . e TOWNSHIF
FILING AREA DATE:
WOW DISNEY OVERALL 4/5/22
PROJECT MAME SC:)&LE )
CFTOD WATER /WASTE WATER TERRITORY 17 = 1000
SURVEY TYPE DRAWIN BV
SKETCH OF DESCRIFTION JLG
COMMENTS FILEMNAME:
SHEET 24 OF 28 SHEETS 10JGO909BRS




1000

;b
] 58 ) . S
- AN |
L’!a o : Southerly R/W line of Reams Road 2
]
, %
Os" 25.00° West of
: & T and parallel to
West line,
\C SE 174, NW 1/4, L 308
- Sec. 1-24-27
. J0- 1303 >°° -
: g : ; O.F. Book 1457, Page 934
. " 1024 . . Eost line, NE 1/4 Sec. 2-24-27—"—|F nl
BhWest fine, NW 1/4, Sec. 2-24— 27\: ﬂ@ SEN\CMOTEzrf 25\/ W1/jr, SSec. %gi—g; _ LN 894347" E |-
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX WWM_:__ENW cormer, NW 1/4 w1 /4 Sec. 2- 24 2 cc:.mer, / 3 /__’ ec;r ~24- B 129719 f
hWest ine, NW 1/4 SW 1/4, Sec. 2-24-77 - th "”e MW 1 /4,
: : - “\w/ 1/4, Sec. 1

N 0007'50" W _
1325,78".

N 89°37°16" E 8 NE corner, SE 1/4, SE 1/4, Sec. 3—24-27 __
T ¥ ey
_1328.99' : NW corniyr, SW ==1“,/4-, SW 1/4,.“ .Sec. 2 24 27“

"SEE SHEET 24

"SEE SHEET 26 °

BRG BEARING
CFTOD CENTRAL FLORIDA TOURISM
OVERSIGHT DISTRICT

BEREVIATIONS

0.B DEED BOOK

DI=T DISTANCE
FAC FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE
L2 LICENSES BUSINESS

C.F. OFFICIAL RECORDS

F.B. PLAT BOOK

F.0.B. POINT OF BEGINNING
F.0.C. POINT QF COMMEMCEMENT

REVISED

FSM PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR AMND
MAPPER
R /W RIGHT OF way ST S23
RNG RANGE 9/21 /23
SEC SECTION
SR STATE ROAD 9/27/22
TANG TANGENT ‘9 /19/22
Tl TOWNSHIP it B :
FILING AREA DATE:
WDW DISNEY OVERALL 4/8/22
FROJECT NAME SCALE
P.0.B. 10000 - '
LAKE BUENA VISTA CFTOD WATER /WASTE WATER TERRITORY 17 = 1000
FL. 32830-1000 SURVEY TYPE DRAWN BY:
PHONE 407-824-4185 | SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION JLG
COMMENTS FILENANE:
SHEET 25 OF 28 SHEETS 10JGOY056R A




GRAPHIC SCALE
SCALE 1°= 1000’

1000

POL

N _89 43'47" E

L8 10301

Southerly R/W of Rearms Rcad

Eoster\\y and Maortherly line,
O.R. 1465, Page 307

MNorth line, 5. half
Sec, 1—24-27

90.00" East, NE cornar, SW 1/4,

165,00 feet South of the
North line, SE 1,/4, NW 1/4

“““““““““““ Sec, £-24-28 L1
West line, East 1,2, -
: SE 1/4, NW 1/4“”‘;
Sec. 6-74-78
West 1,/4 corner o
Sec. 6-24-28 .llf)
SW ocorner, £ 1,/2, g :
f SE 1/4, NW 1/4 al
Sec. 6—-24-723 j=
! =z

N 89'27'45° E 1997.50'

#'SE corner, NE 1/4, SW 1/4, Sec. 1-24-27~

m— , Sec. 1—-24—27 —— - - -

1207.49" LN 89 43 47" E o “North line, South holf_/-'

: .84 o O wi Sec. B—24—287- :

(D # r (D h i .
fore i n —West line, Sec. 6-24-28 .~

o N . . :
0 <O, fin ol ~— . _
N 5.00° West, NE corner, NW 1/4, i =] : o "
[l E: - . W .
W SW /4, Sec. 1-24-27 3 North line, South half, 3 PO.B -~

: PR g SE 1/4, Ses. 1—-24-27 [ AP » .
E Fagiine, & 1/4,/5W 1/ Sec, F=24-37__ b / z SW comer, W 174 5w

g ; y : . 1/4, Sec. 6—24-23

& i N 89'44'10” E  2649.93 /4 Seo. 6-24

South line, Sec. 5—-24-28

e 0 g

" SEE SHEET 11

1381 64
9°31"7" E

: SW corner, Sec 85— 24 28
SEBREVIATIONS o
BRG BEARING e
CFTOD  CENTRAL FLORIDA TOURISM ;
OVERSIGHT CISTRICT gy by
C.B DEED BOOK Coinds
DIST DISTANGE i
FAC FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE o :
LB LICENSES BUSINESS Rty
0.R. OFFICIAL RECORDS
P.B. PLAT BOOK :
P.0.B.  POINT OF BEGINNING _ ) % % p )
P.0.C.  POINT OF COMMENCEMENT . FR ;
Pst PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR AND : : REVISED
MAPPER . e By ST /23
e S gy o/21)23
SEC SECTION E . o . w{@ ’9&’&; u=‘-'9/27/22
SR. STATE ROAD S . : : }
TANG TANGENT /é T Y s 9/ 9/22'
Wi TOWNSHIP S £
FILING AREA DATE:
WOW DISNEY OVERALL 9/16/17
FROJECT NAME SCALE
P.0.B. 10000 s '
LAKE BUENA VISTA CFTOD WATER/WASTE WATER TERRITORY 1" = 1000
FL. 32830-1000 SURVEY TYPE DRAWN BY:
SKETCH OF DESCRIFTIOM JLG
COMMENTS FILENAME:
SHEET 26 OF 249 SHEETS 10JG09096R4




\s B92713" E ] !985 26

300 00

"GRAPHIC SCALE

= 220'
220 "

SCALE 1"

P.0.B.

5 802713" £ 64278

5892713 E 46418

F. O C.
“NW corner, SW 1/4,
SW 1/4, Sec. 22724728;

gsouth line, North 150.00° A+
Lote 110 and 1171 47

Less Out:
1,054 Acrest

N 0014'30" E |

252.64

I\NW corner Lot 109

West line of Lot 109
Lesz Out

4.225 Acres+ s
Munger and Campany.”
Plat Book E, Page 22 )
\150.00’ W, of
baseline S.R. 400
“ . \Wester\y R W
L line S.R. 400
i o
= 2
E\‘\"\\
’ %cf’
s
s BEREVIATIONS /
ERG BEARING
CFTOD  CEMTRAL FLORIDA TOLRISM
OVERSIGHT DISTRICT _ _
DB DEED BOOK
DIST DISTANCE 14
FAC FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE -~
L LICENSES BUSINESS
0.R. OFFICIAL RECORDS
P B PLAT BOOK
P.0.8. POINT OF BEGINNING §
P.0.C. POINT OF COMMENCEMENT
== PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR AND REVISED
, MAPPER g N/7/23
R /W RIGHT OF WAY
NG RANGE 9/21/23
SEC SECTION 9,/27/22
SR, STATE ROAD
TANG TANGENT f 9/19/22
TN TOWNSHIP
FILING AREA DATE:
WOW DISNEY OVERALL 4/5/22
FROJECT NAME SCALE
P.0.B. 10000 n_ ’
LAKE BUSNA VISTA CFTOD WATER /WASTE WATER TERRITORY 1" = 220
FL. 32830—1000 SURVEY TYPE ORAWN BY:
SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION JLG
COMMENTS FILENANE:
SHEET 27 OF 28 SHEETS 10JGOH0S6R Y




CURVE TABLE

[URVE  RADIUS DELTA _ LENGTH _ TANG. BRG
Cl 54508 B81°15°08° 772 99
Cz_ B80.00 108°43'50° 175 74
C3 425,00 23°29'59° 174 31
CZ 1500 46°20' 45" 18, 13
C5 425,00 16°33'954° lee 67
C6 2500 51°32' 25’ 22, 49 CURVE _ RADIUS DECTA  LENGIH _ TANG. BRG
C7 2500 40°55'45° 17,86 €52 2500 35°13'41” 15,37
C8 2500 46°29'32° 20, 29 C53 2500 46°18'35 20, 21
CS /500 30706 13 39, 41 054 2500 233°59' 13 [4.82 S 21° 14 147 |
CI0 4500 995455 78 47 CS5 1008 34 22°05'51" 736,00 S /9°17° 36" E
CI1  o50.00  55°317 16" 242, 26 €56 o050. 92 14°29'0& 240, 40
Cle 125 00  59°41'01° 130,21 05/ ©S13.33  13°13 427 118.53
CI3 676,49  ©09°43'07° 35089 N 50°17°44° E | €S8 1109.03 07°17° 217 141.09
Cl4  395.33  05°53 41°  68.97 N 79°13 56’ £ | (o8 1500  52°09 22 13.65
CI5  13/.63 14°21'49" 34,50 C59 1396, 50  06°953° 10" 167.84 N 07°09° 56" E
CI6 344 33  04°15 117 25 56 S 86'02 20° E | C60 180% 86 3723 06’ 1180.92 S 4229 42" W
Cl/ 132,00 26°04 01" 60,05 Col 219183  Je"eg’ 09 124e. 10
Cle 184,37 31°44'00° 102 11 S 49°44’21° E | C62 11402, 16 00°29 43 98,56 S 65°33 17° E
Cl3  679.36 08°51'48" 105 09 C63 900,00 02°31'40° 33,70
Ce0__43/.18  18°37' 0/° 142 06 Co4 67500 45°40° 477538, 15
C2l 39525 18°13 39’ 125 /4 CeS 825 00 98°34' 08" 1415. 29
Co2  645.09  03°21'33  37.80 C66  S00.84 op 5321”7 200.08
C23  223.65  55°02' 33’ 230,47 Ce/ &ll.16  15°01' 18" 202.90
C24 2500 64°33'48°  28.17 S 49°58°0° E | (68 650.84 22°53 217 260.00
€25 2500  o5° 1416’ (1.0t C6S 675 00  98°34' 08 1161. 24
C2c 1010.00 0/°58' 42° 140.64 S [1°48°22° W | C/0 825 00 45°40°4/  €5/. /4
C27 2500 8/ 13'52° 38,06 N 03°49°41° £ | C/1 2500 16°36°26"  7.25
Ce8  eel.3/ 23°07 35 112 94 C/z 2500 51"ed 117 2e. 43
Ceg 132 /6 48" 16’12’ 111,89 C/3 __ 50.00 106°48'50° 93,21 N 80°45 36" W
C30 234 18  14°51'36" 60,74 N 64'15 37° W | C74 436,00 15°56'47" 121,35 S 5 le 2l’ W
C31 2500 115°40°49° 50,48 s 17°50°29° £ | C/5 514,00 20°05 00" 180,17
C32 2500 54°17'13° 23 69 C76 31500  35°55'53 197,54
£33 25.00 79°16'52° 34,59 C77 381. 00 34°07 58 226.97
C34 2500 41°16'24" 18 01 C78  384.88 34°00' 28 028, 44
C35 150550 3/°08'4e’ 9/6.05 S 03'50°20° £ | C/9 185 00 35°39' 4% 115.15
£36 2500 3714 40" 16,25 €80 47.00 130°32'0&’ 107.08
C3/ 2500 46'40029 20,37 Ce8l  50.00 83°36'01”  72.95
C38 2500 58°38' 4’ 25 59 C82  188.00 2/°45 4y 91.10
C35 2500 84°46'10° 36,99 C83 2204 05 07°27' 377 286,93 N 259°38' 58 W
C20 2500 58°17° 03 25 43 Cg4  //0.43 095915 134,30 N 39°00°55° W
C41 7.86  Jo'e0' 370 10.75 N 28°56'03 W | C85 1010,00 01°59' 18" 3505 S 05°40°55° E
C42 1964 36°52'37° Lo 64 C86 934,00 01°05'30° 17,79
C43 3.95  74°25°35° 513 C8/ 215853  24°05'38" 90/, /0
CZ4 1080, 42 c0°el’ 16’ 383.82 N 48°06'54° W | £88 802 00 65° 19 497 914, 46
C45 /62, 70 0g8* 32" 54 118 23 S 63798 49° W Cgg 2750, 0% 04° 43" 07" 226, 49 S 331629 B
CZ6  160.82  19°16'01° _ 54.08 C90  546. 86 46°21' 00 442. 39
CZ47 159.35  36° 15 00" 100,82 C91  60.00 118°45 23 124. 36 S 46°06' 36" W
C48  158.03  01°54' 44" &0, 44
C40 5289 104'26'29°  96.41 S /527 00° W
€S0 1125 00 87°57 29" 548,95
C51 492,00 _26°59' 13° 231, /4
TANGENT TABLE
CINEH _ BEARING DIST. [INE#  BEARING DIST. [INEE _ BEARING DIST
L1 N B89°3850" L 663.64 | L10 N 85°59 29" E 134, 58 | 19 S 01°59° 29" E 106, 28
Lz N 897117347 £ 148 62 | L11 S 43°56'36” W91, 06 | L20 S 24° 42’ 46”7 W 241, 59
L3 N 89° 21’ 03" E 191,58 | Lle S 64°40° 377 W 105, 25 | Lol S 36°55 507 W 126, 64
L4 S 00°13759" W 22l 0/ | L13 S 40°45° 30" W 117, 42 | Lee S 24°03°44° W71, 01
LS S 43740°59” E 16,92 | Ll4 S 13°26' 04" W 97,33 | L3 S 64°59 307 W_ 91, 68
L6 S 34°39741” £ 8,13 | LI5S S 42°14'20° W 133,97 | Le4 N 68°30° 567 W 131, 3/
L7 S e5' 16740 £ 86./9 | Lle S 68°59 11° W _89. /1 | L2s N 34°5/ 287 W 145, 43
L8 S £8°5/ 56" £ 106.03 | L17 S 28°50 44" W_77.77 | Loé N _10°44° 047 W 144. 09
L3 S 58°00'53"” E 87.73 | L18 S 14°50°47° W_88.32 | o7 N 10°34 18”7 E 1209. 55
CONTINUED ON SHEET 29
FILING AREA DATE:
WDW DISNEY OVERALL 4/5/22
o0, 10000 FROJECT MAME SCALE
PO Tomen CFTOD WATER/WASTE WATER TERRITORY
FL. 32830—1000 SURVEY TYFE DRAWN BEY:
PHONE 407-524-4185 | SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION LG
COMMENTS FILENAME:
SHEET 28 OF 28 SHEETS 10JG09096R 4




TANGENT TAELE
CONTIMUED FROM SHEET 283

LINE# BEARTNG DIST. LINE# BEARTING DIST.
L2g N 44°03° 35" E 129 67 | L102 N 87°15 41" W 130 57
Lz39 M 867357327 E 100 03 | L103 M 63721 34" W 33 90 | LIMNE#H BEARING DIST, L IMEH EEARTNG DIST,
L30 N 627487187 E 100,08 | L104 N 81708 527 W 154 09 | L176 N 40°40°48" W 82, .81 | L249 N 29°59" 267 E 8, 68
L31 N 38°16° 147 E 93 99 | L10S N 39°33°00" W 38 53 | L177 N 90700 00" W 73,87 | L2530 W 13°42°5%" E 39 82
L32 N 15°017477 B 86 03 | L106 N 28°54" 147 W 86 /79 | L1/8 N 00" 16" 44" 0.50 | L25l N 10°06" 24" £ 32 03
L33 M 147307327 W 104 94 | L107 M 28730 437 W 101, 63 | L179 M B9TS/ 3 E 670,11 | Lese M 01°43° 31" W 29 22
L34 N 037067237 W 111.09 | L108 MW 32736467 W 77 00 | L1380 S 00708 32" E 668,06 | L253 N O05°37739" W 26 82
L35 N 07°32°42" E 68 01 | L109 N 39°30°36" W 98 30 | L181 S 89°55°30" E 671,45 | L2354 M 12°01°353" W 42 36
L36 N 15°147137 W 80 .67 | L110 N 02°15°567 W 56 50 | L1382 S 00° 15277 B 669,41 | Le55 N 21°06" 437 W /.72
L37 M 87° 127 48" W 40 11 L111 M 39°35° 597 W 135 27 | L1853 S 0044 42" E 656, 38 | L25e M 36°350° 10" W 37,65
L38 S /7407577 W 84 88 | L1112 N 85°04° 00" W &7 65 | L184 S 89°051°01" E 335, 66 | L257 N 47°37° 33" W 25 00
L339 S /47447477 W66 /9 | L1113 M 38°23 30" W 64 62 | L1850 5 00°40° 49" F 606, 31 | L2058 M 56" 19" 26" W 44 83
L40 S 35'e0'27 W 90,33 | L114 N 64167047 W 16 33 | L186 S 00°29°10" E 655,63 | Le5% N 49°30°53" W 55 06
L41 S 22798713 W 87 94 | L1115 N 0537207 W 20 54 | L187 N 89720 56" E 666,99 | L2&0 W 99°47 57" W 3. 89
L42 S 20°05 22" W 168 18 | L1116 N 44°31"287 W 62 56 | L1883 N O0° 2l ee” W 652, 39 | Leel N 72°21"36" W 36,00
L43 5 657337237 W 108 46 | L117 S 23°42° 547 W 95 95| L1390 S 79752 03 W 95, 47 | Lees M B2°08" 10" W 63 71
L44 M /902" 16" W 146 86 | L118 M 7130 56" W 65 99 | L191 M 69759 00" W 311.61 | L2263 s 89°42° 01" W 91,60
L45 S 44°41°24” W 85 24 | L119 N 67°43°46" W 71 42 | L1%92 S 23°29°47" W 304, 91 | L2s4 M 80°08" 53" W 56,11
L46 s 667087597 W 80 82 | L120 M 47709 127 W 123 61 | L193 S 08°58 26" E S03, 41 | L2es M 89° 26" 007 W 8. 09
L47 M 89703007 W 96 88 | Lizl M 2809 10" W 67 04 | L1394 N 00°00" 00" E 1863, 29 | Leee S 81°14 14" W 46, 34
L48 S 847187 13" W 51 79 | Llge M 30°07° 52" E 66 18 | L1935 N 30700 00" W 607,96 | L2e7 S 78°42°2%" W 40, 49
L43 S5 /706 53 W o116 91 L123 M 41727 39" E 82 62 | L1196 M 00°00° 00" B 86 60 | L2&E S 7045027 W63 74
La0 5 70714007 W 84 26 | Li24 M 28703 16" E 61 93| L1397 M o000 00" W 67,60 | L2E9 S 79009437 W 47, 65
Lol N 637527487 W 163 26 | L125 N 21°03°09" W 47 93 | L198 S 97706840 E 167,71 | L2Y0 S 72748447 W 44, 03
Lae N 71°49°57" W 91 32 | L1z26 N 177137117 W 99 26 | L199 S 30700 00" E 180,00 | Le7l S 63°14°34" W 42 60
L3 M 56°38748° W 106 /2 | L127 M 00°32° 577 B 48 45 | Le200 S 0e*15°02" B 54,63 | L2/2 5 9/7°48° 39" W 28,70
LS4 M 3738377 W 96 72 | L1128 M 12°21" 10" E 151, 79 | L=201 S 3070000 E 408,17 | L273 S 64°21° 007 W 20, 44
L35 N £69°48°38" W 85 22 | L129 N 23°46° 35" E 109 94 | L202 $ 00°00° 00" E 162,89 | Lav4 S &67°06"48" W 29 21
L36 M 85715714 W 95 /2 | L130 M 33728517 E 91 52 | L203 M 8950 42 W 360,99 | L2/s s 8328207 W 29 99
LS7 N 767267 117 W 104 56 | L131 M 17700742 E 45 16 | L204 N 00°13°99" W 29 01 | LeVe S 83°04° 31" W 27, 06
LS8 S 2873557147 W 152 43 | L132 M 34736 26" W 27 03 | L2003 N 14°42°28" W 114 62 | L2777 S 847197197 W 42 81
Lo3 S5 137457447 B 47 73 | L1353 M 26729 237 W 104 81 | L=20e M 06537497 W 123, 37 | L2/s 5 B9S2’ 107 W 174 16
[=10] 5 28°037 11" B 953 35 | L134 S 48°40° 547 W 30 14 ) L=207 M 09T 42 377 E 104,21 | L2/e W 00°00° 19" B 313, 89
Lel S 317377007 W 165 37 | L135 S 38°34'051" E 13 88 | L208 N 61706748 E 353,88 | L280 N 0D°00" 19" E 498, 35
L&e S 51°01-41" E 83 54 | L136 S 51°58°307 W 145 54 | L209 N 71°34°02" E 17,56 | L2l N 0D°00" 31" E 833 26
Le3 S 359793730 B 246 14 | L1337 W 37757709 W 1s 70| L210 M o18°25°51" W 18,21 | Lege W 3/7°06" 36" W 630, 17
L4 S 55°377 13" E 316 45 | L138 M 37°56° 187 W 17 87 | L2l M o31747° 40" W 44,69 | L2283 M 88°43° 15" W 555, 85
[=3] S 687447467 E 336 44 | L139 M 30754 217 W 193 /9 | L2212 S 74709 08" W 308 68 | LZg4 s 89°48° 06" W 125, 95
L6566 5 03°97740" W 60 74 | L140 5 00"05° 55" W 98 /7 Lels 5 04704107 W 67,69 | L2ED 5 B9°49° 36" W 483, 70
Le7 N 827187147 W 71 09 | L141 S 72°04°54" W 26 78 | L2l4 N B9°59°98" W 83,84 | Lese W 40° 17" 32" W 323, 52
LES N 51°44°44" W 65 78 | L1428 N 00°06" 31" W 54 31 | L2153 N 76719721 E 28 14 | L2887 N 32°21"38" W 271, 63
L&Y N 50°24"25%7 W 90 39 | L143 N 7443742 W 453 41 | L2l6 5 89722477 b 9. c4 | Less N 347307317 W 120, /6
L70 S 48° 32746 W 80 93 | L144 S 44047 417 W 145 43 | L2l Mo F5T08 23" B 42, 15 | L2ss M 46°26° 377 W 108, 80
L71 S 22557387 W 113 12 | L145 S 45°05'06" E 18 68 | L2218 N 66°44°45" £ 45,92 | L2390 S 89°497 14" W 28 71
L7e S 277197167 E 55 45 | L146 S 03°14°02" W 84 66 | L2219 N 98° 10756 E 7,13 | L2gl S 00°10°31" E 11,26
L73 S 187407967 W 199 79 | L147 S 09712738 E 28 39 | Leeo M 40°00° 00" E g, 68 | Le9e 5 89749297 W B8 35
L74 S 107487307 W 160 42 | L148 S 337100077 E 163 59 | Le2l N 28 2l 12" E 21,30 | L2993 S 04°02°58" E 4, 66
L79 N 69°28"077 E 122 36 | L149 N §6°26’ 26" E 126 87 | L2222 N 19°11°06” B 7097 | Leg4 S 86709708 W 22 890
L/& M /62723 B V6 99 | L1900 M /6715 46" E 63 839 | Le223 M 0ST44° 49" F 22, 07 | L2ss M 03" 54" 547 W 6 14
L77 S 78711738 E 8568 | L151 S 647367177 E 118 17 | L2ed N 09°37°03" E 18.85 | L2296 S 89749297 W 173 97
L78 N 83°24° 11" W 42 54 | L152 S 52736740 E 63 05 | L22s N 2871859 E 25 32 | Le97 N 66°04" 537 W 548, 81
L/9 S e24°e3° 32" B 5406 | L1533 S 45°1e" 16" E 127, .88 | Leeb N 3973324 £ 18, 596 | L2398 N 89°39°31" E 558 27
[i=10] S 18°04°39" £ /8 70 | L1924 T 10°0=° 35" E 93 01 | Le2/ M oSlt4s 12" B 17,01 | L2s9 M 00147577 E 100, 00
L81 N 82°0%9° 40" W 26 .47 | L155 S 36°16°00" W 28 53 | L2e8 N 53°20°03" E 1293 | L300 N 89°43° 25" E 671. 30
Lge = 267437017 W 107 99 | L1326 s 20723 46" W 184 90 | LE229 M e/ 2306 E 18,89 | L3001 M 23°57°49" E 128 82
L53 S 13753713 W 84 71 | L157 S 25705407 W 31 .33 | Le30 M 61731734 £ 16,11 | L302 N 00°07" 43" W 400, 13
L84 S 2006377 W 86 21 | LI5S S 535°12'27" W 19 Y6 | Le3l N 82°31"20" E 16,65 | L303 MW 89°58" 50" E 341,61
L85 S eet4e 17 W90 27 | L1159 S 18742597 W 22 23 | L23e S 8472704 £ 14 79 | L304 S 00019 24" £ 603, /2
L8& 5 487337387 W 93 96 | L1e0 5 80724 32" E 34 V6 | L233 5 667077307 B 25 25 | L3032 M 001z 21" W 598, 76
LB87 S 517487057 W 358 47 | L16] S 88°11"54" E 77 05 | L234 S 7000108 E 2l .22 | L306 N 89°56" 46" E 100, 00
LE88 S 70°41°52" W 98 3% | L162 S 89°29°03" E 140 11 | L2335 S 76°11740% E 28,29 | L307 S 0e2°04 12" E 523, 43
L3839 S 7/9°48°307 W 82 /0 | L163 S 89°29°03" E 433 68 | L236 s 817047457 £ 15,99 | L308 N 89°43740" £ 52 00
[=]0] W g2*ez 12" W 18 57 | Lle4 M 00°0D° 00" E 131 18 | L237 5 637157147 E 32 58 | L309 S 001z 21" E 49 00
L91 S 99°48712" W 61 99 | L16D N 45°00° 00" W 71 68 | L238 S 71739523 E 4. 28 | L310 N 89°43° 41" E 229 00
Loz S 237487427 W 31 41 L1&6 M 00°00 00" E £33 08 | LE239 5 83745157 E 20,77 | L3111 s 00t lzr2s” B 26, 23
L33 S 21°34°58" FE 112 96 | L167 N 89759 007 W 445 76 | L240 N 8e6°06" 18" E 21.64 | L3122 S 00°05° 187 E 420, 00
L94 S 23°04°56" E 80 36 | LI6S N 0027 46" E 673 19 | L241 S 7574909 E 17,31 | L313 S 007327477 W15, 00
L95 S 06°58719" B 51,79 | L169 S 89°58 177 E 398 81 | L242 S 87755716 B 10,48 | L314 S 04°05 327 B 150, 49
L9& S 470187547 W 37 10 | L1770 M 00°00D° 00" E 7353 74 | L243 M F2t43 50" B 28, 75 | L3115 W 00°32' 477 B 150, 00
L37 S 03748745 £ 24 .29 | L171 N 90700 007 W 362 43 | 244 N 60742/21" B 36, 44
L98 S 7352807 W 70 1% | Live N 05°16"59" W 106 23 | L245 N 77°16°53" E 19, 62
L399 N 637157307 W &3 09 | L1/3 N 26733547 W 135 35 | L246 M 68°37 24" 7. 52
L100 S 41°007 06" E 193 33 | L174 M 47° 32 447 E 146 63 | L247 M 57708 13" E 21,62
L10]1 S 4grogrsdr W o100 00 | L1175 Llrgg 2ar B o4 04 | L2438 N 48" 30 29 b L.A0
' FILING AREA DATE:
WOW DISNEY OVERALL 4/5/22
PROJECT NAME SCALE
P.0O.B. 10000
FoB ooa CFTOD WATER/WASTE WATER TERRITORY
FL 32830—1000 SURVEY TYPE DRAWN BY:
PHONE 407-824-4185 | SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION JLG
COMMENTS FILENAME:
SHEET 29 OF 29 SHEETS 10J609096R4




Central Florida Tourism Oversight District

Board of Supervisors

Agenda Iltem 6.3

Pagelof1l

Meeting Date

January 24, 2024

Agenda Item Name

Proclamation for American Cancer Society

Requested Action

Approval of Proclamation for American Cancer Society

Staff Report

Additional Analysis

None

Fiscal Impact Summary

None

Exhibits Attached

1. Proclamation for American Cancer Society Relay for life




Toclamation

WHEREAS, the American Cancer Society is the nationwide, community-based,
voluntary health organization dedicated to eliminating cancer as a major health problem
by preventing cancer, saving lives, and diminishing suffering from cancer through
research, education, advocacy and service; and

WHEREAS, the lives of many of the citizens of Central Florida have been
touched by cancer and thus they have been drawn to support the continuing research that
will find a cure for the disease; and

WHEREAS, Relay for Life is a community-wide event that generates support
for families who have suffered the death of a loved one because of cancer; and

WHEREAS, the Survivors’ Walk during the Relay for Life event celebrates with
those who are living with cancer and offers them hope for continued health; and

WHEREAS, the Luminaria Ceremony honors the memory of loved ones who
have died of cancer as well as those who are cancer survivors.

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Martin Garcia as Chairman of and on behalf of the
Board of Supervisors of the Central Florida Tourism Oversight District do hereby
proclaim our support for the Relay for Life event held on January 6™, 2024 and desire
that the citizens of Central Florida support this event with great enthusiasm so that a
cure for cancer can be found for Everyone, Everywhere.

This Proclamation shall be set forth in full upon the minutes of this meeting and
a certified copy of the same be presented to the American Cancer Society from the Board

of Supervisors of the Central Florida Tourism Oversight District.

ADOPTED this 24th day of January 2024.

By:

Martin Garcia, Chair of the Board of Supervisors

ATTEST:

Glenton Gilzean, Jr., District Administrator



Central Florida Tourism Oversight District
Board of Supervisors

Agenda Item 7.2

Page 1lof1

Meeting Date

January 24, 2024

Agenda Iltem Name

Semi-Annual Report of Easements

Requested Action

Informational Item Only

Staff Report

The Semi-Annual Report of Easements executed by the District Administrator as required
by Resolution No. 565 for the period of August — December 2023. A copy of the itemized
log and easements are provided.

Additional Analysis

Fiscal Impact Summary

N/A

Exhibits Attached

Easement Log and Easements




EASEMENTS EXECUTED AND DELIVERED BY THE DISTRICT ADMINISTRATOR OR

DEPUTY DISTRICT ADMINISTRATOR

AS AUTHORIZED BY RESOLUTION NUMBER 565

LOG #42 — August through December 2023

DATE

BY AND BETWEEN

TYPE OF EASEMENT

EASEMENT FOR:

8/25/2023

From Walt Disney Parks
and Resorts U.S., Inc. to
CFTOD

Non-Exclusive Temporary
Easement Agreement

TCE to CFTOD for Contractor parking and laydown near S-
101.

For the purpose of: (i) performing incidental work related to
the repair of canal erosion, including, but not limited to,
contractor parking and laydown, tree trimming and
landscape removal/reinstallment to allow equipment access
to the canal and water control structure and temporary sign
removal/reinstallation. = Restoration of any accidental
damage, as documented from pre-construction photographs,
due to Contractor’s use of Easement Area (the “Work”);
and, in connection therewith (ii) access to and from the
Easement Area, over and through adjacent public roads,
alleys, sidewalks and other designated portions of the
Property as Grantor may designate from time to time.

12/4/2023

From Walt Disney Parks
and Resorts U.S., Inc. to
CFTOD

Non-Exclusive Temporary
Easement Agreement

TCE to CFTOD for Landscaping at the Epcot Resorts Blvd
West Bridge.

For the purpose of: (i) performing incidental work related to
the installation and repair irrigation systems and landscaping
replacement, including, but not limited to, equipment access
for contractor parking and laydown (the “Work™); and, in




DATE

BY AND BETWEEN

TYPE OF EASEMENT

EASEMENT FOR:

connection therewith (ii) access to and from the Easement
Area, over and through adjacent public roads, alleys,
sidewalks and other designated portions of the Property as
Grantor may designate from time to time.




NON-EXCLUSIVE TEMPORARY EASEMENT AGREEMENT

THIS NON-EXCLUSIVE TEMPORARY EASEMENT AGREEMENT (“Temporary Easement
Agreement”) is made as of the Effective Date (as hereinafter defined) by and between WALT DISNEY PARKS
AND RESORTS U.S,, INC., a Florida corporation, whose mailing address is 1375 Buena Vista Drive, Lake Buena
Vista, Florida 32830, Attention: Legal Department — Real Estate (“Grantor”), and the CENTRAL FLORIDA
TOURISM OVERSIGHT DISTRICT fk.a. Reedy Creek Improvement District, a public corporation and
public body corporate and politic of the State of Florida, whose mailing address is Post Office Box 10170, Lake
Buena Vista, Florida 32830-0170 (“Grantee”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Grantor is the fee owner of certain real property located in Orange County, Florida (the
“Property”); and

WHEREAS, Grantee desires to obtain a non-exclusive easement on, over, under and across the portion or
portions of the Property more particularly described on Exhibit “A” attached hereto and made a part hereof (the
“Easement Area”), for the purpose of: (i) performing incidental work related to the repair of canal erosion,
including, but not limited to, contactor parking and laydown, tree trimming and landscape removal/replacement to
allow equipment access to the canal and water control structure, and temporary sign removal/reinstallation.
Restoration of any accidental damage, as documented from pre-construction photographs, due to Contractor’s use of
Easement Area (the “Work™); and, in connection therewith (ii) access to and from the Easement Area, over and
through adjacent public roads, alleys, sidewalks and other designated portions of the Property as Grantor may
designate from time to time (as hereinafter provided) (items (i) and (ii) hereinabove are sometimes referred to as the
“permitted use”); and

WHEREAS, Grantor agrees to grant to Grantee this non-exclusive temporary easement on, over, under and
across the portions of the Easement Area where the Work is located, subject to the terms and conditions set forth
below.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises, the mutual agreement of the parties
hereto, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged,
the parties hereby agree as follows:

1. Recitations. Each party represents to the other party hereto that the above recitations, as they
relate to it, are true and correct.

2. Grant and Use of Easement. Grantor grants to Grantee a non-exclusive temporary easement (this
“Easement”) on, over, under and across the Easement Area. This Easement is subject and subordinate to the terms,
conditions, restrictions, and limitations set forth herein and in other recorded and unrecorded easements,
reservations, rights-of-way, licenses, restrictions, conditions, and limitations affecting the Easement Area and the
Property. This Easement is also subject and subordinate to the rights of Orange County, Florida and to the rights, if
any, of any other governmental or quasi-governmental authorities to locate, construct, maintain, improve and replace
roadways and roadway related improvements and utilities over, through, upon and/or across the Easement Area.
This Easement shall be used by Grantee (and its employees, contractors and agents) for the permitted use of the
Easement Area and for no other purpose whatsoever. Grantee’s rights in connection therewith shall include the right
to maintain temporary construction facilities on the Easement Area. Grantor reserves the right to identify specific
routes and other means of vehicular and pedestrian ingress and egress (in addition to existing public roads, alleys
and sidewalks) to and from the Easement Area across the balance of the Property. Thereafter, only such routes and
other means of vehicular and pedestrian access designated by Grantor shall be used by Grantee. This Easement shall
terminate on March 31 , 2024 (the “Termination Date”). This Temporary Easement Agreement and this Easement
granted hereby shall automatically terminate and shall be of no further force and effect on the Termination Date.
This Temporary Easement Agreement shall not be recorded in the public records, and, notwithstanding the
foregoing, this Temporary Easement Agreement shall automatically terminate if it is recorded in the public records.

Notwithstanding any provision in this Temporary Easement Agreement to the contrary, Grantee
acknowledges that Grantee’s access to the Easement Area and/or for ingress and egress across the Property is

1



subject at all times to the strict compliance by Grantee, its employees, contractors, subcontractors, representatives,
and agents, with all security provisions, rules and regulations of Grantor which may be in effect from time to time.

3. Limitation of Rights. This Temporary Easement Agreement creates a non-exclusive temporary
Easement, and Grantee does not and shall not (at any time) claim any interest or estate of any kind or extent
whatsoever in the Easement Area by virtue of this Easement or Grantee’s use of the Easement Area pursuant hereto.
Furthermore, except as provided in and subject to Paragraph 5(d), hereinbelow, no new facilities shall be constructed
on the Easement Area without the prior written consent of Grantor, which may be withheld in Grantor’s sole and
absolute discretion.

4. Grantor’s Reservation of Rights. Subject to the rights created herein, Grantor expressly reserves
(to itself, its successors and assigns) the right to use, or to grant to others the right to use by virtue of additional
licenses, rights-of-way, reservations or easements, any and all portions of the area upon, above or under the
Easement Area and the Property (in Grantor’s sole discretion) for any purpose whatsoever not inconsistent with the
rights herein granted, including, but not limited to, the right of ingress and egress over and across the Easement Area
onto any adjacent or contiguous property; provided, such right does not materially and adversely interfere with
Grantee’s permitted use of the Easement Area pursuant to the terms hereof. Grantor also reserves the right, but not
the obligation, to do all or any of the following without Grantee’s consent:

a) to construct (or allows others to construct) improvements; landscape; provide for drainage;
construct paved roads, bridges, tunnels, driveways, parking areas, or any other improvements; and install utility
lines, equipment and cables upon, above or under the Easement Area, so long as such use does not materially and
adversely interfere with the purpose for which this Easement is granted;

b) to enter upon the Easement Area from time to time, in order to repair, maintain, repave,
construct on, or complete other activities on the Easement Area or the Property. Grantor shall cooperate with
Grantee in minimizing any unreasonable interference with Grantee’s use of the Easement Area;

c) to enter upon the Easement Area at any time to inspect the operation, sanitation, safety,
maintenance, and use thereof, and to perform any repair or maintenance of the Easement Area, and to enter upon the
Easement Area at any time to remedy any condition thereof in the event of an emergency. Grantor shall not assume
any responsibility for the performance of any of Grantee’s obligations hereunder, or any liability arising from the
improper performance thereof;

d) relocate, alter or modify, or cause Grantee to relocate, alter or modify, the location of all or
any portion of the Work to another location either within or outside of the Easement Area, from time to time, in
Grantor’s sole discretion, at Grantor’s sole cost and expense. In the event of any such relocation, alteration or
modification, Grantee shall, at Grantor’s option, either: (i) execute a release of the rights granted hereunder with
respect to the portion of the Easement Area to be vacated and enter into a new agreement in substantially the same
form as this Temporary Easement Agreement to cover the new easement area(s), in which event, this Easement shall
be considered canceled as to the portion vacated by such relocation and all rights and obligations of Grantee
contained herein with respect to the Easement Area shall be described in such subsequent agreement; or (ii) execute
an amendment to this Temporary Easement Agreement amending the description of the Easement Area to reflect the
designated location where the Work is to be relocated. Grantee (at Grantor’s cost) shall cooperate with Grantor in
taking all steps necessary or appropriate to accomplish the release of designated portions of the Easement Area from
the effect of this Temporary Easement Agreement and the relocation, alteration or modification of the Easement
Area or the Work. If any or all of the Easement Area or the Work is to be relocated, altered, or modified, Grantee
shall, upon Grantor’s request (and at Grantor’s sole cost and expense) promptly remove the Work, restore the
Easement Area to the same condition existing at the time of the execution of this Temporary Easement Agreement,
and commence use of the new location designated by Grantor; and

e) plat, replat or dedicate the Easement Area to the public.

5. Covenants of Grantee. Grantee, for itself, its permitted successors, assigns, grantees, and
invitees, covenants and agrees it shall:

a) not interfere with or prevent the following: (i) the development, use and maintenance by
Grantor of the Easement Area, the Property, or Grantor’s adjacent properties, if any; (ii) the use of any portion of the
Easement Area by the general public, if any portion of the Easement Area has been or is hereafter dedicated to the

general public; and (iii) any development, construction, improvement, or other activity or use by Grantor now or in
TCE (No Permanent) WDPR to CFTOD for §-101 Erosion Repairs_sd



the future existing on or about the Easement Area and the Property, so long as such use does not materially and
adversely interfere with Grantee’s permitted use of the Easement Area;

b) not interfere with or disturb any threatened or endangered plant or animal life on or under the
Easement ‘Area or the Property;

¢) not interfere with any existing license, easement, reservation, or right-of-way upon, above,
over, through, under, or across the Easement Area;

d) not interfere with any hereafter granted license, easement, reservation or right-of-way upon,
above, over, through, under, or across the Easement Area so long as such license, easement, reservation or right-of-
way does not materially and adversely interfere with Grantee’s permitted use of the Easement Area;

€) comply at all times and in all respects with all present and future local, municipal, county,
state, and federal environmental and all other applicable laws, statutes, governmental constitutions, ordinances,
codes, rules, regulations, resolutions, requirements, standards, applications, and directives, as well as all decisions,
judgments, writs, injunctions, orders, decrees or demands of courts, administrative bodies and other authorities
construing any of the foregoing (collectively, the “Laws”), and Grantee shall obtain, maintain and comply with all
applicable permits in connection with Grantee’s use of the Easement Area. Grantee shall not, by any act or omission,
render the Grantor liable for any violation thereof. Grantee shall promptly deliver to Grantor true and accurate
copies of all applicable permits upon issuance and shall pay all costs and expenses incurred with respect to
compliance with this subparagraph;

f) operate, maintain, replace, and repair the Work, at its sole cost and expense, and in
compliance with all applicable Laws and permits, in an expeditious and good and workmanlike manner, and
maintain the appearance of all above-ground facilities, if any, if permitted hereunder by Grantor (and of the
Easement Area, if requested by Grantor) in reasonably the same condition as existed upon completion of their initial
installation;

g) not cause or give permission for any hazardous waste, toxic substances or related materials as
defined by any Laws (collectively, “Hazardous Materials”) to be used, placed, misused, or disposed of upon,
above or under, or transported to or from the Easement Area or the Property (“Hazardous Materials Activities™).
Grantor shall not be liable to Grantee for any Hazardous Materials Activities caused by Grantee, its employees,
agents, contractors, invitees, successors, or assigns. Grantee shall be liable to Grantor for any and all Hazardous
Materials Activities and any and all hazardous spills, fires, or other environmental hazard on the Easement Area or
the Property caused by Grantee, its employees, agents or contractors, or in any way resulting from Grantee’s
construction, repair, replacement, maintenance, or operation of the Work;

h) after completion of any repair or replacement work with respect to the permitted use of the
Easement Area (or any construction or installation work for relocated facilities or new facilities, if any, consented to
by Grantor, which consent Grantor may grant or withhold in its sole discretion), at its sole cost and expense and in a
safe, good and workmanlike manner, remove any temporary improvements and equipment placed on the Easement
Area, and restore both the ground surface of the Easement Area and any grass, irrigation lines and equipment, and
landscaping in or on the Easement Area, to the original contour, grade and condition which existed immediately
prior to the commencement of any work; and

i) not permit any lien to be filed against the Easement Area or the Property for any labor or
materials in connection with work of any character performed or claimed to have been performed on the Easement
Area or the Property at the direction or sufferance of Grantee. If any such lien is filed against the Easement Area or
the Property, Grantee shall have the obligation to remove or otherwise cancel or discharge the same immediately.
Grantor shall have the right (but not the obligation) to cause such lien to be released. Grantee shall pay on demand
all of Grantor’s costs in connection therewith, together with interest thereon at the interest rate set forth in Paragraph
7, hereof, accruing from and after the date of such expenditure until Grantor’s receipt of full payment therefor:

6. Breach by Grantee. If Grantee breaches any provision in this Temporary Easement Agreement
and fails to cure any such breach within fifteen (15) days after written notice thereof is given by Grantor, in addition
to any other right or remedy available to Grantor at law or in equity, Grantor shall have the right, but not the
obligation, to cure any such breach. Grantee agrees to reimburse Grantor for the cost thereof upon demand, together
with interest accruing thercon at an annual rate of interest equal to the lesser of: (i) four percent (4%) above the

prime rate of interest announced by SunTrust Bank, Central Florida, N.A.; or (ii) the highest rate of interest
TCE (No Permanent) WDPR to CFTOD for S-101 Erosion Repairs_sd



allowable by law, from and after the date of Grantor’s expenditure thereof, until Grantor’s receipt of full payment
therefor.

7. Condition of Easement Area; Indemnity.

a) Grantee acknowledges that it (i) has physically inspected the Easement Area; and (ii) accepts
the Easement Area “AS IS” and “WHERE IS with full knowledge of the condition thereof and subject to all the
terms, conditions, restrictions, and limitations applicable thereto. Grantee, for and on behalf of itself and its
successors, assigns, employees, contractors, agents, grantees, representatives, and invitees, assumes sole and entire
responsibility for any and all loss of life, injury to persons or damage to property (wherever such property may be
located) sustained from the activities, operations or use of the Easement Area (or use of the portions of the Property
made available for ingress and egress) by Grantee, its successors, assigns, employees, contractors, agents, grantees,
representatives, and invitees. Grantee (for itself, its successors, assigns, employees, contractors, agents, grantees,
representatives, and invitees and for those claiming by, through or under any of them) shall, to the extent allowed by
law, hereby release, indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Grantor from and against all claims, liabilities, suits,
judgments, liens, damages, penalties, fines, interest, costs, and expenses (including without limitation, those relating
to injuries to persons (including, without limitation, loss of life) or for damage, destruction or theft of property),
including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees and litigation costs incurred by or asserted against the
Grantor in connection therewith, that arise from or relate, directly or indirectly, to: (i) operations on, or the use of,
the Easement. Area or the Property by Grantee (its successors, assigns, employees, contractors, agents, grantees,
representatives, and invitees, and all of their officers, directors, employees, representatives and agents); (ii)
Hazardous Materials Activities, spills or fire caused by Grantee, its successors, assigns, employees, contractors,
agents, grantees, representatives, and invitees, on, over, under, through or across the Easement Area or the Property;
(iii) any activity, work or act committed, omitted, permitted, or suffered by Grantee (its successors, assigns,
employees, contractors, agents, grantees and invitees and any of their officers, directors, employees, representatives,
and agents) or caused, in whole or in part, on or about the Fasement Area or the Property; (iv) the negligent or
willful acts or omissions of Grantee (its successors, assigns, employees, contractors, agents, grantees,
representatives, and invitees); (v) Grantee’s failure to perform any obligations imposed hereunder, including,
without limitation, the failure of any of Grantee’s successors, assigns, employees, contractors, agents, grantees,
representatives, and invitees to so perform; (vi) the use, operation, maintenance, or repair of the Easement Area by
Grantee, its successors, assigns, employees, contractors, agents, grantees, representatives, and invitees; (vii) liens by
third parties arising out of Grantee’s acts or omissions, or out of the acts or omissions of Grantee’s successors,
assigns, employees, contractors, agents, grantees, representatives, and invitees; or (viii) the failure of Grantee, its
successors, assigns, employees, contractors, agents, grantees, representatives, and invitees, to abide by any
applicable Laws existing or which may be enacted subsequent to the date of this Temporary Easement Agreement,
Grantee shall cooperate with the Grantor in the defense of any such claims or action including; without limitation,
the employment, at the sole expense of Grantee, of legal counsel satisfactory to the parties to this Temporary
Easement Agreement. Grantee’s liability and the indemnity provided herein shall survive the ¢éxpiration or sooner
termination of this Temporary Easement Agreement as to events which occurred prior to such expiration or
termination. For the purposes of this Paragraph 8, Grantor shall be defined as the Grantor in the preamble to this
Temporary Easement Agreement and its affiliates.

b) If Grantor becomes subject to any claim as to which Grantee is obligated to indemnify such
Grantor as aforesaid:

i) Grantor shall be entitled to approve selection of Grantee’s counsel, which approval shall
not be unreasonably withheld;

ii) Grantee shall promptly deliver to Grantor copies of all documents and pleadings prepared
and filed on its behalf, and Grantee shall monitor and advise and inform Grantor of the progress and status of all
developments in any litigation or proceeding; and

iif) any settlement or other resolution of any litigation or proceeding shall result in the full
release, discharge and acquittal of Grantor without any obligation on the part of Grantor to take or refrain from any
action whatsoever.

¢) Grantee shall not raise as a defense to its obligation to indemnify any comparative or
contributing negligence of Grantor pursuant to any such provision, it being agreed that comparative or contributing
negligence shall not relieve Grantee from its aforesaid obligation to indemnify, nor entitle Grantee to any

TCE (No Permanent) WDPR to CFTOD for S-101 Erosion Repairs_sd



contribution (either directly or indirectly) by those indemnified (except in instances of Grantor’s willful
misconduct).

8. Assignment. Grantor may, at any time and in its sole discretion, assign, transfer or convey its
rights hereunder. Upon any such assignment, transfer or conveyance, the liability of Grantor under this Temporary
Easement Agreement shall automatically terminate, and Grantor’s assignee, transferee, or grantee (as the case may
be) shall be deemed to have assumed and be bound by the obligations of Grantor hereunder. This Temporary
Easement Agreement involves the granting of a personal right by Grantor to Grantee and, therefore, neither this
Temporary Easement Agreement nor any interest herein or rights hereunder may be assigned, transferred or
conveyed in whole or in part by Grantee without the prior written consent of Grantor, which consent may be
withheld or approved in Grantor’s sole discretion.

9. No Warranty; Entire Agreement. Grantor makes no representations, statements, warranties, or
agreements to Grantee in connection with this Temporary Easement Agreement or the Easement Area, other than as
may be set forth herein. This Temporary Easement Agreement embodies the entire understanding of the parties
hereto, and supersedes all prior discussions and agreements between the parties hereto, and there are no further or
other agreements or understanding, written or oral, in effect between the parties relating to the subject matter hereof,
This Temporary Easement Agreement shall not be modified or amended in any respect except by a written
agreement executed by or on behalf of the parties hereto in the same manner as executed herein. Notwithstanding
anything to the contrary set forth in this Temporary Easement Agreement, Grantee acknowledges and agrees that
Grantee’s use of the Easement Area is at its own risk and neither Grantor nor the Indemnitees (as hereinabove
defined) shall have any liability or obligation for or with respect to any loss or damage to any of Grantee’s property
arising out of or related to Grantor’s or the Indemnitees’ use of or activities within the Easement Area,

10. Notices. Any notice or other communication required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing
and shall be deemed given and received: (i) on the same day it is personally delivered to the intended recipient at the
address set forth below; (ii} upon confirmation of successful transmission (if sent by facsimile transtission) to the
intended recipient at the facsimile number set forth below provided that a copy of such notice is contemporaneously
sent by one of the other methods of delivery set forth herein (it being understood and agreed, however, that such
notice shall be deemed received upon receipt of electronic transmission); (iii) the next business day if sent by
reputable overnight courier to the intended recipient at the address set forth below; or (iv) three business days after it
is deposited in the United States registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, to the address
set forth below:

If to Grantor: Walt Disney Parks and Resorts U.S., Inc.
1375 Buena Vista Drive, Post Office Box 10000
Lake Buena Vista, Florida 32830
Attn: Chief Counsel — Legal Department

If to Grantee: Central Florida Tourism Oversight District
f/k/a Reedy Creek Improvement District
1900 Hotel Plaza Boulevard, P.O. Box 10170
Lake Buena Vista, Florida 32830-0170
Attn: District Administrator
Facsimile: (407) 934-6200

With a copy to: Central Florida Tourism Oversight District
f/k/a Reedy Creek Improvement District
1900 Hotel Plaza Boulevard, P.O. Box 10170
Lake Buena Vista, Florida 32830-0170
Attn: Legal Counsel
Facsimile: (407) 828-4311

11. Counterparts. This Temporary Easement Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed to be an original and all of which shall together constitute one and the same instrument.

12. Governing Law. This Temporary Easement Agreement shall be governed by, construed under
and interpreted and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida.

TCE (No Permanent) WDPR to CFTOD for S-101 Erosion Repairs_sd



13. Jurisdiction. Any legal proceeding of any nature brought by either party against the other to
enforce any right or obligation under this Temporary Easement Agreement, or arising out of any matter pertaining to
this Temporary Easement Agreement, shall be exclusively submitted for trial before the Circuit Court of the Ninth
Judicial Circuit in and for Orange County, Florida; or, if the Circuit Court does not have jurisdiction, then before the
United States District Court for the Middle District of Florida (Orlando Division); or if neither of such courts shall
have jurisdiction, then before any other court sitting in Orange County, Florida, having subject matter jurisdiction.
The parties consent and submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of any such court and agree to accept service of process
outside the State of Florida in any matter to be submitted to any such court pursuant hereto and expressly waive all
rights to trial by jury for any matters arising under this Agreement.

14. Binding Obligations. This Temporary Easement Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to
the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective permitted legal representatives, successors and assigns.

15. Construction of Agreement. This Temporary Easement Agreement has been fully reviewed and
approved by the parties hereto and their respective counsel. Accordingly, in interpreting this Temporary Easement
Agreement, no weight shall be placed upon which party hereto or its counsel drafted the provisions being
interpreted. Paragraph headings are for convenience only and shall not be deemed a part of this Temporary
Easement Agreement or considered in construing this Temporary Easement Agreement,

16. No Implied Waiver. No course of dealing between the parties and no delay in exercising any
right, power or remedy conferred hereby or now hereafter existing at Law, in equity, by statute, or otherwise shall
operate as a waiver of, or otherwise prejudice, any such right, power or remedy. All waivers, if any, of any or all of
the foregoing rights, powers or remedies must be in writing.

17. Attornevs’ Fees and Costs. If either party files suit or brings a judicial action or proceeding
against the other to recover any sum due hereunder or for default or breach of any of the covenants, terms or
conditions herein contained, the party which substantially prevails in any such suit, action or proceeding shall be
entitled to receive from the other party such prevailing party’s actual costs, fees and expenses reasonably incurred
(including the fees and expenses of attorneys and paraprofessionals) in connection with such suit, action or
proceeding (whether or not such costs, fees and expenses are taxable to the other party as such by any Law) through
any and all final appeals arising out of such suit, action or proceeding.

18. No Public Rights Created. Nothing herein shall create or be construed to create any rights in
and/or for the benefit of the general public in or to the Easement Area or the easement granted hereby.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK- SIGNATURES
APPEAR ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]

TCE (No Permancnt) WDPR to CFTOD for S-101 Erosion Repairs_sd



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed. this Temporary Easement Agreement
effective as of the date on which the last of Grantor or Grantee executed this Temporary Easement Agreement, as
indicated below (the “Effective Date”).

WITNESSES TO GRANTOR: WALT DISNEY PARKS & RESORTS U.S., INC.,
a Florida corporation

(Signature)

LQW&L_(LE:LA T m (Print Name) By: W (Signature)

aZM BW SW Mj (Print Name)
(Signature)
Its: ] (Title)

E { B KT H i vame
/ec = o ) Dated:_@#?—?—'/ Z3

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF ORANGE

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of \/;)hysical presence or  online
notarization, this 2.2*®day of _Apeusn ,2023, by Seav ZoBga S ,
as \lce Presipen Of WAADEnAN PRAKDAID HSOLTS U8 1e1C.. , b EionmiDa CorpriaR the
State of Florida, on behalf of the company. He is * personally known to me or  produced

as identification.

[Notary Seal] Lewell Flatford %m

Netary Public “Notary Public
State of Florida Lowew. Crazcden
q .- Comm# HH057994 Name typed, printed or stamped
v Expires 10/28/2024 My Commission Expires: | © [}gl_‘l_._g_

[SIGNATURES AND NOTARY CONTINUED ON FOLLOWING PAGE]

I'CE (No Permanent) WDPR to CFTOD for S-101 Erosion Repairs_sd



WITNESSES TO GRANTEE: CENTRAL FLORIDA TOURISM OVERSIGHT
DISTRICT f/k/a Reedy Creek Improvement District,
a public corporatio

w %b/ (Signature) By: (signaturc)

w (J Glenton Gilzean, Jr., District Administrator
Rona

(Prmt Namc)

ﬁm}g{ T Dated: A‘&S Bg ; QO:)?)

%\Q X\ ‘\\\lez&YQH\(Print Ware)

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF ORANGE

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of «physical presence or || online

notarization, this day of &} )]% \)& , 2023, by Glenton Gilzean, Jr., as District Administrator of

the CENTRAL FLORIDA TOURIS VERSIGHT DISTRICT f/k/a Reedy Creek Improvement District, a

ublic corporation and public body corporate and politic of the State of Florida, on behalf of the corporation. He is
personally known to me or produced as-dentification.

[Notary Seal] ] ' ]

Pubhc
\V;%QD\’ INESY

Name typed prmted or stamped
SHERRI DESORCY My Commission Expires: U\Z 2\0{ P \

MY COMMISSION # HH 391078
EXPIRES: April 26, 2027

TCE (No Permanent) WDPR to CFTOD for S-101 Erosion Repairs_sd



EXHIBIT “A”

Description of Temporary Easement Area



EXHIBIT “A”
Description of Temporary Easement Area (1 of 2)

DESCRIPTION

A parcel of land lying in Section 29, Township 24 South, Ronge 28 East, Orange
County, Florida, and being more particularly described as follows:

Commence at the East Quarter corner of said Section 29, run dlong the East line of
the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 29, N 00°0015" W, 571.83 feet; thence S
89'59'45" W, 1640.77 feet to the Point of Beginning; thence S 81'17°58” W, 24.59
feet to a point of curvature of a curve concave Northerly having a radius of 61.00
feet, and a central angle of 29"1°57"; thence run Westerly along the arc of said
curve, 31.08 feet; to a point of reverse curvature of a curve concave Southerly
having a radius of 121.00 feet, and a central angle of 15"7'56"; thence run Westerly
along the arc of said curve, 32.31 feet; thence N 05°46’54” E, 53.80 feet to a point
on a non—tangent curve concave Northwesterly having a radius of 29.49 feet, and a
central angle of 20°25"2"; thence from a tangent bearing of N 37113'14” E run
Northeasterly along the arc of said curve, 10.51 feet; to a point of reverse curvature
of a curve concave Southeasterly having a radius of 44.48 feet, and a central angle
of 16°46'23"; thence run Northeasterly along the arc of said curve, 13.02 feet; to a
point of reverse curvature of a curve concave Westerly having a radius of 4.50 feet,
and a central angle of 84°08'46"; thence run Northerly along the arc of said curve,
6.61 feet; thence N 50°34'20" W, 12.25 feet to a point on o non-—tangent curve
concave Southeasterly having o radius of 61.00 feet, and a central angle of
47°49'03"; thence from a tangent bearing of N 3857'29” E run Northeasterly along
the arc of said curve, 50.91 feet; thence S 03"41°45” E, 12.25 feet to a point of
curvature of a curve concave Northeasterly having a radius of 4.50 feet, and a
central angle of B4°08'26"; thence run Southeasterly along the arc of said curve,
6.61 feet; to a point of reverse curvature of a curve concave Southerly having a
radius of 44.50 feet, and o central angle of 24°23’06"; thence run Easterly along the
arc of said curve, 18.94 feet; to a point of reverse curvature of a curve concave
Northerly having a radius of 4.50 feet, and a central angle of 84'08'24"; thence run
Easterly along the arc of said curve, 6.61 feet; thence N 32°24'22" E, 12.25 feet; to
a point on a non—tangent curve concave Southwesterly having a radius of 61.00 feet,
and a central dngle of 40°33'58";, thence from a tangent bearing of S 58°0349” E
run Southeasterly along the arc of said curve, 43.19 feet; thence S 18°12'39” W,
78.87 feet to the Point of Beginning, containing 9979 square feet, more or less.

PROJECT NAME
P.0.B. 10000 S—101f TCE

LAKE BUENA VISTA

FL. 32830-1000

FILING AREA DATE:
LAKE BUENA VISTA 4/24/23
SCALE
1" = 100
SURVEY TYPE DRAWN BY:
pHONE 407-824-5855 SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION JLG
COMMENTS FENANE:
GRANTOR: WDPR 09JJG23011




Description of Temporar,

EXHIBIT “A”

y Easement Area (2 of 2)

|

ABBREVIATIONS
R=RADIUS

L=LENGTH

A=DELTA

TB=TANGENT BEARING
SEC=SECTION
TWN=TOWNSHIP
RNG=RANGE

POB=POINT OF BEGINNING

8
Eo \
3=
| T
]
D=
s N
R ° N~
TANGENT TABLE
CINE# _ BEARING DIST.
L1 S 81°17°59° W_ 24,59
Lo N 05° 46’ 54° E_ 53, 80
AT 13 N 50° 34’ 207 _W__1p. 25
L4 S 03°41° 45 E _12. 25
/ 5 N 32° 24 22" E_l12. 25
—ZASTN (L6 S 18°12"39” W _78. 87

|

|

“ 89%59'45" W 1640.77’

East line of the Northeast 1/4

of Section 29-24-28

PQOC=POINT OF COMMENCEMENT
POT=POINT OF TERMINATION

N
I\l

CURVE TABLE

/
/

ADMINISTRATIVE CODE REQUIRES
THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT.
"THIS IS NOT A BOUNDARY SURVEY”

SURVEYOR'S NOTE
CHAPTER 5J-17, FLORIDA

SEC 29, TWN 24 S, RNG 28 E

nuﬂ“‘"ﬂ"ﬁ

BEARINGS ARE BASED ON THE
. LINE, NE 1/4, SEC. 29-24S-28E
AS BEING N 00°00'15" W

CURVE _RADIUS DELTA _ LENGTH __ TANG. BRG. -
Cl 6L 00 29°11'57° 31,09 B
Ce__ 1L 00 15°17°56° 37,31 ]
c3 29.49 2025 12’ _10.51 N 3713 14" E |- %
t4 44. 48 16°46°23° 13 02 <
C5 4,50 84° 08’ 46” 6. 61 0
6 61.00  47°4903 50,91 N 385729 E | g
C/ 2.50  B4° 08" 267 6. 61 gn
ce 34.50  24°2306° 18 94 o
€9 2,50 840824 6. 61 5/

T10 6L 00 40°33°56” 43,19 S 5670349 E] §
N o|f
Z
e
PO.C
EAST QUARTER CORNER,

X

P.0.B. 10000
LAKE BUENA VISTA

FL. 32830-1000

FILNG AREA DATE:
LAKE BUENA VISTA 4/24/23
PROJECT NAME SCALE
S—101 TCE 1” = 100’
SURVEY TYPE BRAWN BY:
proNE 407-824-5855| SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION JLG
FILENAME:

COMMENTS
GRANTOR: WDPR

E:
09JJG23011




NON-EXCLUSIVE TEMPORARY EASEMENT AGREEMENT

THIS NON-EXCLUSIVE TEMPORARY EASEMENT AGREEMENT (“Temporary Easement
Agreement”) is made as of the Effective Date (as hereinafter defined) by and between WALT DISNEY PARKS
AND RESORTS U.S,, INC,, a Florida corporation, whose mailing address is 1375 Buena Vista Drive, Lake Buena
Vista, Florida 32830, Attention: Legal Department — Real Estate (“Grantor™), and the CENTRAL FLORIDA
TOURISM OVERSIGHT DISTRICT, a public corporation and public body corporate and politic of the State of
Florida, whose mailing address is Post Office Box 690519, Orlando, Florida 32869-0519 (“Grantee™).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Grantor is the fee owner of certain real property located in Orange County, Florida (the
“Property”); and

WHEREAS, Grantee desires to obtain a non-exclusive easement on, over; under and across the portion or
portions of the Property more particularly described on Exhibit “A” attached hereto and made a part hereof (the
“Easement Area”), for the purpose of: (i) performing incidental work related to the installation and repair of
irrigation systems and landscape replacement, including, but not limited to, equipment access for contactor parking
and laydown (the “Work™); and, in connection therewith (ii) access to and from the Easement Area, over and
through adjacent public roads, alleys, sidewalks and other designated portions of the Property as Grantor may
designate from time to time (as hereinafter provided) (items (i) and (ii) hereinabove are sometimes referred to as the
“permitted use”); and

WHEREAS, Grantor agrees to grant to Grantee this non-exclusive temporary easement on, over, under and
across the portions of the Easement Area where the Work is located, subject to the terms and conditions set forth
below.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises, the mutual agreement of the parties
hereto, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged,
the parties hereby agree as follows:

1. Recitations. Each party represents to the other party hereto that the above recitations, as they
relate to it, are true and correct.

2. Grant and Use of Easement, Grantor grants to Grantee a non-exclusive temporary easement (this
“Easement”) on, over, under and across the Easement Area. This Easement is subject and subordinate to the terms,
conditions, restrictions, and limitations set forth herein and in other recorded and unrecorded easements,
reservations, rights-of-way, licenses, restrictions, conditions, and limitations affecting the Easement Area and the
Property. This Easement is also subject and subordinate to the rights of Orange County, Florida and to the rights, if
anly, of any other governmental or quasi-governmental authorities to locate, construct, maintain, improve and replace
roadways and roadway related improvements and utilities over, through, upon and/or across the Easement Area.
This Easement shall be used by Grantee (and its employees, contractors and agents) for the permitted use of the
Easement Area and for no other purpose whatsoever. Grantee’s rights in connection therewith shall include the right
to maintain temporary construction facilities on the Easement Area. Grantor reserves the right to identify specific
routes and other means of vehicular and pedestrian ingress and egress (in addition to existing public roads, alleys
and sidewalks) to and from the Easement Area across the balance of the Property. Thereafter, only such routes and
other means of vehicular and pedestrian access designated by Grantor shall be used by Grantee. This Easement shall
not commence until February 1, 2024 and terminate on September 30 , 2024 (the “Termination Date”). This
Temporary Easement Agreement and this Easement granted hereby shall automatically terminate and shall be of no
further force and effect on the Termination Date. This Temporary Easement Agreement shall not be recorded in the
public records, and, notwithstanding the foregoing, this Temporary Easement Agreement shall automatically
terminate if it is recorded in the public records.

Notwithstanding any provision in this Temporary Easement Agreement to the contrary, Grantee
acknowledges that Grantee’s access to the Easement Area and/or for ingress and egress across the Property is
subject at all times to the strict compliance by Grantee, its employees, contractors, subcontractors, representatives,
and agents, with all security provisions, rules and regulations of Grantor which may be in effect from time to time.

1



3. Limitation of Rights, This Temporary Easement Agreement creates a non-exclusive temporary
Easement, and Grantee does not and shall not (at any time) claim any interest or estate of any kind or extent
whatsoever in the Easement Area by virtue of this Easement or Grantee’s use of the Easement Area pursuant hereto.
Furthermore, except as provided in and subject to Paragraph 5(d), hereinbelow, no new facilities shall be constructed
on the Easement Area without the prior written consent of Grantor, which may be withheld in Grantor’s sole and
absolute discretion.

4. Grantor’s Reservation of Rights. Subject to the rights created herein, Grantor expressly reserves
(to itself, its successors and assigns) the right to use, or to grant to others the right to use by virtue of additional
licenses, rights-of-way, reservations or easements, any and all portions of the area upon, above or under the
Easement Area and the Property (in Grantor’s sole discretion) for any purpose whatsoever not inconsistent with the
rights herein granted, including, but not limited to, the right of ingress and egress over and across the Easement Area
onto any adjacent or contiguous property; provided, such right does not materially and adversely interfere with
Grantee’s permitted use of the Easement Area pursuant to the terms hereof. Grantor also reserves the right, but not
the obligation, to do all or any of the following without Grantee’s consent:

a) to construct (or allows others to construct) improvements; landscape; provide for drainage;
construct paved roads, bridges, tunnels, driveways, parking areas, or any other improvements; and install utility
lines, equipment and cables upon, above or under the Easement Area, so long as such use does not materially and
adversely interfere with the purpose for which this Easement is granted,

b) to enter upon the Easement Area from time to time, in order to repair, maintain, repave,
construct on, or complete other activities on the Easement Area or the Property. Grantor shall cooperate with
Grantee in minimizing any unreasonable interference with Grantee’s use of the Easement Area;

¢) to enter upon the Easement Area at any time to inspect the operation, sanitation, safety,
maintenance, and use thereof, and to perform any repair or maintenance of the Easement Area, and to enter upon the
Easement Area at any time to remedy any condition thereof in the event of an emergency. Grantor shall not assume
any responsibility for the performance of any of Grantee’s obligations hereunder, or any liability arising from the
improper performance thereof;

d) relocate, alter or modify, or cause Grantee to relocate, alter or modify, the location of all or
any portion of the Work to another location either within or outside of the Easement Area, from time to time, in
Grantor’s sole discretion, at Grantor’s sole cost and expense. In the event of any such relocation, alteration or
modification, Grantee shall, at Grantor’s option, either: (i) execute a release of the rights granted hereunder with
respect to the portion of the Easement Area to be vacated and enter into a new agreement in substantially the same
form as this Temporary Easement Agreement to cover the new easement area(s), in which event, this Easement shall
be considered canceled as to the portion vacated by such relocation and all rights and obligations of Grantee
contained herein with respect to the Easement Area shall be described in such subsequent agreement; or (ii) execute
an amendment to this Temporary Easement Agreement amending the description of the Easement Area to reflect the
designated location where the Work is to be relocated. Grantee (at Grantor’s cost) shall cooperate with Grantor in
taking all steps necessary or appropriate to accomplish the release of designated portions of the Easement Area from
the effect of this Temporary Easement Agreement and the relocation, alteration or modification of the Easement
Area or the Work. If any or all of the Easement Area or the Work is to be relocated, altered, or modified, Grantee
shall, upon Grantor’s request (and at Grantor’s sole cost and expense) promptly remove the Work, restore the
Easement Area to the same condition existing at the time of the execution of this Temporary Easement Agreement,
and commence use of the new location designated by Grantor; and

e) plat, replat or dedicate the Easement Area to the public.

S. Covenants of Grantee. Grantee, for itself, its permitted successors, assigns, grantees, and
invitees, covenants and agrees it shall:

a) not interfere with or prevent the following: (i) the development, use and maintenance by
Grantor of the Easement Area, the Property, or Grantor’s adjacent properties, if any; (ii) the use of any portion of the
Easement Area by the general public, if any portion of the Easement Area has been or is hereafter dedicated to the
general public; and (iii) any development, construction, improvement, or other activity or use by Grantor now or in
the future existing on or about the Easement Area and the Property, so long as such use does not materially and
adversely interfere with Grantee’s permitted use of the Easement Area;
TCE (No Permanent) WDPR to CFTOD for Epcot Resorts Blvd W Bridge Landscaping sd



b) not interfere with or disturb any threatened or endangered plant or animal life on or under the
Easement Area or the Property;

c) not interfere with any existing license, easement, reservation, or right-of-way upon, above,
over, through, under, or across the Easement Area;

d) not interfere with any hereafier granted license, easement, reservation or right-of-way upon,
above, over, through, under, or across the Easement Area so long as such license, easement, reservation or right-of-
way does not materially and adversely interfere with Grantee’s permitted use of the Easement Area;

e) comply at all times and in all respects with all present and future local, municipal, county,
state, and federal environmental and all other applicable laws, statutes, governmental constitutions, ordinances,
codes, rules, regulations, resolutions, requirements, standards, applications, and directives, as well as all decisions,
judgments, writs, injunctions, orders, decrees or demands of courts, administrative bodies and other authorities
construing any of the foregoing (collectively, the “Laws™), and Grantee shall obtain, maintain and comply with all
applicable permits in connection with Grantee’s use of the Easement Area. Grantee shall not, by any act or omission,
render the Grantor liable for any violation thereof. Grantee shall promptly deliver to Grantor true and accurate
copies of all applicable permits upon issuance and shall pay all costs and expenses incurred with respect to
compliance with this subparagraph,;

f) operate, maintain, replace, and repair the Work, at its sole cost and expense, and in
compliance with all applicable Laws and permits, in an expeditious and good and workmanlike manner, and
maintain the appearance of all above-ground facilities, if any, if permitted hereunder by Grantor (and of the
Easement Area, if requested by Grantor) in reasonably the same condition as existed upon completion of their initial
installation;

g) not cause or give permission for any hazardous waste, toxic substances or related materials as
defined by any Laws (collectively, “Hazardous Materials”) to be used, placed, misused, or disposed of upon,
above or under, or transported to or from the Easement Area or the Property (“Hazardous Materials Activities™).
Grantor shall not be liable to Grantee for any Hazardous Materials Activities caused by Grantee, its employees,
agents, contractors, invitees, successors, or assigns. Grantee shall be liable to Grantor for any and all Hazardous
Materials Activities and any and all hazardous spills, fires, or other environmental hazard on the Easement Area or
the Property caused by Grantee, its employees, agents or contractors, or in any way resulting from Grantee’s
construction, repair, replacement, maintenance, or operation of the Work;

h) after completion of any repair or replacement work with respect to the permitted use of the
Easement Area (or any construction or installation work for relocated facilities or new facilities, if any, consented to
by Grantor, which consent Grantor may grant or withhold in its sole discretion), at its sole cost and expense and in a
safe, good and workmanlike manner, remove any temporary improvements and equipment placed on the Easement
Area, and restore both the ground surface of the Easement Area and any grass, irrigation lines and equipment, and
landscaping in or on the Easement Area, to the original contour, grade and condition which existed immediately
prior to the commencement of any work; and

i) not permit any lien to be filed against the Easement Area or the Property for any labor or
materials in connection with work of any character performed or claimed to have been performed on the Easement
Area or the Property at the direction or sufferance of Grantee. [f any such lien is filed against the Easement Area or
the Property, Grantee shall have the obligation to remove or otherwise cancel or discharge the same immediately.
Grantor shall have the right (but not the obligation) to cause such lien to be released. Grantee shall pay on demand
all of Grantor’s costs in connection therewith, together with interest thereon at the interest rate set forth in Paragraph
7, hereof, accruing from and after the date of such expenditure until Grantor’s receipt of full payment therefor.

6. Breach by Grantee. If Grantee breaches any provision in this Temporary Easement Agreement
and fails to cure any such breach within fifteen (15) days after written notice thereof is given by Grantor, in addition
to any other right or remedy available to Grantor at law or in equity, Grantor shall have the right, but not the
obligation, to cure any such breach. Grantee agrees to reimburse Grantor for the cost thereof upon demand, together
with interest accruing thereon at an annual rate of interest equal to the lesser of: (i) four percent (4%) above the
prime rate of interest announced by SunTrust Bank, Central Florida, N.A.; or (ii) the highest rate of interest
allowable by law, from and after the date of Grantor’s expenditure thereof, until Grantor’s receipt of full payment

therefor.
TCE (No Permanent) WDPR to CFTOD for Epcot Resorts Blvd W Bridge Landscaping_sd




7. Condition of Easement Area; Indemnity.

a) Grantee acknowledges that it (i) has physically inspected the Easement Area; and (ii) accepts
the Easement Area “AS [S” and “WHERE [S” with full knowledge of the condition thereof and subject to all the
terms, conditions, restrictions, and limitations applicable thereto. Grantee, for and on behalf of itself and its
successors, assigns, employees, contractors, agents, grantees, representatives, and invitees, assumes sole and entire
responsibility for any and all loss of life, injury to persons or damage to property (wherever such property may be
located) sustained from the activities, operations or use of the Easement Area (or use of the portions of the Property
made available for ingress and egress) by Grantee, its successors, assigns, employees, contractors, agents, grantees,
representatives, and invitees. Grantee (for itself, its successors, assigns, employees, contractors, agents, grantees,
representatives, and invitees and for those claiming by, through or under any of them) shall, to the extent allowed by
law, hereby release, indemmnify, defend, and hold harmless Grantor from and against all claims, liabilities, suits,
judgments, liens, damages, penalties, fines, interest, costs, and expenses (including without limitation, those relating
to injuries to persons (including, without limitation, loss of life) or for damage, destruction or theft of property),
including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees and litigation costs incurred by or asserted against the
Grantor in connection therewith, that arise from or relate, directly or indirectly, to: (i) operations on, or the use of,
the Easement Area or the Property by Grantee (its successors, assigns, employees, contractors, agents, grantees,
representatives, and invitees, and all of their officers, directors, employees, representatives and agents); (ii)
Hazardous Materials Activities, spills or fire caused by Grantee, its successors, assigns, employees, contractors,
agents, grantees, representatives, and invitees, on, over, under, through or across the Easement Area or the Property;
(iii) any activity, work or act committed, omitted, permitted, or suffered by Grantee (its successors, assigns,
employees, contractors, agents, grantees and invitees and any of their officers, directors, employees, representatives,
and agents) or caused, in whole or in part, on or about the Easement Area or the Property; (iv) the negligent or
willful acts or omissions of Grantee (its successors, assigns, employees, contractors, agents, grantees,
representatives, and invitees); (v) Grantee’s failure to perform any obligations imposed hereunder, including,
without limitation, the failure of any of Grantee’s successors, assigns, employees, contractors, agents, grantees,
representatives, and invitees to so perform; (vi) the use, operation, maintenance, or repair of the Easement Area by
Grantee, its successors, assigns, employees, contractors, agents, grantees, representatives, and invitees; (vii) liens by
third parties arising out of Grantee’s acts or omissions, or out of the acts or omissions of Grantee’s successors,
assigns, employees, contractors, agents, grantees, representatives, and invitees; or (viii) the failure of Grantee, its
successors, assigns, employees, contractors, agents, grantees, representatives, and invitees, to abide by any
applicable Laws existing or which may be enacted subsequent to the date of this Temporary Easement Agreement.
Grantee shall cooperate with the Grantor in the defense of any such claims or action including, without limitation,
the employment, at the sole expense of Grantee, of legal counsel satisfactory to the parties to this Temporary
Easement Agreement. Grantee’s liability and the indemnity provided herein shall survive the expiration or sooner
termination of this Temporary Easement Agreement as to events which occurred prior to such expiration or
termination. For the purposes of this Paragraph 8, Grantor shall be defined as the Grantor in the preamble to this
Temporary Easement Agreement an its affiliates.

b) If Grantor becomes subject to any claim as to which Grantee is obligated to indemnify such
Grantor as aforesaid:

i)  Grantor shall be entitled to approve selection of Grantee’s counsel, which approval shall
not be unreasonably withheld;

ii) Grantee shall promptly deliver to Grantor copies of all documents and pleadings prepared
and filed on its behalf, and Grantee shall monitor and advise and inform Grantor of the progress and status of all
developments in any litigation or proceeding; and .

iif) any settlement or other resolution of any litigation or proceeding shall result in the full
release, discharge and acquittal of Grantor without any obligation on the part of Grantor to take or refrain from any
action whatsoever.

¢) Grantee shall not raise as a defense to its obligation to indemnify any comparative or
contributing negligence of Grantor pursuant to any such provision, it being agreed that comparative or contributing
negligence shall not relieve Grantee from its aforesaid obligation to indemnify, nor entitle Grantee to any
contribution (either directly or indirectly) by those indemnified (except in instances of Grantor’s willful
misconduct).

TCE (No Permanent) WDPR to CFTOD for Epeot Resorts Blvd W Bridge Landscaping sd



8. Assignment. Grantor may, at any time and in its sole discretion, assign, transfer or convey its
rights hereunder. Upon any such assignment, transfer or conveyance, the liability of Grantor under this Temporary
Easement Agreement shall automatically terminate, and Grantor’s assignee, transferee, or grantee (as the case may
be) shall be deemed to have assumed and be bound by the obligations of Grantor hereunder. This Temporary
Easement Agreement involves the granting of a personal right by Grantor to Grantee and, therefore, neither this
Temporary Easement Agreement nor any interest herein or rights hereunder may be assigned, transferred or
conveyed in whole or in part by Grantee without the prior written consent of Grantor, which consent may be
withheld or approved in Grantor’s sole discretion.

9. No Warranty; Entire Agreement. Grantor makes no representations, statements, warranties, or
agreements to Grantee in connection with this Temporary Easement Agreement or the Easement Area, other than as
may be set forth herein. This Temporary Easement Agreement embodies the entire understanding of the parties
hereto, and supersedes all prior discussions and agreements between the parties hereto, and there are no further or
other agreements or understanding, written or oral, in effect between the parties relating to the subject matter hereof.
This Temporary Easement Agreement shall not be modified or amended in any respect except by a written
agreement executed by or on behalf of the parties hereto in the same manner as executed herein. Notwithstanding
anything to the contrary set forth in this Temporary Easement Agreement, Grantee acknowledges and agrees that
Grantee’s use of the Easement Area is at its own risk and neither Grantor nor the Indemnitees (as hereinabove
defined) shall have any liability or obligation for or with respect to any loss or damage to any of Grantee’s property
arising out of or related to Grantor’s or the [ndemnitees’ use of or activities within the Easement Area.

10. Notices. Any notice or other communication required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing
and shall be deemed given and received: (i) on the same day it is personally delivered to the intended recipient at the
address set forth below; (ii) upon confirmation of suecessful transmission (if sent by facsimile transmission) to the
intended recipient at the facsimile number set forth below provided that a copy of such notice is contemporaneously
sent by one of the other methods of delivery set forth herein (it being understood and agreed, however, that such
notice shall be deemed received upon receipt of electronic transmission); (iii) the next business day if sent by
reputable overnight courier to the intended recipient at the address set forth below; or (iv) three business days after it
is deposited in the United States registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, to the address
set forth below:

If to Grantor: Walt Disney Parks and Resorts U.S., Inc.
1375 Buena Vista Drive, Post Office Box 10000
Lake Buena Vista, Florida 32830
Attn: Chief Counsel — Legal Department

Ifto Grantee: Central Florida Tourism Oversight District
1900 Hotel Plaza Boulevard, P.O. Box 690519
Orlando, Florida 32869-0519
Attn: District Administrator
Facsimile: (407) 934-6200

With a copy to: Central Florida Tourism Oversight District
1900 Hotel Plaza Boulevard, P.O. Box 690519
Orlando, Florida 32869-0519
Attn: Legal Counsel

11. Counterparts. This Temporary Easement Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed to be an original and all of which shall together constitute one and the same instrument.

12, Governing Law. This Temporary Easement Agreement shall be governed by, construed under
and interpreted and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida.

13. Jurisdiction. Any legal proceeding of any nature brought by either party against the other to
enforce any right or obligation under this Temporary Easement Agreement, or arising out of any ratter pertaining to
this Temporary Easement Agreement, shall be exclusively submitted for trial before the Circuit Court of the Ninth
Judicial Circuit in and for Orange County, Florida; or, if the Circuit Court does not have jurisdiction, then before the
United States District Court for the Middle District of Florida (Orlando Division); or if neither of such courts shall
have jurisdiction, then before any other court sitting in Orange County, Florida, having subject matter jurisdiction.
TCE (No Permanent) WDPR to CFTOD for Epcot Resorts Blvd W Bridge Landscaping sd



The parties. consent and submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of any such court and agree to accept service of process
outside the State of Florida in any matter to be submitted to any such court pursuant hereto and expressly waive all
rights to trial by jury for any matters arising under this Agreement.

14. Binding Obligations. This Temporary Easement Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to
the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective permitted legal representatives, successors and assigns.

15. Construction of Agreement. This Temporary Easement Agreement has been fully reviewed and
approved by the parties hereto and their respective counsel. Accordingly, in interpreting this Temporary Easement
Agreement, no weight shall be placed upon which party hereto or its counsel drafted the provisions being
interpreted. Paragraph headings are for convenience only and shall not be deemed a part of this Temporary
Easement Agreement or considered in construing this Temporary Easement Agreement.

16. No Implied Waiver. No course of dealing between the parties and no delay in exercising any
right, power or remedy conferred hereby or now hereafier existing at Law, in equity, by statute, or otherwise shall
operate as a ' waiver of, or otherwise prejudice, any such right, power or remedy. All waivers, if any, of any or all of
the foregoing rights, powers or remedies must be in writing,

17. Attorneys’ Fees and Costs. If either party files suit or brings a judicial action or proceeding
against the other to recover any sum due hereunder or for default or breach of any of the covenants, terms or
conditions herein contained, the party which substantially prevails in any such suit, action or proceeding shall be
entitled to receive from the other party such prevailing party’s actual costs, fees and expenses reasonably incurred
(including the fees and expenses of attorneys and paraprofessionals) in connection with such suit, action or
proceeding (whether or not such costs, fees and expenses are taxable to the other party as such by any Law) through
any and all final appeals arising out of such suit, action or proceeding.

18. No Public Rights Created. Nothing herein shall create or be construed to create any rights in
and/or for the benefit of the general public in or to the Easement Area or the easement granted hereby.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK- SIGNATURES
APPEAR ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]

TCE {No Permanent) WDPR to CFTOD for Epcot Resorts Blvd W Bridge Landscaping_sd



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Temporary Easement Agreement

effective as of the date on which the last of Grantor or Grantee executed this Temporary Easement Agreement, as
indicated below (the “Effective Date”).

WITNESSES TO GRANTOR: WALT DISNEY PARKS & RESORTS U.S,, INC,,

a Florida corporation
W /Oﬂ(/ Callll it
4 /s -
A@\?ﬁ 4_ (Print Name) By (Signature)

R (JOSQ;OV) 5@0“@1”61/ {Print Name)
\]W M (Signature) ! .
\/ : s _Vice Aesident (Title)
0\\0’\ Q ND rt‘?b K"Vl‘ {Print Name)

Dated: l// Zq/Z()Z 3

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF ORANGE

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of  physical presence or  online

notarization, this 24 day of /\f{)l/im bei~ 2023, by Josephh Brohéirey

as Vo Presidy id of WALT DISNEY PARKS AND RESORTS U.S., INC., a Florida
corporation, on behalf of the company. He is )( personally known to me or produced

NA as identification.

94
I L T | / . {4 s

[Notary Seal] ¢ Notary Public State of Florida N Publi 2

¢ Evalena L Rogers Notary Pyblic j -

) My Commisslon HH 370118 tV[L/{/’L{L L, B@ff]&;’j

) Expires 6/11/2027 Name typed, printed or stamped

vvvvvvvv - My Commission Expires:

[SIGNATURES AND NOTARY CONTINUED ON FOLLOWING PAGE]

TCE (No Permanent) WDPR to CFTOD for Epcot Resorts Blvd W Bridge Landscaping, sd



WITNESSES TO GRANTEE: CENTRAL FL
DISTRICT,
a public corporati

M_ﬁéolgmw By:

p&u‘/a J I_'loldlnq{’mnmNamc)

7
// . foﬂ //;/‘é///é, (signature)
‘H"}:/ \)\)/ ;3’0/ { ) C://é._, (Print Name)

DA TOURISM  OVERSIGHT

7 (Slgnamre)

Glenton Gilzean Jr District Administrator

S - / oq/} 2033

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF ORANGE

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of v{hyswal presence or ' online
notarization, this _4*" day of BQ¢MM , 2023, by Glenton Gilzean, Jr., as District Administrator of
the CENTRAL FLORIDA TOURISM OVERSIGHT DISTRICT, a public co ratlon and public body
corporate and politic of the State of Florida, on behalf of the corporation. He is | personally known to me or

produced as identification.
[Notary Seal] w) k\'/
Ndia ary Public
Joia Moneg Mills
Name typed prmted or stamped
A R ALYCIA MONEA MILLS dr :
SSPS Notary Public - State of Florida My Commission Expires: 5! 3S) ’9’}027
'& g J&i  Commission # HH 398026
,'> oFr My Comm, Expires May 15, 2027

. “Bonded through National Notary Assn.

TCE (No Permanent) WDPR to CFTOD for Epcot Resorts Blvd W Bridge Landscaping sd




EXHIBIT “A”

Description of Temporary Easement Area (1 of 4)

DESCRIPTION

A parcel of land lying in Section 25, Township 24 South, Range 27
Eost, Orange County, Florida, ond being more particularly described
as follows:

Commence at the North Quarter corner of said Section 25, run
along the North line of the Northeast 1/4 of soid Section 25, M
89729'39" E, 961.62 feet; thence S 00°30°21" E, 2304.63 feet to
the Point of Beginning: thence S B959'58" E, 53.53 feet; thence S
0013177 W, 384.01 feet; thence N 90°00°00" W, 4.15 feet; thence
M 0328'50" W, 219 feet; thence N 00°25'08" W, 66.99 feet;
thence N 11°46'35" £, 2.2% feet; thence N 0B°33'57" W, 17.42 feet
to o point on @ non-tangent curve concave Easterly having ¢
radius of 91.12 feet, and a central angle of 17°34'39"; thence from
a tangent bearing of N 042151 £ run Northerly along the arc of
said curve, 27.95 feet; thence N 0000'37" E, 87.96 feet to o
point on @ non—tiangent curve concave Northeasterly having o
radius of 195.89 feet, and a centrol angle of 09°17'28", thence
from a tangent bearing of N 4136'51" W run Northwesterly along
the arc of said curve, 31.77 feef; to a point on a non—tangent
curve concave Easterly having o rodius of 66.23 feet, and a centrai
angle of 4717°20", thence from o tangent bearing of N 27°0728"
W run Northerly along the orc of soid curve, 54.66 feet; to o point
on a non—tangent curve concave Westerly having o radius of 55.58
feet, and « central angle of 33'48'36"; thence from a tangent
bearing of N 09'4336" E run Northerly along the arc of said curve,
32.80 feet; to g point on a non—-tongent curve concave
Southwesterly having o radius of 105.30 feet, and a central angle
of 16°18'44"; thence from a tangent bearing of N 2154'19” W run
Morthwesterly colong the arc of said curve, 28.98 feet; to o point
on a non~tangent curve concave LEosterly having a radius of 73.99
feet, and a central angle of 2309517 thence from o tangent
bearing of N 31'51°41" W run Northerly along the arc of said curve,
29.91 feet; thence N 014115" W, 1612 feetto the Point of
Beginning. Containing 6088 square feet, more or less.

i,

l:él}pg’llll ToeseY s1avions

FUHG AR
EPCOT _RESORTS

PROVECT NAME

P.0.B. 10000 EPCOS;’ RESORTS BLVD.

LAKE EJEN? WSTA

P07 %% _sass| SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION SHEET 1 OF 2 B
ANEE:

COMNENTS
WDPR LAND 134623020




EXHIBIT “A”

MWMM‘W”"’

B—
e

S

[

Description of Temporary Easement Area (2 of 4)
= N o North line of the Northeast 1/4 \ \ \
'39" ' or ine o e Northeas -
g N 89291357 £ 96162 of Section 25-24-27 . Z ‘\E
Joll| TER CORNER. \ A
g8 24 S, RNG 27 E
o \ ?
B { 38
SEd | %':-
V1 2
(SRl
P Y

mﬂ?fb
—9
W

)

/N (‘«},/ :
[ o] 5
Poln CURVE TABLE
/| |¥ [CURVE T RADIUS UELTA  LENGIH  TANG. BRG. )
LR Tl 9T 1c  17°34 35 7,55 N OA U5 E
a [0 199, 89 09 17 28° 3. 77 N 41°36°51° W /
o T3 56. 23 A7 17207 5466 N 2707 28 W |E=
f; ta 55583345 6 3. b0 N 0943 367 T
| 05TI0s 30 (6718744 55,98 N 21°547 19 W
H Co 73, 99 23°02° 51" 29, 91 N 31°5i 417 W
| ] e
i
;
14
1

N\

N\
\5\
|

.

s

PO
|2
S
> %
g\ 1
4 \ i
& E X_Dolphin Resort r}
21 i Demised Premises| Lg i
G H
2 2 R /
Py /
s / H j
S i TANGENT TABLE
5 9 LINER  BEARING DIST,
o L1 S 89°59 59 £ 53 .53
e/ bl 12 N S0°00° 007 W 415
< L3 N 0328500 W 2 149
/ ; s N 00" 25 09’ W__56. 99
/ k) S T e W N 11°46°35° E 2 21
/ 72 A N 06" 33 57" W 17,42
i i
! f | I = e’ WY N 00°00° 37" £ B7.98
. f ol ] P8 N D417 15° W_fe. 12
mmaa I N T B B B
i RV IR N
A=DELTA . j i |
TB=TANGENT BEARING I f i 1 ] o
SEC=SECTION i . : :
o ] SURVEYOR'S NOYE ; ]
Hpaivinrad ? | CHAPTER 3.~17, FLGRIDA BEARINGS ARE BASED ON THE
POB=POINT OF BEGINNING Pl }f A e s M. LINE, NE 1/4, SEC. 25~24S-27E
POTZFONI O TEmMIARON 5 | | "THIS IS NOT A BOUNDARY SURVEY” . ., AS BEING N 89729'39" £
" FIUNC AREA DATE:
o EPCOT RESORTS 21/23
ST SELY AT Sy PROECT NARE i
. P.0.8. 10000 FPCOT RESQRTS BLVD. = 150
A %(E]esuumo ‘:o‘(ﬁ“ SURVEY TYPE DRAWN BY:
EHABE SN INRNOY BaNISES  PrionE s07-824-s8s8 SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION SHEET 2 OF 2 JLG
o COMMENTS FILENAME!
WDPR LAND 134623020

TCE (No Permanent) WDPR to CFTOD for Epcot Resorts Blvd W Bridge Landscaping_sd



EXHIBIT “A”

Description of Temporary Easement Area (3 of 4)

DESCRIPTION

as folliows:

Containing 1.228 Acres, more or less,

Commence at the North Quarter corner of said Section 25,
along the North line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 25, N
89°29'39" E, 1015.15 feet: thence S 00°30'21” E, 230510 feet to
the Point of Beginning; thence N 90°00'00" E, 140.42 feet; thence S
00'32'347 W, 38403 feet; thence N B95300" W, 138.27
thence N 0013177 E, 383.93 feet to the Point of Beginning.

A parcel of tand lying in Section 25, Township 24 Scuth, Range 27
East, Orange County, Florida, and being more particularly described

run

feet;

” TFNG AREA DATE:
prd EPCOT RESORTS §701/23
y v PROJCT NAME SCALE
pog. oo | DOLPHIN RESORT TCE | = 150
i SURVEY TYPE PRAWN BY:
SusyeIIC ey avane ot <07-834-se8 SKETCH QF DESCRIPTION SHEET 1 OF 2 LG
COMMENTS 3
o WDPR_LAND UNDER LEASE TO DOLPHIN RESORT 134623021

TCE (No Permanent) WDPR to CFTOD for Epcot Resorts Blvd W Bridge Landscaping_sd




EXHIBIT “A”»

Description of Temporary Easement Area (4 of 4)
i1
F,% P 0 C.

N 89729'39" £ 1015.15"

NORTH QUARTER CORNER,

SEC vg TWN 24 S, RNG 27 €
|

SR

North line of the Northeost?/

P
A )
of Section 25——}~;27 ’ /////

\
. % |
Vol
Vo
| S
Lol
1 !
.
H H i i
H
I
P
1 E % }i
\, I
I N
R
IS R |
IS R |
b !
b
I |
oo |
I A R Y | .
LRI ! -~
! , P
,‘ il P / §
| P.O.B.%z /fx{d/; -
% NG Gl M
% N_90°00'00" E s P
*&}'/r‘:’ G ,./(A) A @MMM oy
et —— o7 |
| | a
{ 3‘%} g
I} EZ; \ wh &Do!phin Resort
AR Demised Premises i
Gl | ~ i
o:% o 1
5) \g /]
O
B Az oo oo S /
S— g?;j??
J | 138,277 | N/ L
f 3 /R éag'saoo“ WD N\ \‘ég p
H : { 51
| ] o R cnmer B oo B vt 3 bid
b | ; CTTTT | Y
el I
A=DELTA | };‘ { } i i | f {
TE=TANGENT SEARING % 7 ] i § | § [ e
— { SURVEYOR'S NOTE |
Ti=TOWISHP i Aﬁwgsnngd_égb Aon ' BEARINGS ARE BASED ON THE
Al H ~
FeRrenn o B e i Tersomcswmen | N INENE LS K T8LEenaE
POTwPOINT_OF TERMINATION | "THIS 1S NOT A BOUNDARY SURVEY" | ., 1, AS BEING N 89729'38" E
o FLNG AREA DATE:
EPCOT RESORTS [8‘721 /23
A S PROECT HAME SCALE
Sy 8% ven | DOLPHIN RESORT TCE 1" = 150°
2830— TPE DRAWN BY:
sty gt vaeney o ot wr-sse-sess SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION SHEET 2 OF 2 JLG
COMMENTS FILENAME:
WDPR _LAND UNDER LEASE TQ DOLPHIN RESORT 134623021

TCE (No Permanent) WDPR to CFTOD for Epcot Resorts Blvd W Bridge Landscaping_sd




Central Florida Tourism Oversight District

Board of Supervisors

Agenda Item 8.1

Page 1l of 1

Meeting Date

January 24, 2024

Agenda Item Name

C006464 Sodium Hypochlorite

Requested Action

Approve a three (3) year contract for sodium hypochlorite supply with Odyssey Manufacturing Co. with an

expenditure of $2,909,724.54.

Staff Report

On October 25, 2023, Invitation to Bid# C006464 was released to bid for the transportation and delivery of
sodium hypochlorite.

Additional Analysis

The Utilities Services Department is requesting approval of Contract# C006464 with Odyssey Manufacturing
Co. for the supply of sodium hypochlorite to the Water Resource Recovery Facility (“WRRF”), four potable
water-pumping stations, and four Central Energy Plants. Staff recommends approving the contract for the
period of January 24, 2024 through September 30, 2026.

Fiscal Impact Summary

Funding for this contract is budgeted over fiscal years 2024-2026 in following Accounts 332-106-5306800-
000 (Chemicals), 323-103-5306800, 321-103-5306800, and 333-108-5306800-000 (Chemicals) in the amount
of $2,909,724.54.

Exhibits Attached

1. Board Report

Itemized Bid Tabulation
Notice of Award
Contract

Bid Submittal

Power Point

ou s wWwN




|
CENTRAL FLORIDA TOURISM OVERSIGHT DISTRICT

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS REPORT Board Meeting Date: 1/24/2024
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|]

Subject: Award of Bid# C006464-Sodium Hypochlorite in the amount of $2,909,724.50

Presented By: Chris Ferraro — Director of Reedy Creek Energy Services

Department: Utility Services

STAFF RECOMMENDATION (Motion Ready): Approve Agenda Item #8.1 Contract# C006464 for a
three-year contract for sodium hypochlorite delivery for water and wastewater treatment utilizing Odyssey
Manufacturing Co. with an expenditure of $2,909,724.50

RELEVANT STRATEGIC GOALS: Operational Excellence
PROOF OF PUBLICATION: Bid released: October 25, 2023

BACKGROUND:
The Utility Services Department requires the supply and delivery of sodium hypochlorite to maintain

compliance with Florida Department of Environmental Protection (“FDEP”) regulations and to disinfect
the cooling towers at the energy plants. Sodium hypochlorite is used to treat the Water Resource Recovery
Facility (“WRRF”), which produces over four billion gallons of wastewater each year, four potable water-
pumping stations which produces over six (6) billion gallons of drinking water each year, and four Central
Energy Plants.

FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS:
On October 25, 2023, Invitation to Bid# C006464 was released to bid for the transportation and delivery of

sodium hypochlorite. The bidders were given the opportunity to submit bids for a not-to-exceed fee. Three
(3) bids were received as follows:

Vendor’s Legal Name Vendor’s City/State | 1% yr Gallon Price Bid Amount
Allied Universal Corp.* Miami, Florida $2.10 $4,395,288.80
Brenntag Mid-South, Inc. Henderson, KY $1.89 $3,753,122.72
Odyssey Manufacturing Co. Tampa, FL $1.53 $3,008,063.64**

*New Bidder (Not BuyLocal) **Estimated Bid Quantity
Odyssey Manufacturing was the lowest responsive and responsible bidder.

The Utilities Services Department is requesting approval of Contract# C006464 with Odyssey
Manufacturing Co. for the supply of sodium hypochlorite to the WRRF, four potable water-pumping
stations, and four Central Energy Plants. Staff recommends approving the contract for the period of
January 24, 2024 through September 30, 2026.




FISCAL IMPACT:

Funding for this contract is budgeted in Account 332-106-5306800-000 (Chemicals), 323-103-5306800,
321-103-5306800, and 333-108-5306800-000 (Chemicals) in the amount of $3,008,063.64

Contract Pricing Schedule
YR Term Est. Annual Cost
1 January 24, 2024 - September 30, 2024 $885,048.84
2 October 1, 2024 - September 30, 2025 $996,271.40
3 October 1, 2025 - September 30, 2026 $1,028,404.30
Estimated Total $2,909,724.50
PROCUREMENT REVIEW:

This contract has been reviewed and approved for compliance with the District's procurement policies.

LEGAL REVIEW:
This agenda item has been reviewed by the District’s General Counsel.

ALTERNATIVE:
e Deny
e Amend
e Table

SUPPORT MATERIALS:
Contract — Odyssey Manufacturing Co. (PDF)

Odyssey Manufacturing Co. Bid



S CENTRAL FLORIDA TOURISM Agreement No. C006464

< DISTRICT

SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT, is made effective as of by and between Central Florida
Tourism Oversight District (herein referred to as the (“Owner” or “District”), whose mailing address is 10450
Turkey Lake Road, Box #690519, Orlando, Florida 32869, and Odyssey Manufacturing Co., (herein referred to as
the (“Contractor”), whose mailing address is 1484 Massaro Blvd., Tampa, Florida 33619.

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, Owner desires to employ the services of Contractor for a period beginning January 24, 2024
and ending September 30, 2026, or as otherwise modified as set forth in this Agreement, to perform the
hereinafter described Services, and Contractor desires to be so employed.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants and obligations contained
in this Agreement, the parties agree as follows:

1. DEFINITIONS.
a. Agreement. The Agreement represents the entire and integrated Agreement between the

parties hereto and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or oral. The
Agreement may be amended or modified only as set forth below in Article 6.

b. Services. The term “Services” as used in this Agreement shall be construed to include all
Services set forth in Exhibit A, all obligations of Contractor under this Agreement and where any Changed Service
Authorizations have been issued pursuant to Article 6 of this Agreement, the changed Services set forth therein.

2. SCOPE OF SERVICES.

A description of the nature, scope and schedule of Services to be performed by Contractor under this Agreement in
accordance with the Exhibits outlined in the Article 22 - Contract Documents.

3. BASIS FOR COMPENSATION AND PAYMENTS.

Not to Exceed (“NTE”) Amount

a. Owner shall pay to Contractor, for its Services and in consideration of the terms and
conditions of this Agreement, a fee for time reasonably and properly incurred by Contractor in performance of
its Services based upon the rates shown on the Rate Schedule defined below. However, in no event shall the NTE
amount exceed TWO MILLION, NINE HUNDRED NINE THOUSAND, SEVEN HUNDRED TWENTY-
FOUR AND FIFTY ONE-HUNDREDTHS DOLLARS ($2,909,724.50); and the Reimbursable Expenses shall in
no event exceed (N/A).

Item Item Description UOM Est. Qty. | Unit Price| Annual Total
YEAR 1 (January 24, 2024 - September 30, 2024)
1 12.5% Sodium Hypochlorite Gallons 577,483 $1.53 $883,548.99
2 12.5% Sodium Hypochlorite (SSEP) Gallons 909 $1.65 $1,499.85
Year 1 — Total $885,048.84
YEAR 2 (October 1, 2024 - September 30, 2025)
3 12.5% Sodium Hypochlorite Gallons 641,648 $1.55 $994,554.40
12.5% Sodium Hypochlorite (SSEP) Gallons 1,010 $1.70 $1,717.00
Year 2 - Total $996,271.40
YEAR 3 (October 1, 2025 - September 30, 2026)
5 12.5% Sodium Hypochlorite Gallons 641,648 $1.60 $1,026,636.80
12.5% Sodium Hypochlorite (SSEP) Gallons 1,010 $1.75 $1,767.50
Year 3 - Total $1,028,404.30
Not-To-Exceed Total - Sodium Hypochlorite $2,909,724.50

Services Agreement, November 2023 Edition



) CENTRAL FLORIDA TOURISM Services Agreement: C006464

=DISTRICT

b. Payments shall be made monthly for Services plus Reimbursable Expenses incurred.
Contractor shall invoice Owner, in the form required by Owner, on the first day of each calendar month for Services
rendered during the preceding month plus Reimbursable Expenses incurred.

c. Reimbursable Expenses shall include only the actual and necessary costs and expenses,
without markup, reasonably and properly incurred by Contractor in connection with the Services rendered under this
Agreement. Direct expenses are determined and pre-approved by Owner.

d. Contractor shall provide any and all backup required by Owner in connection with time
spent and Reimbursable Expenses incurred.

e. Owner shall pay each invoiced amount (or uncontested portion thereof) on or about the
thirtieth day following receipt of each invoice.

f. All invoices should reference the contract number and be submitted to the following
address:

Central Florida Tourism Oversight District
C/O: Reedy Creek Energy Services — Utilities Division
Attention: Accounts Payable
P.O. Box 690519
Orlando, Florida 32869
All invoices shall be sent to wdw.rces.billing@disney.com

g. Contractor shall be compensated for any Additional Services based upon the Rate
Schedule; such amounts to be invoiced and paid in accordance with the terms of Paragraphs b, c, d, and e herein;
provided, however, that Contractor shall not be entitled to compensation for Additional Services unless Contractor
has obtained prior written authorization of Owner to perform the same.

h. Owner retains the right to reduce any portion of Contractor's Services at any time.

4. REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND COVENANTS.

Contractor hereby represents to Owner that: (a) it has the experience and skill to perform the Services as set forth in
this Agreement; (b) that it shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, codes, and orders of
any public, quasi-public or other government authority; (c) it is duly licensed to observe and perform the terms,
covenants, conditions and other provisions on its part to be observed or performed under this Agreement; (d) it has by
careful examination satisfied itself as to: (i) the nature, location and character of the general area in which the Services
are to be performed including, without limitation, the surface conditions of the land and all structures and obstructions
thereon, both natural and manmade, the surface water conditions of the general area and, to the extent pertinent, all
other conditions; and (ii) all other matters or things which could in any manner affect the performance of the Services.

5. INSURANCE:; INDEMNIFICATION.

a. The Contractor shall at its expense procure and maintain during the life of this Contract
and for two (2) years thereafter (and shall require the same from its Subcontractors and Sub-subcontractors) the
following types and minimum amounts of insurance:

1. Commercial General Liability Insurance including liability assumed under written
contract, bodily injury, property damage, personal and advertising injury, and
products/completed operations liability written on an occurrence basis with
minimum combined single limits for bodily injury and property damage of
$1,000,000 per occurrence;

ii. Automobile Liability coverage for all owned, non-owned and hired vehicles
written on an occurrence basis, with minimum combined single limits of
$1,000,000 per occurrence;

Services Agreement, November 2023 Edition


mailto:WDW.RCES.Billing@disney.com

B ) CENTRAL FLORIDA TOURISM Services Agreement: C006464
L Page 3
== DISTRICT

1il. Workers’ Compensation Insurance providing statutory benefits and Employer’s
Liability Insurance with minimum limits of $1,000,000 per occurrence;

iv. Umbrella Liability on a follow-form basis providing coverage excess of the
underlying policies required by i, ii, and iii. above in an amount of at least
$1,000,000 per occurrence;

v. If Contractor is providing any kind of professional service or advice including
design, architectural, surveying, legal, financial, accounting or similar then
Contractor will also carry Professional Liability/Errors & Omissions insurance
with a limit of at least $1,000,000 per occurrence. This insurance may be on a
claims-made form if there is a retroactive date that precedes the first date of work
or services under this agreement and is maintained for at least 2 years following
the conclusion of work.

vi. If Contractor is using, transporting or disposing of any hazardous materials,
potentially harmful materials, chemicals, waste or similar then Contractor will
also carry Pollution Liability insurance with a limit of at least $1,000,000 per
occurrence. This insurance may be on a claims-made form if there is a retroactive
date that precedes the first date of work or services under this agreement and is
maintained for at least two (2) years following the conclusion of work.

vii. If work will include the use or operation of any crane, total limit of Umbrella
liability insurance will be at least $4 million.

viii. If Contractor is using any kind of aircraft including unmanned aerial vehicles
(drones) then use must be approved by Owner and liability insurance satisfactory
to Owner must be obtained.

iX. Contractor is not required to commercially insure its owned, rented or borrowed
machinery, tools, equipment, office trailers, vehicles, and other property but
agrees that Owner is not responsible for and Contractor holds Owner harmless for
loss, damage or theft of such items.

b. All insurance required under this Article shall be with companies and on forms authorized
to issue insurance in Florida and with an insurer financial strength rating from AM Best of no less than A- or an
equivalent rating from a similar, recognized ratings agency unless such requirements are waived, in writing, by the
Owner’s Risk Manager. Certificates of insurance (or copies of policies, if required by the Owner) shall be furnished
to the Owner.

c. CANCELLATION. All such insurance required by this Article shall provide that the
coverage thereunder may not be reduced or canceled unless thirty (30) days unrestricted prior written notice thereof
is furnished to Contractor, who agrees to promptly relay any such notice received to Owner.

d. ADDITIONAL INSUREDS. Each liability policy required herein (except Workers’
Compensation or Professional Liability) shall schedule as Additional Insureds, on a primary and non-contributory
basis, the Owner and its affiliated entities and their supervisors, officers, employees, agents and assigns.

e. WAIVERS. The Contractor hereby waives, and will require its Subcontractors and Sub-
subcontractors to waive and to require its and their insurers to waive their rights of recovery or subrogation against
the Owner and its affiliated entities, supervisors, officers, employees, agents and assigns.

f. CLAIMS. The Contractor and its Subcontractors and Sub-subcontractors shall assist and
cooperate in every manner possible in connection with the adjustment of all claims arising out of the operations
conducted under or in connection with the Work and shall cooperate with the insurance carrier or carriers of the Owner
and of the Contractor, its Subcontractors and Sub-subcontractors in all litigated claims and demands which arise out
of said operations and which the said insurance carrier or carriers are called upon to adjust or resist.

Services Agreement, November 2023 Edition



) CENTRAL FLORIDA TOURISM Services Agreement: C006464

=DISTRICT

g. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall indemnify the Owner from and against any
and all claims, suits, judgments, damages, losses and expenses (including attorneys' fees) of any nature whatsoever to
the extent caused by the negligence, recklessness or intentional wrongful misconduct (which includes, without
limitation, any failure of the Contractor or any of its Subcontractors or Sub-subcontractors to perform and complete
the Work in strict compliance with the Contract Documents, unless such failure has been specifically waived by the
Owner in writing upon final acceptance of the Work) of the Contractor or any persons employed or utilized by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, including without limitation, any Subcontractor or Sub-subcontractor
(or their employees), utilized by the Contractor in the performance of the Work. The provisions of this paragraph shall
survive the expiration or sooner termination of this Agreement.

6. MODIFICATIONS., ADDITIONS, OR DELETIONS TO THE SERVICES.

a. A Changed Service Authorization shall be a writing by the Owner that shall consist of
additions, deletions, or other modifications to the Agreement agreed to by the Contractor.

b. The Owner may, from time to time, without affecting the validity of the Agreement, or any
term or condition thereof, issue Changed Service Authorizations which may identify additional or revised Scope of
Services, or other written instructions and orders, which shall be governed by the provisions of the Agreement. The
Contractor shall comply with all such orders and instructions issued by the Owner. Upon receipt of any such Changed
Service Authorization, the Contractor shall promptly proceed with the Changed Service Authorization, and the
resultant decrease or increase in the amount to be paid the Contractor, if any, shall be governed by the provisions of
Article 3 in this Agreement.

7. PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY.

a. The Contractor shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising safety
precautions and programs in connection with the Services, and shall provide all protection to prevent injury to all
persons involved in any way in the Services and all other persons, including, without limitation, the employees, agents,
guests, visitors, invitees and licensees of the Owner who may visit or be affected thereby.

b. All Services, whether performed by the Contractor, its Subcontractors, or anyone directly
or indirectly employed by any of them, and all applicable equipment, machinery, materials, tools and like items used
in the Services, shall be in compliance with, and conform to: (a) all applicable laws, ordinances, rules, regulations
and orders of any public, quasi-public or other governmental authority; and (b) all codes, rules, regulations and
requirements of the Owner and its insurance carriers relating thereto. In the event of conflicting requirements, the
more stringent shall govern.

c. The Contractor shall at all times keep the general area in which the Services are to be
performed clean and free from accumulation of waste materials or rubbish (including, without limitation, hazardous
waste), caused by performance of the Services, and shall continuously throughout performance of the Services remove
and dispose of all such materials. The Owner may require the Contractor to comply with such standards, means and
methods of cleanup, removal or disposal as the Owner may make known to the Contractor. In the event the Contractor
fails to keep the general area in which the Services are to be performed clean and free from such waste or rubbish, or
to comply with such standards, means and methods, the Owner may take such action and offset any and all costs or
expenses of whatever nature paid or incurred by the Owner in undertaking such action against any sums then or
thereafter due to the Contractor.

8. BOOKS AND RECORDS.

Contractor shall maintain comprehensive books and records relating to any Services performed under this Agreement,
which shall be retained by Contractor for a period of at least four (4) years from and after the completion of such
Services. Owner, or its authorized representatives, shall have the right to audit such books and records at all reasonable
times upon prior notice to Contractor. The provisions of this paragraph shall survive the expiration or early termination
of this Agreement.

Services Agreement, November 2023 Edition



B ) CENTRAL FLORIDA TOURISM Services Agreement: C006464
L Page 5
== DISTRICT

9. PROMOTION/CONFIDENTIALITY.

The Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, shall acquire no right to use, and shall not use, the name of the Owner
or the Owner’s Representative (either alone or in conjunction with or as a part of any other word, mark or name) or
any marks, fanciful characters or designs of either of them or any related, affiliated or subsidiary companies: in any
advertising, publicity or promotion; to express or imply any endorsement of the Contractor's Work or services; or in
any other manner whatsoever (whether or not similar to the uses hereinabove specifically prohibited). Contractor
may, during the course of its engagement hereunder, have access to and acquire knowledge regarding plans, concepts,
designs, materials, data, systems and other information of or with respect to Owner or Owner’s Representative, or any
subsidiaries or affiliated companies thereof, which may not be accessible or known to the general public (“Confidential
Information”). Confidential Information that is specific as to techniques, equipment, processes, products, concepts or
designs, etc. shall not be deemed to be within the knowledge of the general public merely because it is embraced by
general disclosures in the public domain. Any knowledge acquired by Contractor from such Confidential Information
or otherwise through its engagement hereunder shall not be used, published or divulged by Contractor to any other
person, firm or corporation, or used in any advertising or promotion regarding Contractor or its services, or in any
other manner or connection whatsoever without first having obtained the written permission of Owner, which
permission Owner may withhold in its sole discretion. Contractor specifically agrees that the foregoing confidentiality
obligation applies to, but is not limited to, any information disclosed to Contractor in any document provided to
Contractor pursuant to or in connection with this Agreement, including but not limited to, a Request for Proposal,
Request for Estimate, Request for Quotation or Invitation to Bid, except to the extent Contractor must disclose such
information to compile and prepare its proposed price for work or services performed hereunder. The provisions of
this Article shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement.

10. ASSIGNMENT.

This Agreement is for the personal services of Contractor and may not be assigned by Contractor in any fashion,
whether by operation of law, or by conveyance of any type including, without limitation, transfer of stock in
Contractor, without the prior written consent of Owner, which consent Owner may withhold in its sole discretion.
Owner retains the right to assign all or any portion of this Agreement at any time. Upon such assignment, and provided
the Assignee shall, in writing, assume Owner's obligations under this Agreement, Owner shall be automatically
released and discharged from any and all of its obligations under this Agreement, and Contractor shall thenceforth
look solely to the Assignee for performance of Owner's obligations under this Agreement.

11. SUSPENSION OR TERMINATION.

a. Anything in this Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, Owner shall, in its sole
discretion and with or without cause, have the right to suspend or terminate this Agreement upon seven (7) days prior
written notice to Contractor. In the event of termination, Owner's sole obligation and liability to Contractor, if any,
shall be to pay to Contractor that portion of the amount earned by it, plus any earned amounts for extra Services
performed pursuant to Articles 3 and 6, through the date of termination.

b. Hypochlorite supplied under this contract shall be tested and certified as meeting the
specifications outlined in Exhibit A and those of the American National Standards Institute/National Sanitation
Foundation Standard 60 (“ANSI”/”NSF” Standard 60), Drinking Water Treatment Chemicals Health Effects. It is the
responsibility of the Contractor to inform the Owner that National Sanitation Foundation (“NSF”’) or Underwriters
Laboratories (“UL”) certification has been revoked or lapsed within twenty-four (24) hours of the time the Contractor
receives verbal or written notification of revocation. Loss of certification shall constitute sufficient grounds for
immediate termination of the contract.

12. SUBCONTRACTORS.

If the Contractor desires to employ Subcontractors in connection with the performance of its Services under this
Agreement:

a. Nothing contained in the Agreement shall create any contractual relationship between the
Owner and any Subcontractor. However, it is acknowledged that the Owner is an intended third-party beneficiary of
the obligations of the Subcontractors related to the Services.

Services Agreement, November 2023 Edition



) CENTRAL FLORIDA TOURISM Services Agreement: C006464

=DISTRICT

b. Contractor shall coordinate the services of any Subcontractors, and remain fully
responsible under the terms of this Agreement, Contractor shall be and remain responsible for the quality, timeliness
and the coordination of all Services furnished by the Contractor or its Subcontractors.

c. All subcontracts shall be in writing. Each subcontract shall contain a reference to this
Agreement and shall incorporate the terms and conditions of this Agreement to the full extent applicable to the portion
of the Services covered thereby. Each Subcontractor must agree, for the benefit of the Owner, to be bound by such
terms and conditions to the full extent applicable to its portion of the Services.

13. NOTICE.

a. Notices required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing, may be
delivered personally or by mail, telex, facsimile, cable, or courier service, and shall be deemed given when received
by the addressee. Notices shall be addressed as follows:

If to Owner: CENTRAL FLORIDA TOURISM OVERSIGHT DISTRICT
10450 Turkey Lake Road, Box #690519
Orlando, Florida 32869
Attention: Contracting Officer

If to Contractor: ODYSSEY MANUFACTURING CO.
1484 Massaro Blvd.
Tampa, Florida 33619
Attention: Patrick Allman

or to such other address as either party may direct by notice given to the other as hereinabove provided.

b. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any notice sent to the last designated address of the party
to whom a notice may be or is required to be delivered under this Agreement shall not be deemed ineffective if actual
delivery cannot be made due to a change of address of the party to whom the notice is directed or the failure or refusal
of such party to accept delivery of the notice.

14. OWNERSHIP OF WORK PRODUCT.

a. All drawings, data, ideas, concepts, molds, models, tooling, improvements, inventions, or
other tangible or intangible work product in whole or in part conceived, produced, commissioned or acquired by
Contractor hereunder (“Work Product”) shall be and remain the sole and exclusive property of Owner when produced,
whether or not fixed in a tangible medium of expression, except that Contractor may retain copies of such Work
Product for its permanent reference, but shall not use such copies in any manner whatsoever without the express
written consent of Owner and shall keep same confidential in accordance with the requirements of Article 9 entitled
Promotion/Confidentiality. In the event of early termination of this Contract, in whole or in part, Contractor shall
deliver to Owner all Work Product whether complete or not.

b. Without limiting the forgoing, Contractor agrees that any and all Work Product shall be
deemed to be "works made for hire" for Owner as the author, creator, or inventor upon creation; provided, however,
that in the event and to the extent that such Work Product is determined not to constitute "works made for hire" as a
matter of law, Contractor hereby irrevocably assigns and transfers such property, and all right, title and interest therein,
whether now known or hereafter existing including, but not limited to, patents and copyrights, to Owner and its
successors and assigns. Contractor grants to Owner all rights including, without limitation, reproduction,
manufacturing and moral rights, throughout the universe in perpetuity and in all languages and in any and all media
whether now or hereafter known, with respect to such Work Product. Contractor acknowledges that Owner is the
motivating force and factor, and for purposes of copyright or patent, has the right to such copyrightable or patentable
Work Product produced by Contractor under this Contract. Contractor agrees to execute any and all documents and
do such other acts as requested by Owner to further evidence any of the transfers, assignments and exploitation rights
provided for herein.

Services Agreement, November 2023 Edition



B ) CENTRAL FLORIDA TOURISM Services Agreement: C006464
IENfAE Page 7
=1 DISTRICT

15. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

a. The Contract Documents shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of
the State of Florida, to the exclusion of its rules concerning conflicts of laws, and shall constitute the entire and sole
understanding of the parties hereto notwithstanding any prior oral or written statements, instructions, agreements,
representations, or other communications.

b. Any legal proceeding of any nature brought by either party against the other to enforce any
right or obligation under this Agreement, or arising out of any matter pertaining to this Agreement, the Contract
Documents or the Work to be performed hereunder (a “Proceeding”), shall be submitted for trial, without jury, solely
and exclusively before the Circuit Court of the Ninth Judicial Circuit in and for Orange County, Florida; provided,
however, that if such Circuit Court does not have jurisdiction, then such Proceeding shall be so submitted solely and
exclusively before the United States District Court for the Middle District of Florida (Orlando Division); and provided
further that if neither of such courts shall have jurisdiction, then such Proceeding shall be so submitted solely and
exclusively before any other court sitting in Orange County, Florida, having jurisdiction. The parties (i) expressly
waive the right to a jury trial, (ii) consent and submit to the sole and exclusive jurisdiction of the requisite court as
provided herein and (iii) agree to accept service of process outside the State of Florida in any matter related to a
Proceeding in accordance with the applicable rules of civil procedure.

c. In the event that any provision of any of the Contract Documents is judicially construed to
be invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such provision shall then be construed in a manner allowing its validity
or, if this leads to an impracticable result, shall be stricken but, in either event, all other provisions of the Contract
Documents shall remain in full force and effect.

16. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

a. Any failure by Owner to require strict compliance with any provision of this Agreement
shall not be construed as a waiver of such provision, and Owner may subsequently require strict compliance at any
time, notwithstanding any prior failure to do so.

b. The acceptance of final payment under this Agreement, or the acceptance of final payment
upon early termination hereof, shall constitute a full and complete release of Owner by Contractor from any and all
claims, demands and causes of action whatsoever which Contractor may have against Owner in any way related to the
subject matter of this Agreement and Contractor shall as a condition precedent to receipt of final payment from Owner,
submit to the Owner a fully and properly executed General Release, in the form attached to this Agreement. Neither
the Owner's review, approval or acceptance of, nor payment for, any of the Services required under this Agreement
shall be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement or of any cause of action arising out of
the performance of this Agreement, and Contractor shall be and remain liable to Owner in accordance with law for all
damages to Owner caused by the Contractor's performance of any of the Services furnished pursuant to this
Agreement.

c. It is understood and agreed that Contractor is acting as an independent contractor in the
performance of its Services hereunder, and nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed to create an agency
relationship between Owner and Contractor.

d. The rights and remedies of Owner provided for under this Agreement are cumulative and
are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law.

17. THE OWNER’S REPRESENTATIVES.

Reedy Creek Energy Services, whose designated representative is Jason Herrick, and whose mailing address is
10450 Turkey Lake Road, Box #690519, Orlando, Florida 32869, shall act as the Owner's authorized representative
(herein referred to as the "Owner’s Representative"); provided, however, that the Owner may, without liability to the
Contractor, unilaterally amend this Article from time to time by designating a different person or organization to act
as its representative and so advising the Contractor in writing, at which time the person or organization so designated
shall be the Owner’s Representative for purposes of this Agreement. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement,
and until the Contractor is notified in writing to the contrary, all actions to be taken by, all approvals, notices, consent,

Services Agreement, November 2023 Edition



Services Agreement: C006464
Page 8

directions and instructions to be given by, all notices and other matters to be delivered to, all determinations and
decisions to be made by and, in general, all other action to be taken by, or given to, the Owner shall be taken, given
and made by, or delivered or given to, the Owner’s Representative in the name of and on behalf of the Owner;
provided, however, that the Owner (and not the Owner’s Representative) shall be solely obligated to the Contractor
for all sums required to be paid by the Owner to the Contractor hereunder.

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create any contractual relationship between the Contractor and the Owner’s
Representative; provided, however, that the Owner’s Representative shall be deemed to be a third party beneficiary
of those obligations of the Contractor to the Owner as imposed by this Agreement.

18. PUBLIC RECORDS.

IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE
CONTRACTOR’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING
TO THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE OWNER’S CUSTODIAN OF
PUBLIC RECORDS AT TELEPHONE NUMBER 407-939-3240, EMAIL
ADDRESS PUBLICRECORDS@OVERSIGHTDISTRICT.ORG, MAILING
ADDRESS CENTRAL FLORIDA TOURISM OVERSIGHT DISTRICT,
ATTN: PUBLIC RECORDS ADMINISTRATOR, P.O. BOX # 690519,
ORLANDO, FLORIDA 32869.

a. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL:
i. Keep and maintain public records required by the public agency to perform the
service.
il. Upon request from the public agency’s custodian of public records, provide the

public agency with a copy of the requested records or allow the records to be
inspected or copied within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the
cost provided in this chapter or as otherwise provided by law.

iil. Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public
records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for
the duration of the contract term and following completion of the contract if the
Contractor does not transfer the records to the public agency.

iv. Upon completion of the contract, transfer, at no cost, to the public agency all
public records in possession of the Contractor or keep and maintain public records
required by the public agency to perform the service. If the Contractor transfers
all public records to the public agency upon completion of the contract, the
Contractor shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or
confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. If the
Contractor keeps and maintains public records upon completion of the contract,
the Contractor shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records.
All records stored electronically must be provided to the public agency, upon
request from the public agency’s custodian of public records, in a format that is
compatible with the information technology systems of the public agency.

b. REQUEST FOR RECORDS; NONCOMPLIANCE:

i. A request to inspect or copy public records relating to a public agency’s contract
for services must be made directly to the public agency. If the public agency does

Services Agreement, November 2023 Edition


mailto:PUBLICRECORDS@OVERSIGHTDISTRICT.ORG

) CENTRAL FLORIDA TOURISM Services Agreement: C006464

=DISTRICT

not possess the requested records, the public agency shall immediately notify the
Contractor of the request, and the Contractor must provide the records to the
public agency or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable
time. If a Contractor does not comply with the public agency’s request for
records, the public agency shall enforce the contract provisions in accordance with
the contract.

il. A Contractor who fails to provide the public records to the public agency within
a reasonable time may be subject to penalties under s. 119.10.

c. CIVIL ACTION:

i Ifa civil action is filed against a Contractor to compel production of public records
relating to a public agency’s contract for services, the court shall assess and award
against the Contractor the reasonable costs of enforcement, including reasonable
attorney fees, if:

1. The court determines that the Contractor unlawfully refused to comply
with the public records request within a reasonable time; and

2. At least 8 business days before filing the action, the plaintiff provided
written notice of the public records request, including a statement that
the Contractor has not complied with the request, to the public agency
and to the Contractor.

ii. A notice complies with subparagraph c.2. if it is sent to the public agency’s
custodian of public records and to the Contractor at the Contractor’s address listed
on its contract with the public agency or to the Contractor’s registered agent. Such
notices must be sent by common carrier delivery service or by registered, Global
Express Guaranteed, or certified mail, with postage or shipping paid by the sender
and with evidence of delivery, which may be in an electronic format.

iil. A Contractor who complies with a public records request within 8 business days
after the notice is sent is not liable for the reasonable costs of enforcement.

19. NON-FUNDING.

In the event that budgeted funds for this Agreement are reduced, terminated, or otherwise become unavailable, Owner
may terminate this Agreement upon written notice to Contractor without penalty to Owner. Owner shall be the final
authority as to the availability of the funding.

20. E-VERIFY COMPLIANCE.

The Contractor and its subcontractors warrant compliance with all federal immigration laws and regulations that relate
to their employees. The Contractor agrees and acknowledges that the Owner is a public employer that is subject to
the E-verify requirements as set forth in Section 448.095, Florida Statutes, and that the provisions of F.S. Sec. 448.095
apply to this Agreement. Notwithstanding the provisions of this Section hereof, if the Owner has a good faith belief
that the Contractor has knowingly hired, recruited or referred an alien who is not duly authorized to work by the
immigration laws of the Attorney General of the United States for employment under this Agreement, the Owner shall
terminate the Agreement. If the Owner has a good faith belief that a subcontractor performing work under this
Agreement knowingly hired, recruited or referr